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NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that the 17111 Annua l General Meeting of Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company 
Limited wi ll be held on Friday, 17 November 2023 at 12.45 hours at Bhubaneswar, Odisha through Video 
Conference to transact the fo llowing business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

l. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023, 
together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon . 

1n this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, w ith or without modification(s), the following 

reso lution as Ordinary Reso lut ion : 

"RESOLVED THAT the audited f inancia l statement of the Company for the f inancia l year ended 31.03 .2023 
and t he reports of the Board of Directors and Aud itors (both Statutory and Secretaria l) thereon and the 
comments of the Comptro ller and Aud itor Genera l of India thereon as circu lated to the members, be and 

are hereby cons idered and adopted". 

2. To appoint a director in the place of Shri Sanjay l<umar Mishra (DIN: 09313483), who ret ires by 
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re -appointment. 

In this regard, to cons ider and if thought f it, to pass, w ith or wit hout modification (s), the fo llowing 
resolution as an Ordinary Reso lut ion: 

"RESOLVED THAT in accordance w ith the provisions of Sect ion 152 and other app licab le provisions of t he 
Companies Act, 2013, Shri Sanjay Kumar M ishra (D IN: 09313483), who ret ires by rotation at th is meet ing 
be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company." 

3. To appoint a director in the place of Shri P L Haranadh (DIN: 07295378), who retires by rotation and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment . 

In th is regard, to consider and if thought f it, to pass, w ith or without mod ificat ion (s), the following 

reso lution as an Ord inary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other appl icable pro'Jisi on s of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Shri P L Haranadh (D IN: 07295378),who ret ires by rotat ion at this meeting be and 
is here by appo inted as a Director of the Company" . 

4. To appoint a director in the place of ShriMP Singh (DIN: 08165734), who retires by rotation and being 
eligible, offers himself for re -appointment. 

In this rega rd, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, w ith or w ithout modification (s), the following 
reso lution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT in acco rdan ce w ith the provis ions of Section 152 and other applicab le prov isions of t he 

Co rnpanies .1\ct, 2013, Shri M P Singh (DIN : 08165734), who retires by rotation at this meet ing be and is 
hei·eby appo inted as a Director of the Company". 

5. To appoint a director in the place of Shri Saroj l<anta Patra (DIN: 08550153), who retires by rotation 

and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment . 

In thi s regard. to consider and if thought fit, to pass, w ith or without modification (s), the fo ll owing 
resolution as an Ord inary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT in accorda nce w it h t he prov isions of Sect ion 152 and other applicable provisions of th e 
Compa nies Act, 2013, Shri Sarc·j Kanta Pa\. ra (DIN: 08550153), who ret ires by rotat ion at th is meeting be 

and is hereby appo inted as a Director of the Company" . 
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6. To note the appointment of Statutory Auditors for the financial year ZOZ3-Z4 

As per th e provisions of sect ion 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (a s applicable to the Company) 
appoi ntment of statutory aud itors is made by the Comptro ll er & Aud itor Genera l of India . Sect ion 142 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 provides that, the remuneration of the auditor shall be fixed by t he Company in 
General Meeting or such manner as the Company in General Meeting may determine. Therefore, the 

following resolution is proposed before the General Meeting: 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the follow ing resolution as Ordinary 

Reso lution : 

"RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited be and is hereby 
authorized to fix, the remuneration of t he statutory aud itors of the Company appo inted by the office of 
t he Comptro ll er & Auditor General of India for aud it of accounts of the Company for the financial year 

2023-24". 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

7. Re-appointment of Internal Auditor for the F.Y. ZOZ3-Z4 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the fol lowing resolution as Super 
Majority Special Reso lution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sect ion 138 of Companies Act, 2013, the consent of the 
Shareho lders of t he Company be and is hereby accorded for re- appointment of M/s Laldash & Co, 
Chartered Accountants as Interna l Aud itor for the F.Y. 2023-24 (one year) with the professional fees of 
INR20,000/- per month plus GST. 

08. To extend the tenure of Shri Debaraj Panda as a Managing Director of the Company. 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolutions as Ordinary 
Reso lutions. 
"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of sections 196, 197, 203 read with Schedule V of the 
Compan ies Act, 2013 and other applicab le provisions, if any, including any statutory modifications or re ­
enactments thereof for the time being in force and subject to the limits prescribed under the Companies 
Act, 2013, consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded for extension of serv ice of Shri Debaraj 

Panda as MD for 2 (two) yea rs w.e.f. 18th December, 2023 on t he same pay, perks and allowances as 
de,:ided by Board of Directors. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT t he Board be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as 
may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution. 

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Shri Saroj Kanta Patra, Director of the Company and/ Shri S.K . Satapathy, 
Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby several ly authorize d to do all such acts, deeds, 
matters and th ings as may be deemed proper, necessary, or expedient, including filing the requisite forms 

with Ministry of Corporate Affairs or submission of documents with any other authority, for the purpose 
of giving effect to this Resolution and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto." 

DATE:Z0/10/2023 

PLACE: BHUBANESWAR 

AGM NOTICE 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FOR HARIDASPUR PARADIP RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED 

~~~ 
COMPANY SECRETARY 
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NOTES: 

1. M inistry of Corpo rate Affairs vide Ge nera l Circular No 02/2021 dated 13.01.2021 perm itted the 
compa nies for holding An nua l Genera l Meet ing {AGM } t hrough Video Confere ncing {VC} or Other Aud io 
Vis ual Means {OAVM } in t he ca lendar year 2022 subject to t he ful fi ll ment of req uireme nts as per the law. 
In comp liance w it h the same and app licab le provis ions of the Compa nies Act, 2013, the 171

h AGM of the 
Compa ny is be ing convened and conducted t hroug h VC also. 

2. Membe rs attending t he AGM t hrough VC/OAVM shall be co unted fo r t he purpose of recko ning t he 

quorum under Sect ion 103 of t he Act. 

3. A member entitled to attend and vote is ent it led to appo int a proxy to attend, and on a pol l, to vote 
instead of him/herse lf. Such a proxy need not be a member of the compa ny. Proxies in order to be va lid 
and effect ive must be de livered at t he reg istered office of t he co mpany not later t han forty-eight hours 

before t he comme nceme nt of t he meet ing. 

4. The members are req uested to fo ll ow the fo llowing instruct ions in order to part icipate in the Meet ing 
through the VC mechan ism : 

a. The meet ing w ill be held on th e "Microsoft Tea ms" pl atform . 

b. The lin k to attend t he meeting w ill be shared t hrough ema il sepa rate ly . 

c. Th e members may attend the same by cli cking on t he li nk and jo ining t hrough the browser or by 
down load ing the app ava ilable in t he play store . 

d. Th e fac ility fo r jo ining t he M eeting shall be kept open 15 minutes before t he t ime sched uled to start 
the meeting and 15 minutes after t he exp iry of t he said scheduled tim e. 

e. Mernbers are req uested to contact Compa ny Secretary t hrough ema il/ over t he te lephone (e-mai l at 
cshprc l@gma il.com or ca ll at +91-8908357083 } in case of any t echnica l ass ist ance requ ired at t he t ime of 
!o ining/ access ing/ voting at t he M eeting through VC. 

5 Th e exp lanatory stateme nts purs uant to sect ion 102 of t he Co mpanies Act, 2013 in respect of items no 
7 to 08 set out in the notice are annexed hereto. 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FOR HARIDASPUR PARADIP RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED 

.I 

DATE: 20/10/2023 
9 .1\·~ 

S.K. SA TAPA THY ,, 

PLACE: BHUBANESWAR COMPANY SECRETARY .![ 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013. 

The fol lowing Statements pursuant to Sect ion 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") sets out all material 
facts re lat ing to t he Special Business ment ioned in t he accompa nyi ng Not ice and shou ld be taken as 
form ing part of the Notice. 

Item No 7: As per provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act 2013, Publ ic Companies having paid up 
share cap ital of INRSO.OO Crores or more during the preced ing f inancia l year are required to appoint an 
Interna l Aud itor . Furt her, Clause 7. vi of Share holders Agreeme nt and Art ic le 85. VI of t he Artic le of 
Association of the Company st ipu lates that any proposa l for t he renewal or appo intment of Statutory 
Auditors or Interna l Auditors of the Company, including the rep lacement of such Aud itors requires 
approval of the Genera l Meet ing. 

The Board of Directors recommended t he re -appo intment of M/s Laldash & Co. (FRN - 3114/E}, a firm of 
Charted Acco unta nts as Internal Auditor for the F.Y. 2023-24 (one year) with the fees of INR20,000/- per 

I 
month plus GST, subject to approva l/ratificat ion of/by Shareho lders and passing of necessary reso lution 
as Super Majority Resolution. 

None of the Directors, l<ey Managerial Persons, or the ir re latives have any interest in the proposed 
resolut ion . 

The Board of Directors of your Company, recommends passing reso lutions as set out in Item no. 07 of the 
Notice as Supermajority Specia l Resolut ions . 
Item No. 08 The Board of Directors of t he Company ("the Board") in its 72nd meet ing he ld on ... September, 

2023 on reco mmendation of Nom ination & Re munerat ion Comm ittee has, subject to approval of 
members, exte nded t he appointment of Shri Debara j Pa nda (DIN : 07101823} as Managing Director, for 
a further period of 2 (two) years w .e.f 18th December 2023 on the same pay, perks, and allowances as 
deci ded in th e 59 th & 66th BOD meeting held on 24th November 2020 & lOth August 2022 respectively" . It is 

proposed to seek membe rs' approva l for th e extension of appo intment of as Ma nag ing Director, in terms 
of the app licab le provis ions of t he Act 

The 13oard of Directors of your Company recommends passing reso lut ions as set out in Item No. 08 of the 
Notice as Ordinary Reso lutions. 

Except for Shri Debaraj Panda, none of the Directors, l<ey Ma nager ial Perso nne l of the Company, and the ir 
re latives has any interest in the proposed reso lu tion . 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FOR HARIDASPUR PARADIP RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED 

DATE: 20/10/2023 

PLACE: BHUBANESWAR 

~.,~II S.K.~TAPATHY 
COMPANY SECRETARY 

!' 
I' 
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STATEMENT OF PARTICUlARS 

I. Generallnformation : 

1. Nature of industry: Rai lway Construct ion, Operation, Ma intenance, and Management 

2. Date of commencement of commerc ial operation: Olst October 2020 

3. In case of new companies, the expected date of commencement of activ it ies as per the project 

approved by financial institutions appear ing in the prospectus: - Not App li cable 

4. Financial performance based on given indicators: Not App licable 

5. Fore ign investments or co llaborators, if any : Not App li cable 

II. Informat ion about the appointee : 

(1) Background deta il s: Indi an Rai lway Traffic Service officer (1982 Batch) 

(2) Past remunerat ion : 

(3) Recognition or awards : Not App li cable 

(4) Job profile and his suitabi lity: Construct ion and Operat ion of project of the Company 

(S)Remunerat ion proposed: the same pay and perks as decided in in the 59th & 66th BOD meeting held 

on 2.4th November 2020 & lOth August 2022 respective ly 

(6)Comparative remunerat ion profile with respect to industry, size of the company, profil e of the position 

and person (in case of expatr iates the re levant detai ls wo uld be w .r.t. the country of hi s origin) ~J . A. 

(7)Pecuniary relat ionsh ip direct ly or indirect ly wit h the compa ny, or rel at ionsh ip with t he managerial 

person nel, if any. Not Applicab le 

II Other information : 

1. Reasons for loss or inadequate profits: Not applicab le 

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement: Not App li cable 

3. The expected increase in productivity and profits in measurab le te rm s: Not Applicable 

Ill. Disclosures: 

1. The fo ll ow ing disc losures shall be mentioned in t he Board of Directo r' s report under the head ing 
"Corporate Governance", if any, attached to the annua l report: Not App li cab le 

a. All elc:ments of the rem unerat ion package such as sa lary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension, 

etc., of all t he Directors; 

b. Deta ils of a fixed component and performance-linked incentives along with the performance cr iteria; 

c. Se rvice contracts, not ice period , severance fees; 

d. Stock option deta il s, if any, and whether th e same has been issued at a d iscount as well as the period 

over wh ich accrued and over wh ich exe rci sab le. 

None of t he Directors, Key Manageria l Personne l of t he Company, and the ir re latives are concerned or 

interested, financ ial or otherwise, in the reso lution except and to t he extent they are members of th e 

Company. 

DATE : 20/10/2023 

PLACE: BHUBANESWAR 

AG M NOTICE 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
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Form No. MGT-11 

Proxy form 
[Pursuant to section 105{6) ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19{3) of the Companies {Management and 

Administration) Ru les, 2014] 

CIN: 

Name of the company : 

Reg istered office: 

Name of the member (s): 

Registered address: 

E-mailld: 

Folio No/ Client ld: 

DP ID: 

U452030R2006PLC008959 

Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited 

Unit No: DCB-714-17,71
h Floor, DLF Cyber City Chandaka I.E, 

Bhubaneswar, Orissa-751024 

1/We, being the member (s) of .... ... ..... ...... shares of t he above-named company, hereby appoint 

1. Name: ................... .... . 

Add ress: E-mai l id : ...... ... ... .. .... .. ... .... ........... . 

Signature: ........ ... .... .. .... ... ................... ... ... ........ , or fai ling him as my/our proxy to atte nd and vote (on a po ll ) 

for me/us and on my/our beha lf at the 17111 Annua l ge nera l meeting of the company, to be held through 

V.C. on the __ th day of September 2023 at __ hours . at Bhubaneswar (Pla ce ) and at any adjournm ent 

thereof in respect of such resolut ions as are indicated below: 

Reso lution No. 

1. ......... ... ..... ... .. ... ........ ..... . 

2 .... .................... .............. . 

Signed this ... .. . day of ......... 2023 

Affix 

Revenue 

Signature of shareholder Stamp 

Signature of Proxy holder(sj 
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HARIDASPUR PARADiP RAit\tVA~Y CCHVIP.1ANY tiii\JUTED 
Unit No.DCB.714-17,71

h Floor, DLF Cyber Cit y, Chan• rJKa 1t1du~tri2l Estatl~ , Bhub:inesl~tar- '751024 
Clf~: U4S;~030R:20CieiPLCU08S "9 

DUlECT()RS' REPORT 

DISTINGUISHED SHAREHOLDERS, 
Directors of your Company feel privileged to present the ~~ 7tr I-\!V1ual Repo 1~t of the Company conta ining 

sa lient fea t ures of operations and business of ycur Cor;1panv .. along w it h t he Audit ed t>.nnual Accounts and 
the Auditor's report for the year ended 3151 March 2023 

1. FINANCIAL REVIEW & STATE OF AFFAIRS 
During the year under review, the Financia l St3~ements oftbe Co1~.1pa ny for the ~.Y . 2.022.-23 along with the 
comparatives of F.Y. 2021-22 are prepared in c1ccordance witr, the provisions of the Com pa nies Act 2013, 

the Ind ian Account ing Standard (IND AS) prescri bed un :!er Sect ion 133 of t he Companies Act, 2013 re ad 
with appl icable Rules as amended from t ime to tim e . 

Highlights of the r- inancials of the! Company as on 3:llst M::1rch 2 )1.3 ~n:; as u 111~e!r: 

----------
Particulars 
Income from Operations (including Cont ract Re\tenue fr 

Concession Arrangement and Works Cont ract Service) 

Other Income 

Total Income 

Less: Employee benefits, Ope rating, CSR, and Other exr 
(including Contract Costs under Service Concession Arr. 

-·--- -
Profit / (Loss) before Interest and Depreciation/ ~.!_i!O' 

Less: Interest and Financia l Cost 
--·-·------

3.13 .1)1 2'.4,581.27. 

Ii~§L 
---

1.0,290.1.5 

Less: Depreciation and Amortization 
--- --

Net Profit/ (Loss) before Tam and Exr.eptiona1lterils 

Add/ (Less ): Exceptional items 

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 
Add/ (Less) : Taxes (net of credit) 

78.S6 i 8,047.37 
iR45}_ 6,243.70 

- I --
-

!38.451-- 6,243.70 
J19 .39 3,123.57 --

Net profit after tax ~19.06 3,120.13 
--

Other Comprehensive Income (net of ta:<es) 1.13 1.12 ---
:W.19 3,121.25 

. --1 Total Comprehensive Income ----~=~-=-j_=~!3 
A comparative position of Income from Rai lw<1v Operaticms are mentioned be~ow : 

INR in Lakhs 

·-·-----~+=~~-:--Particulars F.Y . . W 
Revenue from Railway Operations :15i,O 
~--------------~~-------------------------

Less: Operation & Maintenance Expenses -----~L}ob 

Net Income f rom Railway Otper_<~_t_lo_n_s _______________ _______ "~~~] 

- --
2:Z-:B f.V. 2:021-22. --
55.82 35,206.64 

~~!§. .. 11.078 .. 99 

71.64 :?.4,127.6S = -=.J _____ 

Z. CREDIT RATING 
During the F.Y. 2022-23, based on the positive attritn.tt2s, t he 6ri ckwrJrk rati ng c1 gency upgraded the outlook 
from A- to A outlook. 

3. SHARE CAPITAL 
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• year under review, the Company has not issued any shares to t he existi ng Shc.reholders (in F.Y. 2021-22 the 

Company had issued 11, 26, 26,735 number of equity sl·.ares at oa r amounting t o INRl, 126.27 lakhs}. The 
paid-up sha re capit al on 31st March 2023 is INR1, 30,000.00 lakhs (Same as of 31st March 2022). 

The Compa ny has only one c!ass of share i e. Equitv shares at par ~Ja l ue of INfUO/- each. 

4. DIVIDEND 

The Board of Directors of the Compa ny in its 69th BOD meeting held on 31st March 2023 declared an interim 

dividend of INR0. 12 (Twelve Pa ise only) per share on t he equity sh3re cap ita l o-f the Company, out of t he 

profits of the Company which is confirmed as a f inal d ividerd . 

5. CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF THE BUSINESS 

There were no significant changes in the nat ure of the bu5iness of the Comoany during the period under 

review. 

6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFEICTING THE F!!\1/.\NCIAL. PO~HION OIF THE COMPANY 

There were no material changes and comm itme nts, <>ffE~ cting ·.:he financ ial pas it ion of the company which 

has occurred between the end of the f inancial year to wh:ch t he f inancial statements relate and the date 

of the repo rt. 

7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KIEV MANAGERIAL PERS'Ji\1!\!fiL 

A. BOARD'S COMPOSITION 

The Board is collectively responsible for t he sustainab le success of the Com pan \I under the leadersh ip of 

t he Chairman . The Company's Boa rd has an optimum combination of an El<ecutive Directcr; I'Xon-El<ecutive 

Directors nominated by Sha reholders and Independent Jirectors. The same r E~fl e cts the diversitv in terms 

of discipline, professions, social groups, gender, and st;> keholder interest. 

B. STRENGTH OF BOARD 

The st rength of the Board as on 31st March 2023 is thi rtee n (13 } Directors, deta ils of which are mentioned 

below: 

Sl. No. Name of Director 

1 Smt. Seema Kumar 

2 Shri Debaraj Panda 

3 Shri Gurudas Brahma 

4 Smt. Gitanjali M ishra 

5 Shri Sanjay Kumar Mishra 

6 \ Shri Polamraju Lakshmi 
Haranadh 

7 Shri Bhushan Kuma r 

8 Shri Dillip Kumar Gupta 

9 Shri Mritunjay Pratap Singh 

10 Shri Saroj l<anta Pat l'a 

11 Shri Anurag 

12 Shri Satyaj it Mohanty 

13 Shri Manoranjan Mallick 

C. BOARD MEETINGS 

lE!:signation -----------
Chairman 

M anaging Dir t.ct 

_----~~--t_IN Number I 

----
07101823 r 

Independent L.!recto r 

l n de pend~l!__yvo .~en Di re 

Non-Executive Director n ~;vt. t 
I 

cto r 

om!nated by C 
of Odisha 

1--· --
Non-Executive Director n -'PT orn inated by r 

---
Non-Executive Director r 

Non--Execut ive Director n 
---

Non-E)(ecutive Director n 

-
Non-E)(ecutive D i~·ector n 

!\!on-Executive Director n 

·DCL aminated by~ 

om i nate tL~'L? 
aminated by R 

DCL 

VNL 

WNL 
-· 
tVNL 

Non-Executiv<> Di rector n 

ominat~r!_by F 

om ~~~!L!~_y_ F 
ominated by· C )fv'IC 

-
1\!on-E)(ecutive D!rector 1~ aminated by ( jovt. 
of Odisha 

-· 

I 

084'16106 

08505160 

09313483 

07295378 

08878688 
--

08203085 

08165734 

08550153 

10153033 

07682761 

10060496 

--

Five (5} Board meetings were held during the financial year ended 31st March ;wn, details of which are as 

mentioned below: 
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Sl. No. Particulars Date and mode of 1Vi£!eting 

1 65th BoD Meeting 25rh Ma·): 20~~2 th~)l!~~~_c ______ 
---------------

2 66th BoD Meeting 101h August 20n t hro ugh VC 
--

3 67th BoD Meeting 29th November 2.022 through VC 
-- ------------

4 68th BoD Meeting 28111 February 2.02:' i:h roL•gh VC mode 
------------

5 69th BoD Meeting 31't March 2023 t hrough VC mode 

D. DETAILS OF ATIENDANCE OF EACH DIRECTOR IN THE BOARD _M~TING _pU_RING THE PERIOD FROM 
015

T APRIL 2022 TO 315
T MARCH 2023 

Sl No Name of Director 

1 *Smt. Jaya Varma Sinha 

*Smt. Seema Kumar 

2 Shri Debaraj Panda 

3 Sh ri Gurudas Brahma 

4 Smt. Gitanjali Mishra 

5 Sh ri Sanjay Kumar Mish1·a, 

IRTS 

6 Shri Polamraju L. Haranad h 

7 Shri Di llip Kumar Gupta 

8 Shri Bhushan Kumar 

9 Shri Satyajit Mohanty 

10 Shri Bijay Kumar Dash* 

11 Shri Saroj Kanta Patra 

12 Shri Mritunjay Pratap Singh 

13 * Shri Ajit Kumar Pan d<:~ 

14 *Shri Anurag 

15 Shri Manornjan 1\tla llick 

i Des'gnation 

I 
j Chai n n.:m 

-----·------
Chairman 

Managi~_~Dire ctor -------
lndependE:nt Director 

! Independent Women Director 

I Non-Executive Direc'or nominatec 

Attended Held during I 
the t2nurE· 

----- .3 ,--3 ----!10 
- ------+-------l 

2 ! 2 
-----5---+~----5----1 
- ---------+·-- -----

~ I ~ 
-----------+------~ 

I by Govt. of Odisha 
I Non-Ex<~cutive Director n 

5 I 1 
. --.-------_J!----·----l 

I minatec 2 

I by PPT I 

I Non-Executive Director nominatec 3 
by SDCL 

Non-Executive Director nomina tec 2 
by SDCl 

----· 
Non-Exec 1tive Director norn inater 

byOMC 

-1--·---+--l J 5 2 + I I i\Jon-Elcecutive Dire~to;-:~~ rn!nate1 :I 
1 by Govt. of Odi~;na r-------- ----Non-Eltecut!ve Director nominate 

by RVNL 
cl 

Non-Executive Director nominate 

by 1\VI'!L 
------------------

I Non-Executive Director nominate 

I by R.VNL 

Non-Executive Director nominate 

by R'JNL 

Non-Executive Director nor.1inate 

by Govt. of Odisha 

·---
cl 

----
cl 

. --l-­
ei 

---
cl 

--- ----
4 3 

5 5 

5 3 

3 3 

2 2 

1 1 

* Appointment/ Cessation of Directors during 015TApri l 202.2 t o 31st March 2023 are mentioned above. 

E. CHANGES IN THE BOARD FROM 015r APRlL_20..f.~J0315T l\ilt•R.fJ:L2.0'4~ 

Sl. Name of Director 

No. 

1 Srnt. Jaya Varma Sinha 

2 Smt.Seema Kumar 

3 Shri Ajit Kumar Panda 

4 Shri An urag 

5 Shri Bijay Kumar Dash 

-
Design.::Hnn 

Part-time Cha 

Part-t ime Cha 22 .02 .2023 

Non-Executiv e Director nom inated 27 .12.2022 
by RVN L 

Non-Executiv 
--------------------+-------1 

e Director nominated 

by RV. il . 

Non-Executiv• e Di re ;:tor nominated 
by Govt. of o, :i i:;ha 
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Shri Manoranjan Mali ick-jNor -Executive Director nominated]- 02.03.2023 

L----'- -------------' bv Go~L oJ Odis_!'~--------- ----·- -----'---------' 

F. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
Pursuant to t he provisions of section 203 of the Compan:es Act, 2013, the Kev IVlanagerial Personnel of the 
Company are- Shri Debaraj Panda- Managing Director, Shri Susanta Kumar Scrtapa hv- Company Secreta ry 
and Shri Navin Agarwa l - Chief Financial Officer. There is no change in key ma nagement personnel during 
t he F.Y. 2022-23. 

8. COMMITTEES OF THE BOA~'I!D 
The Board has const ituted various Committees for t he smoot ard efficie nt f unct ioning of the Company 
and is responsible for cons tit uting, assign ing, co-opt ing_, and fixing the terms of reference of the 
Committees in accordance with t he existing laws. The Cha irmc:n, quorurn, and the te rms of reference of 
each Committee have been approved by the Boa rd. 

The draft minutes of the proceed ings of each Comm ittee Meeting are circulated t o the members of that 
Committee for their comments and thereafte r, noted by the respect ive Committee in its next meeting. The 
Board also t akes note of the minutes of the meetings of che Committees du lv c:rpproved by t he ir re5pective 
Chairman and recom mendat ions/ decisions of the Comrnitt2es are also plao: i before the Board fo r their 
consideration and approva l. 

The brief details of t he committee reqtlired to he ccmr.titu't:ed under the Ac:t are mentioned below: 

A. AUDIT COMM ITTEE [under Section 177 of the Ccmpanies Act, 2013 a -u:l f~ule 6 of the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 201Ll.] 

Objective 
The primary objective of the Audit Committee of i: hf~ Com!)any is to monitor and provide effective 
supervision of the management 's f inancia l report ing proce~ s to ensure <rccurat c~, t imely, and proper 
disclosures w ith t ransparencv, integrity, 2nd quaritv of f in;::ncia l re, or''ing. 

Audit Committee Charter 
The charter of the Aud it Committee is mentioned below: 
a. Oversight of the Company's financ ial reporting process and the disclosure of its financia l i11format ion to 
ensure that the financial statement is correct , suffic ient, ;:;nd credible. 
b. Recommend ing to the Board, the appo intment. re -appc intmE:nt, and remova l of the external auditor, 
fi xation of audit fee, and also approva l for payment of any other services. 
c. Reviewing with management t he annual fin"'ncial staterr>ents before submission to the Board, focusing 
primarily on: 

• Any change in the accounting policies a~d practi ces. 

.. Major accounting entries based on the exercise of j udgment by the mana.se rnent. 

• Qual ification on draft Audit Report. 

• Significant adj ustments arising out of the audit. 

• The ongoing concern assu mption. 

• Compliance wit h accounting standa rds. 

• Complia nce w it h legal requirements concern ing financial staterncr.ts . 
e11 Any relat ed party transactions i.e. transactions of the Companv of materia l nature, v;ith promoters or 
t he management, thei r subsid iaries or re lat ives. etc t hat may have potential confl ict with the interest of 
t he Com pany at large. 
d. Reviewing with management, exte rnal and intern al auciitors, c,dc-!quacy o-f internal controls systems 
e. Reviewi ng t he adequacy of the internal audit funct ;on, including the structure of t he internal audit 
department, st affing, and seniority of t he official heading the department, reporting structure coverage, 
and freq uency of inte rnal audit. 
f. Discussion w it h interna l auditors anv significant fincli!lgs anrJ fol low up thel'eon. 
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g. Reviewing the findings of any internal inve-st igat ior.s by t he imer a! auditors into matters where there 
is suspected f raud or irregularity or a failure of interna l control systems of a materia l nature and reporting 
the matter to the Board . 
h. Discussion with externa l aud itors before the audit commences on the nature and scope of the audit as 
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any are3 of concern. 

Composition 
The composition of t he Audit Committee for the F.Y 20n-23 is mr:> nt ioned below: 

,-------- ----- -------·----------------, 
Name of Director 1 iJiesign;;rtic:m 1 Statua 

t--S-h-ri_G_u_r_u_d-as-B-ra_h_m_a------+-l c_h_a.-=ir=-m-t'l_n ______________ r-lndepe r~;j~~t-6irector 

Smt. Gitanjali Mishra 1 Member I lndependeni:\Nome_n_D_i_re-c-to-r-----1 

J IVlember ! Non-Exe~;;t-,-;. D i re~tor Shri Bijay Kum ar Dash 
---------~ 

Attendance 
The Audit Committee he ld two meetings th rough video conferen re during the F.Y . 2022.-23 i.e . the 18th 

ACM Meeting and the 19th ACM Meeting he ld on 181
" /-\p;·!l :wn C!nd 20th Janua ry 202.3 respective ly at the 

registered office of the Company. The det ails of attenda 1ce are as rnentioned belo ~,1 : 

J Held duri-~=~th e·--· t\ttended 

4nure ~~---l-2--------
\ ~ 2 ~ 

------
51. No Name of the Director Designation 

1 Shri Gurudas Brahma Ch;:li rrna n 

2 Smt . Gitanjali Mishra Member 

3 Shri Bijay Kumar Dash Member 

The meetings of Audit Committee were also attended by the Managing Di r:'ctor. Ch ief Financial Officer, 
Internal Auditor, and representa t ives of the Stat uto ry Auditors a ~ invitees fo r t he rele 1ant proceed ings of 
the meetings. The recom mendations of the Aud; t Committee are usually accepted and implemented by 
the Board. The Audit Committee also acts as a Vig ii iV1echanis1 U'ldt?r Sect ion 177{9) read 1111ith Ru le 7 of 
the Compan ies (Meet ing of Board and its Power) Ru le, 2014 . 

B. NOMINATION AND REM UNERATION COMMITTE!; [under Section 178(1 ) of the Companies Act, 2013 

and Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of !3oard and its Powers) Ru les, 2014 ] 

Objective 
The purpose of the Nomination and Remuneration Corn n1Wee of the Company is t o discha rge the Board's 
responsibilities re lating to the remuneration of the Comp 01 ny's Executi'le Direct ors and other Key 
Managerial Personnel (KMPs). The Committee has overa ll r·_sponsibiiitv for approving and evaluating and 
recommending plans, policies, and programm2 re lating to the remuneration of Executive Directo rs and 
other KMPs of the Company. The terms of reference of t he Comm ~ttee are rr.entioned below: 
a. To appra ise the performance ofthe Managing Director & ot her I<M Ps; and 
b. To determ ine and recommend to the Board, co mpensation pavab le to Managing Director & other KMPs. 

Composition 
The Nomination and Remunera t ion Committee consists rnajoritv of lndepE:ndE!nt Di re ct ors. The 
composition of the Committee for the F.Y. 2022--23 is mentioned below: 

~Status 
-

Name of Director Design :;. tion 

Shri Gurudas Brahma Chairman ~epe!ld~! 
Smt. Gitanjali M ishra Mernber 1 !ndepend1:. 

nt Direct:or 
----------------1 
·nt Women Director 

Shri Ajit Kumar Panda Member I Non-Exen 1tive Director 

Shri Dillip Kumar Gupta IV! em be r I Non-ExeCI. rtive Director 
-

Attendance 
The NRC held one meetings through video conference elL-ring tl-11:: F.Y. 2.02L-23 i.e. the 7th NRC Meeting held 
on 27th Apri l 2022 t hrough VC. The deta ils of attendance are 3 ~ r'ler,tioned below: 

51. No 

1 

Name of the Director Designation 

Shri Gurudas Brahma Chai rman 
---'------
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--------l----, 
1 ~--~--------__j 



----r--------------1 
-+ j_ ---- ~· 1 

" 1 
~ ~ -r-1------: -----j-1-------i 

______ _j 

2 Smt. Gitanjali Mishra Member 

3 Shri Ajit Kumar Pa nda l'v1ember I 
I 

4 Shri D.K. Gupta Member 

C. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR} COMJY.!ff.I~! Ipursuant to cla use {o} of Sub-section (3) of 
Section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Comp;mies (Coroorate Soci31 Responsibility) R.ules, 2014] 

Terms of Reference 

a. Formulate and recommend to the Board a CSR. Po licy which shC11f indicate the aci:ivity or act ivit ies to be 

undertaken by the Company as specified in schedule VII of the Companies Acr, 201J; 
b. Approve t he amount of exoenditu re to be incurred on CSR activit ies; a nd 
c. Monitor and review the CSR Policy of the Compa ny f rom time to time anc make necessary changes. 

The Company has in place a CSR Po!ky duly <:!p!)roved by the ElorJ rd on the t•,ecornmendation of the CSR 

Committee w hich lays down t he philosophy and a[O!pro;3Jt: h towanl CS:R comn1itment. 

Composition 

The composi tion of the CSR Committee as of 31st Marc!:_;~_g23 is .!:.::'~~1t ioned I: ~~'}.~JV: 

:s·::a:tus ~ Name of Di rector Desifi~ation 

Shri Gurudas Brahma Chairt"f'lan lnrlependent Director _____ _ 

Shri Debaraj Panda Member --1-~_Jl<'~_.t~_]ing [~~!:_~~or ______ _ 
Shri Saroj Kanta Patra M ember t~o n - Execut ive Director 

-------

Attendance 

The CSR Committee he ld one meeting through video conferer.c<? during the i=.v. 2022-2.3 i.e . the 04th CSR 
Meeting held on 20th Janua ry 2.023. The decails of attenciar;ce - re e>s men i o t~e cl be!ow: 

\ Held durit:,g thed'_A_t-·tE-~n-,d-e-d----, 

__j t e-nure _____ _ 

___j_l__________ _) __ ------j 
! 1 ~--------~ 

__ ll______ JT 

Sl. No Name of the Director Desier1atio n 

1 Shri Gurudas Brahrna Chairman -
2 Shri Debaraj Panda Member 

3 Shri Saroj Kanta Patra MEmber 
··-----

Compliance w ith the applicab l e__l!;!ro~isiQI!§ anclr!~l.~o;_:!_h:~D:~Jl! 

The Compa ny is to spend in every financial vear at least 2% of t he average net pre fi ts of the Company rna de 

during the three immed iate ly preceding fi na ncb l vears in pu rs uance of its CS ~ policy. Whe e t he Com pany 

fails to spend such amount, the Board shall in its report specify the rea sons f·x not spend ing the amount. 

The Company spent t he entnre CSR expenditute meai'lt for f. V. 10?.2-23 aml lhr.mce no amount is carried 

forward to the next financial year. The details of cmnputations ~:; i:Je r section 19:3 and section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are me11tioned below: 

INH in Lakhs 
Particulars r--~J:Gii~i~! - - f.v·:-~~(r/.0-2l F - !-=-.)-.• -2019-20 

Net Profit as per Section 198 I_ 614~]LL_~-==~~=~i~:.68 -===-1~5.05) 
Ave rage Net Profit as per Sect ion 135 ~-- 3.079.42 

2% of Ave rage Net Profit as per Section Bsr- 61.59 

Details of CSR Activities and Expenditure incurred during F.Y. 2022-23 are rmmUoned below: 
CSR amount (INR 61,58,840/-) was contributed t o al i the three districts( i.e . Jajpur, kenderapara and 

Jagatsinghpur) in equal amount under "IVIO SCHOOl. ABI·HYt.N PARICH.'UANI~ SANGATHAI\!" in the project 

Areas as suggested by the District Magistrates, in t erms of p~ov ision contained in Schedu le VII of 
Companies Act 2013. Annua l Report on CSH activ i!:ies du :-ing- F.Y. 2022-2:3 is enclosed as Annexure-A 

D. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMI'VjJJT~.J; 

During the year under review, the Company was not required to const it ut.: ~ a Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee under Section 178(5) of t he Companies Act, .W13. 
9. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

Shri Gurudas Brahma (DIN: 08476106) Heg. No: IDDB- DI-202002-012.165 with IICA {Indian Institute of 
Corporate affairs) Retd. Chief Operat ions Mar;ager, ECo. Gitanja!i M ishra (DIN : 
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08505160}, Reg . No: IDDB-DI-202002-014622. with IICA (Indian Institute of Corpo ra te affairs) Retd. General 
Manager, State Bank of India, were Independent Directors on the Board of t he Company pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 149 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment 2nd ,ual ification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014. 

A. DEClARATION FROM INDEPENDENT_QIRE~.I.9J.~ 

The Board has received decla rations from the Independent Directors confirming that they meet the criteria 
of independence as la id down in section 1~-9(6) of the Comoan!es Act, 2013 c,nd there has been no change 
in t he circu mstances which may affect their status as Independent Director of the Company during the 
year. 

B. SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRIECTQ8 
The Independent Directors of t he Company shal l hold at le3st one meeting in <1 vear, without the attendance 
of Non-independent Directors and members of the rn?.ni'lg•::ment. The meeting sha ll: 
a. Review the perform ance of Non-independent Directo1·s and the Soard as a w hole; 
b. Review the performance of the Chairperson ofthe Compan'J, taking into account the views of Executive 
Directors and Non-executive Directors; and 
c. Assess the quality, quantity, and timeliness of the -f lovv of informa-:ion between the Company 
management and the Board that is necessa ry fo1· the Bor.rd to eff-::ct ive l•t ~111d reasonably perfo rm their 
duties. 

d. A separate meeting of Independent Directors of thP Cc.rnpanv for the F.V.202.2. -23 we1s held on 22"d 
March 2023 and was attended by both the lndepenciE:nt Dlr-=cto rs. 

lO.DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATE!I./IENT 

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3}(c) of t he Corr.panies /\ct. 2013 w ith respect to the 
Directors' Responsib ility Statement, the Board of Directo1·s of t he Companv hereby states and confirm that: 
a. in the preparation of the annua l accounts, the app!icilble accounting standards have been followed 
along with proper explanat ion relating to rnate ria I depa riUI'es; 
b. the di rectors have selected such accounting pol ides a:1d appl ied them consi!;tent ly and made judgments 
and est imates that are reasonable and prudent so as to gi 1Je a t rue and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the Compa ny at the end of t he financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company fo r "Che year under 
rev iew; 
c. the di rectors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of <~dequ a te accounting records 
in acco rd ance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for sa feguardi 'l g the assets of t he Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other im:-gularities; 
d. the directors have prepared the annual acwunts on a gc ing concern b:3si~:. 
e. the directors have devised pro per systems to ensuw compliance with the provis1ons of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and oper3ting effect 'vely . 

ll.CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Com pany will continue to uphold the true spi rit of Corporate Governance and implement the best 
governance practices. It emphasizes transparency, C1ccountabil!ty, eth ica i operating practices; and 
professio nal management. 

12.EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN 

The ext racts of the Annual Return as at 31st March 2.023 .. fcrms part of th is report and is enclosed as 
Annexure-B. 

13.SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES, AND ASSOC!J.l,TE COi\tlP,AJ\!IES 
The compa ny has no subsidia ries, joint ventures, or associate Corr.panies. 

14.DEPOSITS 
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15.PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, OR I~!VI:STME~!TS 

Duri ng the year under review, the Company has neith·=r given leans, nor given any guarantee or security 
to any person or Body Corporate, nor made any investment pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

16.SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY l~EGULATORS/ COUHlrS/ TRIBUNALS IMPACTING 

THE COMPANY'S OPERATIONS 

There are no significant mater ial orders passed by t he regulato r/ courts wh ich wou ld impact t he going 
concern status of the Company and its future operatio11s. 

17.PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS WITH RElATED PARn' TRAI\!SAC:TiONS 

During the year t here were no new Contracts or Arrangernents w:th R.elated Pa rties referre d to in Section 
188(1) oft he Compa nies Act, 2013. Details of trans<:Jct ians w lth rElated partie~; d ring t he year are disclosed 
in financial statements. 

18.COMPANY'S POLICY ON DIRECTORS' J!1PPOINTMENT A[\10 RF.:MlJNERATION INCI..UD1NG CRITERIA FOR 

DETERMINING QUAUFICATIONS,POSITIVE ATIRH~l.lTES INDEPEr11DENCE OF t~, ID!RECTOR AND OTHER 

MATTERS PROVIDED UNDER SUBSECTION(3) OF S:ECTION 178 OF THE COMPJI\NIES ACT,2013. 

Except one post of Whole -Ti iT'e Managing Director, all other D! rectors in the BoD of t he Company are 
representative Directors (part-time non-executive ) nor~ • n ated by its S areholders under provisions of 
Shareholders and Share Subscription Agreement . The Nominee Directors do not draw an remune ration 
from HPRCL. 

For appointment of Managing Director an terms and conditions i.E~ . mand<:r':-:mt educat ion qual ifications, 
relevant experience, positive attributes remu neration~; etc. are approved by t he Bt D directly/on the 
recommendations of MD selection Committee/NRC Commit tee, as per req irements of the Companv. 

19. RISK MANAGEMENT POUCY 

The Board is of the opinion that, the project asseTs ate adequat elv insu red to safegua rd the interest of the 
Company. 

20. ADEQUACYOF INTERNAl FINANCIAl. CONTROL w rm REFIERENCE TO THE fiNJ\NCI Al STATEMI:NTS 

The Compa ny has in place adequate internal financial con'\ro ls with refereno~ to the Financial Statements. 
During the year under review, no report able materic.;l 1neaknesses in t e design or operation were 
observed. 

21. AUDITORS 

A . STATUTORY AUDiTOR 

M/s SBN & Associates, Chartered Accountants were .appoint ed by the Comp1ro lle r an d Auditor Genera l of 
India as Statutory Audit or of the Company for the F.Y. 2022-23. 

B. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 

The Company had appointed M/ Saroj Ray & Associates, Bhubaneswar as Secretarial Auditor of the 
Company under Section 204(3 ) ofthe Comp;:mies Act, 2013 . 

C. INTERNAL AUDITOR 

The Com pany had appointed M/s. La!dash &Co, Chartered Account2 nts as lnt2rnal Aud itor of the Company 
for t he F.Y. 2022-23. 

22. AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Independent Auditor's Report does not conta in any qual ification, reserviltion, or adverse remark. The 
issues highl ighted by them under "Emphasis of matter" are s<::lf-exo lanatory . The independent Auditor's 
Report is an integral part of the financial statern-.::nt s (endosed) . 

A. The Company has mainta ined proper registers and records as per the requ irements of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The Secretarial Audito r's Report for the vear E'nded 31st March 20LJ. i: enr:losed as Annexure -C 
to the Board's Report in this Annual Report. 
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B. The Report of Statutory Auditors of the Companv is l'er.e ived and circulate d t o t P. Shareholders along 
with notice of Annual Genera l Meeting. 

23 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSOIRPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS, AND 

OUTGO 

The information pertai ning to t he conservation of energy, technology a.:.so rption, Fore ign Excha nge 
Earnings, and outgo as required under Section B4 (3)(rn) of t he Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3 ) 
of the Com pa nies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 shall be t reated as NIL .as the Company is presently neit her energy 
intensive nor technology intens ive. 

24. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNI I\lGS AND OUTGO ETC 

The Compa ny has neither earned nor spent any foreign exchang2 du ring t he period under review. 

25. SEXUAL HARASSMENT OIF WOMEN ,~T WORl{ PtACE {PR!EVH4T!ON, PROIHfiBITION, AND REDRESSA'-) 

ACT, 2013 

Since there is no women employee at the establ ishment, t he Internal Corr plai nts Committee under t he 
Sexua l Harassment of Women at Workp lace (P reventioro, Proh ibition and l;,edre::; sa l) Act 201.3 is not yet 
constituted . 

26. SECRETARIAl STANDARDS 

The Directors state that applicable Secretari al Standards t ave een duly fo ll c•wed by t he Company. 

27. DETAILS OF MONEY ACCEPTED FROM DIRECTORS 

During the period under review, the Companv has not accepted money in the form of an unsecured loan 
f rom the directors or relatives of the direct ors of t he Company . 

28. FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDf:R SECfl mJ 14.::5(12), OTHf.ft THJ\N THOSE WHICH ARE 

REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAl GOVERI\!MENT. 

The Statutory Auditors have not report ed a y incident of fraud to t he Board of Directors of t he Company. 

29. DETAILS OF APPLICATION/ ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 11\tS;OU/ENCY AND BAI\II(RUPTCY 

CODE, 2016 

Neither any application was made nor any proceeding is pending under tr e Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016 {31 of 2016) during the financial yea r . 

30. ACKNOWlEDGEMENTS 

The Directors of your Com pany acknowledge with a rle2p sense of appr~:· ci at ion t he cooperat ion and 
support received f rom the M in istry of Ra ilways (M oR) .. Gove rnment of Odisha, and other Government 
agencies and look forward to their co m:inued support in the future. The Directors of your Company also 
convey their gratitude to M/s UCO Ban . for the confidence reposed in the Co mpany. The Directors place 
on record t ei r appreciation for t he officia ls of t he Comot roller & Auditor General of Ind ia for the ir 
guidance during the year under review. The Directors acknow ledg·= ·· h 1 ~ suggestions received from 
Statutory, Secretaria l & Internal Auditors. 

Your directo rs also acknowledge t hei r deep appreciation for t he unstinted support and contr ibution made 
by the management and employees in t he working ofth 1~ Co m:Jany. Our resil ience to mee·~ ch.:JIIenges was 
made possible by their hard work, sol idarity, cooperat io 11,. and support ar.c! t he Board looks rorward to the 
same in the futu re. 
For & On behalf of the Board of Directors 

Dat ed: 21.09.2.023 

~ 
f Deb~ raj ?and~t] 

M~11aging Dii·,~ctm 

DIN: 0710HQ3 
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SARQJ RAY & ASSOCIATES 
CoOMPANY SECRETARIES 

FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 sr MARCH 2023 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 201.4] . 

To 
The Members, 
Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited , 
Unit No.-DCB-714, 715, 716 & 717, 7th Floor, 
DLF Cyber City, Chandaka Industrial Estate, 
Bhubaneswar, Khordha, Odisha-751024. 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company 
Limited, (hereinafter ca lled 'the Company' for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023. 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conduct/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers , minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit , 
we hereby report that in our opin ion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the 
financial year ended on 31 st March , 2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance 
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited for the financial 
year ended on 3P1 March, 2023, according to the provis ions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), and the Rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act , 1956 ('SCRA') and the Rules made there 
under; (Not applicable during the audit period) 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there 
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable during the audit period) 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992('SEBI Act'):-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Being an unlisted Public Company not 
applicable during the Audit Period); 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (S ubstantia l Acquisition of Shares 
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (Being an unlisted Public Company not 
applicable during the Audit Period); 
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c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015 (Being an unlisted Public Company Not applicable 
during the Audit Period); 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Being an unlisted Public Company Not 
applicable during the Aud it Period); 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits 
and Sweaty Equity) Regulations , 2021 (Bei ng an unl isted Public Company 
not applicable during the Audit Period); 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non­
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 (Being an unlisted Public 
Company not applicable during the Aud it Period); 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations , 1993 (Bei ng an unlisted Public Company not 
appl icable during the Audit Period) ; 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2021 (Being an unlisted Public Company not applicable 
during the Audit Period) ; 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 
2018 (Being an unlisted Public Company not applicable during the Audit 
Period) ; 

(vi ) The other laws as may be applicable specifically to the Company are: 

1. The Forest (Conservation) Act, 1980. 
2. Environment (Protection) Act, 1986. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards 
(SS-1 & SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) . 

During the period under review, as per the explanations and clarifications given to us by the 
Management, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules , Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above. 

We further report that ; 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Director, Non-Executive Directors, Women Director and Independent Directors. The changes 
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review 
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for 
seeking and obtain ing further information and clari fi cations on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. However, shorter notices have been 
given for conducting a few of the Board meetings in compliance with the provisions of the 
Act. 
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We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with appl icable laws, ru les, regulat ions and guidelines. 

We further report that; 

During the period under review, the company has no specific events or actions which are 
having a major bearing on the Company's Affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, 
rules , regulations , guidelines , standards, etc. 

Place: Bhubaneswar 
Date: September 02, 2023 

For Saroj Ray & Associates 

Com~ ::::ries r 

cs s~ Jumar RayM 
Managing Partner 

M. No. 5098, CP No. 3770 
PR No. 976/2020 

UDIN : F005098E000919022 

(This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and 
forms an integral part of this report) 
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To 
The Members, 
Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited , 
Unit No.-DCB-714, 715, 716 & 717, 7th Floor, 
DLF Cyber City , Chandaka Industrial Estate, 
Bhubaneswar, Khordha, Odisha-751 024. 

Our report of even date is to be read along with th is letter. 

Continuation Sheet ............... . 

Annexure A 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 
based on our audit. 

2. We have fo llowed the aud it practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonab le assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial 
records. The verifications were done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are 
reflected in secretarial records . We believe that the processes and practices, fo llowed 
by the Company provide a reasonable basis for our opinion . 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 
Books of Accounts of the company. 

4. Wherever req uired , we have obtained the management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was 
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Place: Bhubaneswar 
Date: September 02 , 2023 
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For Saroj Ray & Associates 

Com~~ Secretaries 

~~ 
cs Sa j Kumar Ray, fC{} 

Managing Partner 
M. No. 5098 , CP No. 3770 

PR No. 976/2020 
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EXTRACT OF AN NUAL RETURN 

As on f inancial yea r ended on 3l't M arch 2023 

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

1. CIN U452030R2006PLC008959 

2. Registration Date 25th September 2006 

3. Name of the Company Haridaspur Paradip Rai lway Company Ltd 

4. Category /Sub-category of Non-Government Pub lic Lim ited Company 
the Company 

5. Address of the Registered Unit No. DCB-714-17, DLF Cyber City, 7th Floor, Chandaka 
office & contact deta ils Industrial Estate, Bhubaneswar, Orissa, India - 751024 

6. Whether listed company No 

7. Name, Address & contact NSDL Database Management Lim ited, 

detai ls of the Registrar & 04th Floor, Trade World A Wing, Kama la Mills Compound, 
Transfer Agent, if any. Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Pa re l, Mumbai -400013 

Website: htt[1s:LLwww.ndml.in 
Phone : 022 4914 2594, 022 4914 2597 (D) 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSIN ESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COM PANY {All the business activit ies contributing 10 % or 

more of the total turnover of the company shal l be stated) 

51. No. Name and Descript ion of main NIC Code of t he % t o total turnover of the company 
products I services Product/service 

1 Execution of Haridaspur Paradip - --

B. G. Rail Link project 
To be checked 

III.PARTICULATRS OF HOLDING,SUBSIDARY AND ASSOCIATES COMPANY 

51. No. I Name and Address I CIN/GLN 
of the Company I 

Ho lding/ 

Associates 
Subsidiary/ I % of shares I Applicable 

held section 
NIL 

IV.SHARE HOLDING PATIERN (Equit y Share Capit al Breakup as percent age ofTot al Equity) 
A. Category-wise Share Holding 

Cat egory of No. of Shares held at t he beginning of t he No. of Shares held at t he end of t he year [As 
Shareholders year[As on 31-March-2022] on 31-March-2023] 

- iii .... iii ro .... -- .... VI ro .... VI ro u ro 0 QJ ro u iii 0 QJ 
E "iii .... 1- ... E "iii .... 1- ... 
QJ > 0 .... ro 

QJ > 0 .... ro 
..c: 1- 0 ..c: ..c: 1- 0 ..c: 

0 Vl 0 Vl c.. 

* 
c.. 

* 
A. Promoters 

(1) Indian 

a) Ind ividual/ - - - -

HUF 

b) Central Govt - - - -

c) St ate - - - -

Govt(s) 

d) Bod ies Corp. 420000000 - 420000000 32.31 420000000 - 420000000 32.31 

{including 

rep resentative 
sha reholders 
on beha lf of 

body 
corpo rat es) -/." 0 " 

a~ ( ~ ~~ttar}.~} . 021 ~ '§: 
".<?<tel-l • 90~ 

... 
ro 
QJ 

QJ > 
tl.O QJ 
c: ..c: 
~ .... 
u tl.O 

* ·~ :J 
"C 

-

-

-

-



e) Banks I Fl -

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the No. of Shares held at the end of the year[As ... 
ro 

Shareholders year[As on 31-March-2022] on 31-March-2023] CLl 
CLl > tll) 

CLl iti - c: 
..... iti - ro ro ..c: 

- ..... "' ..... ro - .... "' ..c: ..... ro u ro 0 CLl ro u 0 CLl 
E 'iii ..... 1- ... E 'iii ro 

1- .... u bO ..... 
CLl > 0 - ro 

CLl > 0 - ro 'CR. c: 
0 ..c: 1- 0 ..c: 

0 ..c: 1- 0 ..c: ·;: 
0.. Vl 0.. Vl ::I 

'CR. 'CR. "C 

f ) Any ot her -

Total 420000000 - 420000000 32.31 420000000 - 420000000 32.31 -

shareholding 
of Promoter 
(A) 

B. Public - - - - -

Shareholding 

1. Inst itutions - - - - -

a) Mutual - - - - -

Funds 

b) Banks I Fl - - - - -

c) Central Govt - - - - -

d) State 94993134 142800000 237793134 18.29 94993134 142800000 237793134 18.29 -

Govt(s) 

e) Ventu re - - - - -

Capital Funds 

f) Insurance - - - - -

Companies 

g) Fils - - - - -

h) Foreign - - - - -

Venture 
Capital Funds 

i) Others - - - - -

(specify) 

Sub-total: (B) 94993134 142800000 237793134 18.29 94993134 142800000 237793134 18.29 -

(1) 

2. Non-
Institutions 

a) Bodies Corp. 471785760 31900000 503685760 38.74 471785760 31900000 503685760 38.74 -

i) Ind ian - - - - - - - - -

ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -

b) Individuals - - - - - - - - -

i) Individua l - - - - - - - - -

share-holders 
holding 
nominal share 
capita l upto 
INRl lakh 

2. Non-
Institutions 

ii) Individual - - - - - - - - -

shareholders 
holding -
nominal share 
capita l in I I' 
excess of INRl 

)22 lakh 
., 
J 



Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the No. of Shares held at the end of the year ... 
Shareholders year[As on 31-March-2022] [As on 31-March-2023] ro 

Q) 
Q) > 
tl.O Q) - ro 1:: 

ro ro ro ro .s::. .... 
0~ 

.... .... Ill .J:. 
.... 

ro u ro ro u ro 0 Q) 

E 'iii .... 1-; E 'iii .... 1- ... u tl.O 
> 0 > 0 ro 

'*' 
1:: 

Q) 0 i Q) ...... 
0 .J:. 1- 0 .J:. 1- 0 .J:. ·;: 

0.. 0.. Ill :s 

'*' '*' "C 

Others (specify) 

Non Resident - - - - - - - - -

Indians 
Overseas - - - - - - - - -

Corporate 
Bodies 
Foreign - - - - - - - - -

Nationals 
Cle aring - - - - - - - - -

Members 

Authorities 138521106 - 138521106 10.6 138521106 - 138521106 10.66 
6 

Foreign - - - - - - - - -

Bodies- DR 

Sub-total 610306866 31900000 642206866 49.4 610306866 31900000 642206866 49.4 -
(B)(2): 

Total Public 705300000 174700000 880000000 67.6 705300000 174700000 880000000 67.69 -

Sh arehold ing 9 

(C)=(B)(l)+ 
(B)(2) 

C. Shares - - - - -

held by 
Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs 

Grand Total 1125300000 174700000 1300000000 100 1125300000 174700000 1300000000 100 -

(A+B+C) 

B. Shareholding details of the Company 

Sl. Shareholder's Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the ... 
the year 

ro 
No. Name year cil Q) 

... > 
ro Q) 

Ill > Ill > .J:. .J:. 
Q) 0 Q) 0 Ill .... 

Ill ... 1:: .... Ill 
Ill ... 1:: .... tl.O Q) ro ro ~-"C 
Q) ro ro ~-"C 

Ill 1:: ... Q) ... Q) 1:: 
ro .J:. a. ... "C Q) ... ro .J:. a. ... "C Q) ... Q) ·;: 

.J:. Ill E ro Q) ._ ro .J:. Ill E ro Q) ._ ro tl.O :s 
Ill - 0 .J:. tl.O Q) .J:. Ill - 0 .J:. tl.O Q) .J:. 1:: "C ro Ill ro Ill ...... .... u 1/l"C..c ...... .... u 1/l"C..c ro tl.O 0 0 Q) - Q) E ro 0 0 Q) - Q) E ro .J:. 

0 
.... 

.J:. 0 c::: :s .... 0 
.... 

.J:. 0 c::: :s .... u ·= - .... 
'*' 

u 0 - .... 
'*' 

u 0 

'*' 
::!:! z 0 1:: .... z 0 1:: .... - - 0 

'*' 
0 Q) 

'*' 
0 Q) 

.J:. 

1 Rail Vikas Nigam 389999995 30.00 - 389999995 30.00 - -

Limited 
(Promoter) 

2 Rajesh Prasad (on 01 - - 01 - - -
behalf of RVNL} 

3 Sanjeeb Kumar 01 - - 01 - - -

(on behalf of 
RVNL} ~ 

?>~a~i~ ,~,- ~ 
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Sl. 
No. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

Shareholder's 
Name 

Ajit Kumar Panda 
(on behalf of 
RVNL) 
Pushp Mitra 
Sharma (on 
behalf of RVNL) 

Bansh Narain 
Singh (on behalf 
ofRVNL) 

Sagarmala 

Development 
Company Limited 

The Governor of 
the State of 
Odisha 

Paradip Port 

Trust 

Odisha Mining 
Corporation 
Limited 

Esse! Mining and 
Industries 
Limited 
(Promoter) 

12 Rungta Mines 

Limited 

13 MSPL Limited 

14 Jindal Steel & 
Power Limited 

15 Steel Authority of 
India Limited 

16 Odisha Industrial 
Infrastructure 
Development 
Corporation 

Total: 

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year 

Vl 
Q) ... 
ro 

..s::: 
Vl ,._ 
0 

0 
z 

01 

01 

01 

336788058 

237793134 

138521106 

109997702 

30000000 

30000000 

15000000 

5000000 

5000000 

1900000 

1300000000 

Vl > 
~ r::: 
ro ro 

..s::: a. 
Vl E 
ro o 
.... u .s Q) 
,._..s::: o;::: 
'* 0 

25.91 

18.29 

10.66 

8.46 

2.31 

2.31 

1.15 

0.38 

0.38 

0.15 

100 
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Shareholding at the end of the 
year 

Vl 
Q) ... 
ro 

..s::: 
Vl ,._ 
0 

0 
z 

01 

01 

01 

336788058 

237793134 

Vl 

~ ~ 
ltJ ltJ 

..s::: a. 
Vl E 
ro o 
.... u 
0 Q) 
.... ..s::: 
'0,:::: 
'* 0 

25.91 

18.29 

138521106 10.66 

109997702 8.46 

30000000 2.31 

30000000 2.31 

15000000 1.15 

5000000 0.38 

5000000 0.38 

1900000 0.15 

1300000000 100 

... 
ro 

I Q) 

~ > 
ro aJ 

..s:::..s::: 
Vl .... 

r::: ~ 
Q) ·;: 

tl.O :I 
r::: "C 
ro tl.O 

-£ ·= '*::!:! 0 
..s::: 



C. Change in Promoters' Shareholding- Same as mentioned in III.B 

Sl. Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding 
No. beginning of the year during the year 

No. of %of total No. of %of total 
shares shares of the shares shares of the 

company company 
At the beginning of the year Same as mentioned in III.B 
Date-wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the year specifying t he 

reasons for increase I decrease (e.g. allotm ent 
/transfer I bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 

At the end of the year 

D. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: {Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of 
GDRs and ADRs): Same as mentioned in III.B 

Sl. For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding 
No. Shareholders beginning of the year during the year 

No. of %of total No. of %of total 
shares shares of shares shares of the 

the company 
company 

At the beginning of the year Same as mentioned in III.B 

Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters 

Shareholding during the year specifying the 

reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment I 
transfer I bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

At the end of the year 

E. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

Sl. Shareholding of each Directors and each Key Share holding at the Cumulative Shareholding 

No. Managerial Personnel beginning of the year during the year 

No. of % of total No. of %of total 
shares shares of shares shares of the 

the company 
company 

At the beginning of the year Ni l 

Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the year specifying the 

reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment I 
transfer I bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 

At the end of the year 

V.INDEBTEDNESS- Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/ accrued but not due for 

payment. 
Amount in INR 

Particulars Secured loans Unsecured Deposits Total 

excluding deposits loans Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 

financial year 

i) Principal Amount 1200,02,89,308 - - 1200,02,89,308 

ii) Interest accrued and due on - - - -

borrowings during the F.Y. 

iii) Interest accrued but not due h ~oR~ - -

Total {i+ii+iii) 1200,02,~-)t" "'s..'~-t.Y '\ - 1200,02,89,308 

025 (t_~l 



Particulars Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total 
excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness 

Change in Indebtedness during the -

financial year 

* Addition - - - -

* Reduction - - - -
Net Change - - - -- -
Indebtedness at the end of the 

financial year 

i} Principal Amount 1200,02,89,308 - - 1200,02,89,308 
ii} ) Interest accrued and due on - -

borrowings during the F.Y. 

iii} Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 1200,02,89,308 - - 1200,02,89,308 

VI.PENALTIES /PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

Type Section of the Brief Details of Penalty Authority Appeal 
Companies Act Description /Punishment I [RD I NCLT/ made, 

Compounding fees COURT] if any (give 
imposed Details) 

A. COMPANY 

Penalty Nil 

Punishment 

Compound ing 

B. DIRECTORS 

Penalty Nil 

Punishment 

Compounding 

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 

Penalty Nil 

Punishment 

Compounding 
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HARIDASPUR PARAD~P RA;L\t\fAY COMP,I~~i~Y l~MITED 
Unit No.DCB.714-17,7th Floor, DLF Cyb€1' City) Chandaka Industrial Estate_, l~hubaneswar- 751024 

til\!: U452030R2006PlC008.959 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTXVITIES FOR THE F.Y. 2022.-:?.3 TO BE 
INCLUDEDIN THE BOARD'S REPORT 

Sr. No. 
1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

(1) 

SI. 
No 

Pmticulars 
-------------------------, 

Rernar.s 
A Brief outline of the Company's C 

-----------------1 
SR ~c~;F. pol icy oTHPRCL is approve by the Board of 

policy, including overview of proje cts Dire-ctors of the Company n compliance to the section 
ken ~~3 5 and Sch~dule VII of Companies Act 2013, and rules or programs proposed to be underta. 

and a reference to the web- link to · 
CSR policy and project or programs 

thJmed th""'" -

SR IShri Gurudas Brahma- Ch:~-ci_r_m_a_n_f.,..J-nd.,-e_p_e-nd._e_n_t_D_ir-e-ct-·o4r) 

1
Shri Dcbaraj Panda - Member (Managing Director) 

The Composition of the (:I 

Committee. 
IShri Saroj Kzmta Patra- Member (Di rector) 

----------
Average net profit of the Company 
last three financial years. 

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two. 
cent. ofthe amount as in item 3 abo 

Details of CSR spent during the 
financial year: 
a) Total amount to be spent for 1:b .e IN . . 6 1. 58.840 

financial year 
b) Amount unspent, if any; 
c) Manner in which the amount ~" ' 

spent during the financial yea;:· 
detailed below 

is j ____________________________ _j 
(2) (3) , (4) r) =- I , 
cs Sector in which the Projects or An:.ount \ Arr 
R Project is covered programsout!ay spe 

pro (1) Local (budget) t 
ject a:cea or p!:oject or pr 

' other or I ;)rograms 
acti 

I 
(2) ;,;i.se pro 

vity Spedfy s, 

1~~~1~t-·T1_Cu~ula b~~~n~ 
nt on tive suent: 
he exoendi Direct or 

ojeet:> I t~ll'e through 
or 

1 
unto to impleme 

'Suh- reporti agency 
Identifi 

I 
the State h 

gram I the nting 

eads: 1 ng 
ed. and 

district 
where 

I 

prqjects I I 

I 
or i 

I 
progran_ I 

I I swas 
undertake 

I 
D 
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11 Schedule *CSR amount of (IN R ! -
VII (ii ) 6 1.58.840/-) eq ually cor.L ;buted\ 

to all the three distri crs (.Jajpur, i 
Kendarapara and Jagatsinghpur) 
under "MO SCHOOL 
ABH!Y AN PARICHALANA 
SANGATHAN" in the project 
Areas as suggested by the I 
District Magistrates. in terms of I 
provision conta ined in Schedule 1 

VII of Compan ies Act 2.0 13 ! 
TOTAL - I 

I 

·11 !R.6l .5!l,&40 1 ___ ----~~ llNR. 61 ,58.S40 

I ! I 
I I 

I I 

1 I 
_L _____ I ------+--~ 
_j~3.84~---~ _-____ j_·· --- 16 1.58,840 

·x·GlVe detmls of 1mplementmg agency: 

1. In case the company has failed to spend the t:vvo per cent of th2 averag£~ net profit of the last three 
financial years or any part thereof, the reasons for _ ot spending the amount in ito Board report. 
Nil 

2. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR 
Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectiv"3 and Pol;cy of the company. 

(Managing Director) 

I 
_l_ ____ _ __ j 
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BAJIPADA STATION BUILDING, CH:35895m/HDS 

MARSHAGHAI ROAD STAION BUILDING, CH:50620m/HDS 



SIJU STATION BUILDING 
[SIJU] 

SIJU STATION BUILDING 

SIJU YARD (SIJU) 

S IJU YARD [ S IJU] 



STATEMENT OF FINAL 

ACCOUNTS 

• 

• 



.. 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023 
Pa rticular::; 

:1. ASSETS 
i·J Non-Current Assets 
! (a) Property , P!ant and Equipment 
I (b) Right of use assets 

'" Jll 

(c) Other Intangible Assets 
(d) Intangible Assets Under Development 
(e) Financial Assets 

(I) Others 
(I; L.:Oefe rred Tax .A.ssc ts (Net) 
(g) Other Non-Current Assets 

Current A.ssets 
(il ) Financial Asse~s 
(il Trade Receivables 
(1i) Ce1sil and Cash Equiva lents 
(i! ;) Bank l::.n lances other than (ii) above 
(tv) Others 
:b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 

\e) ()Uwr Cur~E.: n.~~s~~s --·--· 
Tota ! Assets 

F Q,JITY .<'\ f\:D L!ABIL.ITIES 

! ~ Et; u ity 
; :1) t:quily Sl'lare Ci:!pita l 
(: ) Clt!": ·~ r Equity 

:(t) l~ o n-c ur r '.mt liabilities 
i (a) Fi1 .ancial Liabilities 

(:1 Bar ·ovv:ng 
(i ,::; l u:. :;c L iEJ bi! i ~ ;,_.s 

(i:) -:·r :-1 dc~ /...Jc1'i'.:, LJ : e ~J 

a)To lsl Outstanding Due to Micro 
c ntt:' rp <' t::.es and small enterp,·ises 
t.)'l olo! Oulstanding Due to credi tors other 
til'.l n ! ',~ : Go enterprises and smal l enterpri ses 

/ t)) P,-(:vi s!ons 
10:: ) Dct'srPd Tax liabilities (Net) 

i(ii ) ·: :F re t!( U ;., bi li t ies 
I (<.: 1 ;·-i >'lc.ncial Liabiii!ies 

(i) L-3 orrowtn g 
(tS) !_ease Liablii ti es 
H irc.d•:; Paya bi e ~; 

a)Total Outstanding Due to Micro 
e:ne;~i ci sc~ ;md small enterprises 
c) lo la ! Outstanding Due to credito rs other 
l~1 3 n Mict·o e: nterprises and :>mall enterprises 

As at Note 
No. 31st March 2023 

3 
4 
5 

6 
6 .1 
7 

29.12 
37.67 

2,39,885 .66 

1,269.68 

8 4 ,752 .67 2,45 ,974.80 

9 
9.1 
9.2 
9.3 
9.4 
10 
11 

6,978.36 
4,220.84 
7,068 .80 

136 .73 
210.46 
271 .31 

1 L ,30,000.00 
13 9,087 .35 

14 
14.1 1 ,20 ,002 .89 
14.2 17 .59 

15 48 .87 
7 4,401 .15 

16 
16. -~ 

16.2 24.78 

18,886.50 

2,64,861.30 

1,39 ,087 .35 

1 ,24,4 70.50 

(i;:) !.) !her :- ;nanciul Liabilities 16 .3 1,101 .80 
tb) C'tl1er CurrE: nt Liabiliti es 17 163 77 

( TN_!_?_ !!!~~k]!sL 
As at 

31st March 2022 

30.69 
60.27 

2,40 , 103.87 

1,154.25 

2,579 .62 2,43 ,928 .70 

5,477.23 
3,083.33 
6,724.52 

99 .30 
140.19 
271.04 

1 ,30 ,000.00 

1b, 795.61 

2,59,724.31 

5,827.16 1,35,827.16 

1 , 20 , 002. 8~) 

42 .37 

43.56 
2,381.38 

22. 54 

1,216 '10 
17S1 96 

70/ !5 

1,22,470 20 

( .. ) Pro visions I 18 I 13 10 I 

7 >:Jta ! Equ~ty ;md Liabil ities --~ -~-·~-- ~-~~-·-~ -~-~-=t-~~---~~-~ ~--~2,~~1~~:t-.l~-~~--
::!!. See Clr.:comp8nying note~ lo_ ~h~ fina ~1~~a_l_ s~':l ter:ne~n~ l -~~~e-~~-~~=--- _____________ ·--· ---·---- _ ·- _ 

1,426.CJ 5 

2,59 ,724. J1 

,\~ p~r our :~ep ort of even dilte «ttached 

t' o r S81\! & :\s ~; oc iatGs (FRN No. 0323579E) 
~-c:•f'Jr: 1 ~> cc•J un~l ts ._, ... - - . . 't ~VG ~ 

\:;:,, iJ:.v ~l Ha lari 

; ... :, ,, :·.~-;,,, s i·t , ~' f'·!t; 3 ~ 2008 

UDJN -~66iJ..Ot>g{Jc;W/1TtJ.;:;S~ 
~ .. !=!cc · :-:. 1 ~ cha r.c·J.v".l ;;~r 

for and on behalf of Haridaspur Paradip Rai lway Company Limited 

Debkfel 
Managing Director 

D~·J 07 10~82 . 
~"{\ . 
avin Ag al 

Ch ief Financial Officer 
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I!aridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited 
CIN : U452030R2006PLC008959 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

Particu lars 

Revenue: 
----

Revenue from operations 
her mcome 

.J II Tota l Income (I + II) 
IV Expenses: 

Other operat ing cost 
Employee benefits expen 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortiz 
Other Expenses 

. Tota l Ex penses (IV) 

ses 

ation 

nal items and Ta x (Il l - IV) 

1

1v Profi t/loss Before exceptio 
\/1 Exceptional items 

I

Vil Profitl(loss l before tax (V 
VI I IT ax expense: 

(1) Current tax 
1 - ror the yea r 

- VI) 

I - For earlier years (n et) 

I 
(::') Deferred tax (net) 

IX Profiti(loss) for the peri 
1 o peration (VII - VIII) 

od from continuing 

nued operat1ons jX P1 ofitl( loss) from disconti 
1XI l3x Expense of di scontinu 

l
XII Praflli\ loss) from discontin 

(after tax) (X-XI) 
'XIII Prof it/(los s ) for the per 

ed operat;ons 
ued operations 

iod (IX+XII) 
Income 

l
XlV Other Comprehensive 

A. (i) Items that wi ll not be reclassified to profi t 

I 
and loss 

(ii) Income Tax relat in 
recl assi fi ed to pro 

g to Items that wi ll not be 
fi t an:::l loss 

1 6 . (i; lte i-:1S th at will be rec:assified to profi t and loss 

(INR in Lakhs except EPS) 
Note For t he year ended 31 s t Fo r the yea r ended 
No . Marc h 2023 31 st March 2022 

----

19 42 ,200.43 46,445.19 
20 809.96 749.25 

43,010.39 47,194.44 

21 18, 828 .79 22 ,317.54 
22 150.25 137. 18 
23 8,421.00 10,290.15 
24 8,578.56 8,047.37 
25 193.34 158.50 

36,171.94 40,950.74 
6 ,838.45 6,243.70 

6,838.45 6,243.70 

26 - -
- -

2,019.39 3,123.57 
4,819.06 3,120.13 

-

-

4,819.06 3,120.13 

27 1.51 1.50 

(0 .38) (0 38) 

I 
1 \:1) Income Tax re!ati 
I ,-eclasslfied to pro 
lXV Tot<!l Comprehens ive lr 
I period {,Xill ~:X IV) (camp 

r.g to Items that wi ll be -

3, 121:i-j 
fit and ioss 

4,820.19 1corne fo r the 

1 comprenens1vc mcome 
lXVI Earni ngs Per Equity Sha 
I (Fo; Continuing Operatic 
I (1) Basic (Face Va lue IN 
1
1 (2) Di luted (Face Vaiue IN 
XVII Farn 1ngs Per Equity S 
1 (Fo1· discontinuing Opera 
i (1 ) Basic (Face Va lue INR 

rehen s ive profit andother 

~~ for the period) 
re: ( In iNR) 
n) 0.37 
R10 Per share) 28 

R10 Per share ) 28 0.37 0.25 

hare (In INR) 
lion) -10 Per share) 

; (2) DiluteC (Face Value IN 
lXVII I. Earn1ngs Per Fq uity 
i (For discr:Jnt inued and c 
, (1) i:iasic (Face Va lue IN 
L __ ~l Dilu t_r:~Fa::e V~l-~.::_!_~ 

R10 Per share) -

Share : (In INR) 
ontinuing Operation) 0.37 0.25 R10 Per share i 28 

R 1 0 Per· share) 28 0.37 0.25 
-- -

Notes :c 1-ma,·lcia l Statements fc:rrns intergra l part of the above statement 

For S8 1-J 8, Associates (FRN No. 0323579E) 
Chc-!lered A<:.countants 

CA Awez. HaiCJri 
Pilrtner 
Mern:)ersili p ~o . 312008 

Uj)ttJ -:J,_J..JIJ,_ooJR; Cf f,J/fT8-J.f· 

Pace: t:< i1•Jbanesw3r 
Date : 2 F 1 August 2023 

For and on behalf of Haridaspur Parad ip Railway Company Limi ted 

Oebo~~~ 
Managing Di recto r Director 

DIN 07101823 DIN 085501 53 

1~~~-
Cnief F1na:-Jcia l Officer 

~.~~ 
Comp3ny Secretary 
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(~,¢\ 1-laridaspur Paradip RaiLway Company Limited 
~)< CIN : U452030R2006PLC008959 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31 2023 
(INR in Lakhs) 

For the year ended For the year ended 

CASH FLOW FROiVI OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net Profit before taxation 
Adjustment for : 
Depreciation 
Amort ization 
Unwinding of discount on Security Deposit 
Unwinding of discount on receivable from SCR 
Interest income 
Interest on Term Loan 

I Interest 0n Lease Liability 
Loss/(Gai n) on Disposal of Fixed assets 
Expense of reversa l of discount on Security Deposit 

Operating Profit before working capital changes (1) 

31st March, 2023 

6 ,838.45 

34.14 
8,544.42 

(1.14) 
(1 14.29) 
(694.53) 
8,413.55 

6.49 
-

1.25 

23,028.34 

31st March , 2022 

6,243.70 

16.16 
8,031 .21 

(1 .04) 
(103.89) 
(644.32) 

10,192.85 
6.78 
0.35 

1 08 
---·--- ---

23,742.88 

I 
Adjustment for : --- :------------------·-----

(lncrease)/Decrease in Non-Current Financia l Asset - (6.26) 
(l ncrease)/Decrease 1n Other Non Current Assets (63.25) I (1 .30) 

I (lncrease)/Decrease in Current Financial Assets (0.87) 14.51 
. (lncrease)/De.:;rease in Other Current Assets (0.27) 1,457.38 
I l.ncrease/(Decrease) in Other Financia l Liabilities (114.90) 1,209.80 
! lnc1 e<:u;e/(Decrease) in Other Cun·ent Liab ilities (16.19) 112.33 
\lnoease/(Decrease) 111 Provisions 12.17 I 16.49 

i lncrease/(Decrease) 1n Rece1vab les (1 501 13) :n4 212 21 

! Cash generated from operati o n -(~~~ ) _(~~6(, 7~-0~3.·2~
4

7:)f~=-=--·-···· . 3:~(·,
0

68
7

41
5.85.190

6): - -~~ 
~~~E~~~r:;~~~~-~-:-:-~-~:G':'{-;-~~~~~~E-s~_-----------c- -(A)-~1 - - --- -~~2!~_j~3_, ~~~-=--- ---~0:_!-53 .45 , 

11:,cr,"c;se in Pr·e; p r::~·ty, Plant and equiprnent (9 .96) \ (9.65) ! 
I incre<::se in lntc1 ngible assets under deve lopment! Intangible (8 326 21) 1 (12,792 .34) 
1 CJssets 

1 

! Change in Capital .1\dvances (2, 111 .07) 850.69 
I Sale of Fixed Assets I 0.29 
1 Changes 111 Otller Bank Balances (344.28) 

1 
1 ,044.48 

1lnrerest Income 657.97 644.03 

ii'-J ET CASH FROM INVESTING .ACTIVITiES------·--·-·-=--= _(B) ___ =~=- ('IO_,!~.:.~~I ~ -=~ -__ ]]~~242 . ~) 
I~!_~~~-~ FLOW ;;0-;~~-f\~~~-G~C~~~~~I E-;-------

1/nr;r eC~se in Borrowinq - I (25 , 158 .11) 
j Issue of Equ1ty Shar~-s - 11 ,262.67 

II Payment of Lease Liabi lity (22.53) I (2 89) 
interest cHr Term Loan (8413.55) I (1 0 , 192.85) 

. Interest on Lease Liabil ity (6.49) , (6 .78) 
!~ntcnm d~vid~r:_~a id 9 ur~gJ!~~_y_e~ r ____ ·---· ---· __ (1 ,560 00) l__11 ,300 .00) __ 

i Nr.T CA_?~_!RC?~-~~N~-N~I~_G_A_~"!:~_v_IT~~-s _______ r----'-( c--'-)-+-------~1o , oo2.57) 1 (25,397.96Jl 

i NE_T iN_~~~~S~lD_E~REASE)IN C~SH __ & CASH EQUIVALE~ (A+B+g_ +--· ______ 3~ _,._01 _8373_.:.~3· 3~ j

1

. --t~7" 8,9S7!_0.0. 314ll I CASH AND CASH EQU IVALENT (OPENING) (D) I 

j (f-~ e f er Note 9 2) I 3,083.33 7,970.34 1 

I Cash on hand 

1 

0.43 1 0.59 
Balances with Banks: 

!
1 
On current cJCCOc.mts ·I 275.90 1 5 , 38~ .40 I 

1 F,xed Deposits having original Matur·ity of three months or less I 2,807.00 1 2,588 .35 I 
II CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (CLOSING) (E) , 2 0 4, 2 .84 3,083.33 I 
1
1 (Rder Note 9.'2) ! 4,220.84 3,08:333 l 
Cash on hand 0.72 0.43 1 
Balances with Banks : 1 

1 On current CJccounts 205.12 275 90 
\ r'ixec Dep~si~ havin_g ori9_in~_ ~.§l~L:!_I·i!'L<?f_thr t:;_e ~~~2!.~~ -o!_ l e~~ __ _ --~ _ __ _ __ ~0_1_5.:..QQ.I 2,807 .00 I 

I "-lET 11'-< CREASE !N CASH & CAS_H ~9_UIVALENT .. ·- -·-· __ (E~DJ _ i -· ____ 2,:!_3.!.._:~1j _ _(~ ,_8__,8 -~7·~~-..... 

Cash Flow ... .. . 
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Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Lilnited 
CiN U452030R2006PLC008959 

Cosh Flow .. .... Con td. 
( i) 

(i i) 

The company adopted the amendment to lnd-AS 7. wh ich ~eq uire the entities to provide disclosures that enable 
users of financial statements to ev2 luate ch<mges in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both 
changes ansing from cash fiows and non-cash cha11ges , suggesting inclusion of a reconciiiation between the 
opening and closing balances in ihe Ba lance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the 
disclosure requirement. Detail of the same are given belows:-

Reconcilation of Liabilities arising from financing activities as at 31st March 2023 (INR in Lakhs) 

rticular-s---------------...,----L- e._a_s_e ______ - --8-o;:-;o- w- ings -- -- --S-h-ar; C-a-pi-ta-1 

Liabilities 

lance as at 1st April, 2022 

~~· Adoption of lnd __ AS-116 

Casi1 flows :-

l -Repayrnent 
· -~'roceeds/Movemer,t 

I Non-Cash:-
J - Fai r Va lue 

64.91 1,20,002.89 1,30,000.00 

29 02 

6.49 

I - Additions to right of use assets in 

I 8:~:::::~::;
1

:~:,~::~,~~:~:'''~= ~-=~_;; 3~~== =~1.2o.Oo2~; -=-~~= :_~_!.;-o:ooo oo _, 
Reconci!ation ::>f Liabilities arising from financing activities as at 31st March 2022 (INR in Lakhs) 

-,-------------- -- · ----- ---- -- · 
I Lease Borrowings 
I Liabi lities 

IParticul;r::-----

~ --------
I ! Balance as at 1st April, 2021 1,45,161.00 I 

j Adcr~ti on o f lnd __ AS-116 1 

I C3sh flows: . I 
I -l~epayment 9.67 j 

I No:::::~'/Mo,eme"t (25158.11) i 

I
. -Fa ir Value 6.78 I 

-Additions to right of use assets in I 67.80 I -
J exchange for increased iease liabilities I 
~ ~-~ju~~~nts ___ _ -J---------+---------+----------~ 
: Ba~o:_n__cc:_ ~s ~t 3_1~! Ma~~-~,_3Q~-~ ------ ~---~-~__!__ ___ __ 1 ,20,002.89 ___ l __ _ ___ 1 ,30.!...000__:_0_0 __ j 

1,'18,737 .33 

Note ~; to ~ inanc:al Statements forms :ntegral part of the above statement 

For SBN & Associates (FRN No. 0323579E) 
Chartered AccOL~ants 

~ t~Y~Il 

For and on behalf of Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company limited 

~~ CA Awcz Halari 
Partner 
Me•-:-J bersh:p l" o.312008 
r i~N No 0323579E 

U J);AJ -J:.lJI;).lfJ/3 J!Jc; Wlf TfJ..JYU 

PI CJc e: Bhubaneswar 
Date : 2·1 ' 1 Aug 1st 2023 

Deba~a 
Managing Director 

DIN 07101823 

1~~· 
Ch ief Financial Officer 

032 

Director 
DIN 08550153 



,~ ·~>\ 1-Jaridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited 
~· CIN U452030R2006PLC008959 

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2022 

A. Equity share capital 

Particulars 

1 
---· 

No. of shares 
(in lakhs) 

11 ,873. 73 

(INR in Lakhs) 

Amount 

1,18,737.33 
apital due to prior period errors 

Balance at April 1st, 202 
Changes in equity share c 
Restated balance at the b 

Changes in equity share c 

(a) issue of equ ity shares 

Balance at 31st Mar 202 

--~---·----

eginning of the current reporting period 11,873.73 
1---------f-

1,18,737.33 
apital during the period - -

capita l during the period 1 ' 126.27 11 ,262.67 

2 13,000.00 1,30,000 .00 

B. Other Equity (INR in Lakhs) 

I 
Particulars Share Application Reserve & Surplus 

Total money pending 

I allotment 
Retained Earnings 

I Balance at the beg inning of the reporting - 4,005.91 4 ,005.91 
period 

I 
Changes in accounting po li cy or prio r period - - _j errors 

Restated ba lance at the beginning of the - 4,005.91 4 ,005.91 
reporting period 

I Profit for the period - 3,120 .13 3,120.13 
Other Comprehensive income for the period .. 1.12 1'12 

Tota l Comprehensive Income for the period - 3,121.25 3,121.25 

Dividends paid - (1 ,300 .00) (1 ,300 .00) 
Received during the period 11 ,262 .67 - 11 ,26267 

I 

Share aliolied during the pe1·iod (11 ,262.67) 

1 
- (1 1 .262.67) 

----
Ha!ance m the end of the rer.orting period I - 5,827.16 5,827.1 6 

L------ I --

For SF3N & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited 

CA Awez Halart 
Pmtner 
Membership No. 312008 

Deba~d~ 
Managing Director Directo r 

DIN 07101823 DIN 08550153 

~1~~, S . 
Chief Financia l Officer Company Secretary 
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Haridaspw" Parndip Radway Company Lim.ited 
CiN U452030R2006PLC008959 

~~~~~~~--~----~------~-

Statement of changes in equity fo r the year ended 31st March 2023 
A. __ Equity share capital 

[ Particulars 

I 

-
No. of shares Amount 

(in lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

I Ra lance at April 1s t, 2022 13 ,000 .00 1 ,30,000.00 
hare capital due to prior period errors ------ ---- --·· ----··--
t the beginning of the current reporting period 13,000.00 1,30,000.00 ---- --
hare capita! during the period .. -
hares capital during the period - -

Changes in equity s 
Restated balance a 

Changes in equi ty s 

(a) issue of equity s 

Balance at 31st Ma r 2023 13,000.00 , ,3o,ooo.oo I 
B. Other Equity 

Particulars 

;-·Balance atthe begin-ning o f the reporting 
1 pe t·iod 
1 Changes i:1 accounting po licy or prior period 
1 errors 

I 
I 

F~esta~ed balance at tile b 
rC:po rting period 

I 

eginning of the 

I Pro fit for the period 

I 
Dther Compcehensive inca 

Tota! Comprehensive Inc 

me for the period 

orne for the period 

Share Application 
money pending 

allotment 

-

-

.. 

-

-

-

(I NR in Lakhs) 

Reserve & Surplus 

Retained Earnings 
Total 

5,827.16 

I 
5,827.16 

I -

5,827.16 5,827. 16 

--
4 .819 .06 4,819 06 

I 1.13 1 .13 
-- .. 

4,820.19 4,820.19 I 
' ·• 

I 
ni·Jidends p8 id 
f~ece i vec; riL•ring \he period 

1 Sh<:t re aitn ttecJ cfu ,·ing the p9rioLi - ·· ! - I 
I Balance; at the end of the rerorti ng pc_r_io_d _ __,_ _____ _ _ · --'------9:_os_7.35_ C_9,0_a_7._3_5J 

Fo r· SBN & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Pla~:e. Bhubaneswar 
Date : 21"1 August 2023 

For and on behalf of Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited 

Deba~d~ 
M3naging Director Director 

DIN 07101823 DIN 08550153 

~:~g!l 
Chief Financial Oif:cer 

~:J\:~ 
Company Secretary 
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fi.. :i'· I !aridaspur Parudip RaiLway Company l ,imited 
~ CIN U452030f~2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the financial statements For the year ended 31st March, 2023 
General information 

Hari daspur Paradip Ra iiway Company Limited ("the company) was incorporated in India on 25th September 
,2006 as a Public Limited Company. The company received the mand ate to fin ance , execute, maintain and 
operate Haridaspur Paradip New Ra iiway Line project under a Concession Agreement w ith Ministry of Ra ilways 
signed on 20th December 2007. 

The construction of the rail li nk is ass igned to RVNL and a Construct ion Ag reement to thi s effect was signed on 
11th August, 2009 . The project ach ieved COD on 01 st October 2020 as cert ified by Lender's Independent 
Engineer. The registered office of the company on the date of approval by financial statements by Board of 
Directors is located at Unit No.- DCB-714, 715,7 16 & 717 , 7th Floor, DLF Cyber City , Chandaka Industrial Estate, 
Bhubaneswar, Khordha, Odisha-751 024. 

2 Summary of sign ificant accounting policies 

2.1 Basis of preparati on 

The financial statements as at and for year ended 31st March , 2023 have been prepared in accordance with 
Indian Accounting Standards (lnd-AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 as Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules , 201 5 as amended from time to time . 

2.2 Basis of measurement 

The r:nancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except 
fur Certai n financial assets and liabi lities measured at fai r value as required by relevant lnd-AS . 

(ii) Current vs non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabil ities in the ba lance sheet based on cu rrent! non-current 
classification . 

An asset is treated as current when it is : 

(i) Expected to be rea lized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operatin(J cycle 

(ii) Held primaril y fo r the purpose of trad ing 

(1iil Expected to be realized within twe lve months afte:· the reporting period , or 

(iv) Cash m cash equ:valent unless rest ri cted frorn be ing exchanged mused to settle a liab il ity for at 
leasi twe lve months after the repo rting period 

The C.:nnpany classifies all other assets as non-current. 

A liability is cu rrent when: 

(:) It is expected to be settl ed in normal operating cycle 

(1i ) it is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

(i ii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period , or 

(i v) There is no unconditional right to defer the se ttl ement of tile liability fm at least twe lve months 
after the reporting period 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

lJeferred ta x assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liab il it :es. 

The operat 11 19 cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and thei1· rea1ization in 
casll and cash equiva lents . The Company l1 as identified lvvei•Je rn onths as its ope;·ating cycle. 

2.3 Use of estim ates and judgment 

The pr 'O) paration of financial statements in conformity with lnd AS requires management to make judgments, 
es timates and assumpt ions that affect the app licat ion of accounting pol ici es and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities. disclosure of cont!llgent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported 
amount of income and expenses . Examples oi such estimates includes estimated useful life of prope1iy, plan t 
and equipr11ent and Intangible Assets . Actual •esu lts may diffe1 from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic bas1s . Future results could difter due to 
ch;:mges in these estimates and difference between the actua l resu lt and the estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the results are known /matenalize. 

All fi nancial 1nformation presented 111 lnd1an rupees and ali values are rounded to the nea1est lakr;s upto two 
decimals except where otherwise stated. 
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Jlarida~pur Pantdip Railway Company Limited 
Cll\1 U·452030R2006PLCQ03959 

~ll.. 

2.4 Statement of cash flow 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method , whereby profit I (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects 
of transadons of non-cash natu re and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The 
cash flows from operating . invest ing and financing activ:ties of the Company are seg regated based on the 
ava ilable informatio'l. 

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash eq uivalents include cash in hand , cash at banks and 
demand deposits with banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayab le on demand are cons idered 
part of the Company's cash management system. 

Amendment to lnd-AS 7 

The company has adopted the amendment to lnd-AS 7, which require the entit ies to provide disclosures that 
enable users of financial statements to eva luate changes in liabi lities arising from financing activities . including 
both changes ansing from cash flows and non-cash channes, suggesting inclusion of a reconcilliaiion between 
the opening and closing balances in th<:: balance sheet for liabiities arising from financing activities , to meet the 
disclosures req tJirement. The adop!ion of amendment did not have any material effect on the financia: 
statements . 

2.5 Functional and presentation currency 

lt '?. ms included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of U1e prim ary economic environment 
in wh1cr. the Company operates (i .e. Functional Currency) The fi11ancial statements are presented in Ind ian 
rupees, wh ich is the functional and presentation currency of the company. 

2.6 Property, Plant and equipment 

a) Property , Plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses , 
if any. 

Cosi of asset includes the following: 

1. Cost directly attributable to the acquisition of tt1e assets 

ii. Present value of the estimated cos is of dismn11tling & removing the items & restoring the site on which 
it is l oc<:~ted :f recognition criteria are met. 

b) Cost of ;eplacement, major inspection , repair of significant parts are cap itaLzed if the recogni tion criteria 
are md 

c) 1te:ns of f1xed assets tnal have been retired from active use and are held for disposal are stated at the lower 
o f meir net book value or net realizable value and are shown separately in the financia l statements. Ar.)' 
exp10:cted loss is recog nized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Losses arising from the 
retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposnl of fixed assets which are carried at cost are 
1ecognizcd in the Statement of Profit and Loss . 

Depreciation 

(a) Depreciation on Property , Plant and Equipment is provided on straight line method ( SLM) over the estimated 
usc::ful life of tile assets as specifieci in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 except. incase of 
Furniture & fi xtu1·e and 11/lobile phones & tablets. In both the categories of these assets , management has 
estirr1ated the useful life taking considerat ion the econom ic benefit embodied in these assets and other facts 
as technical obso lescence. wear & tear etc. 

(b) Each part of an item of ~)roperty , Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if the cost of pa1i is significant 
in relation to \he total cost of tne itern and useful life of that part is different from the useful life of remaining 
as ~;e t 

The estimated useful lite of assets for current and comparati 1Je period of significanr item <; of l)moerry plam 
and equipme!lt are as fo llows: 

~----------------- n ! Particulars Useful Life 

r
~-urni~~~ and fixt~1res___ ------ 4 

Computers 3 
· Office Equipment 5 
1 Mobile phones & tablets 2 

, Vehicles __________ L__ _ _____ ~---

(c) Leasehold 1rnproveme~ts are <::<mortized over the period of lease from the month in which such 
improve!nents are capitalized or over the useful li fe as computed under the Companies .L\ct 2013. 

(d) Deprcciatio 11 methods , useful lives anc\ residual va!m:s are reviewed Cit each reporting daie. w1th the effect 
of change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis . 
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2.7 Intangible Assets 

a) Other Than Freight Sharing Right 

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attt·ibutable 
to the asset will flow to the enterpri se and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably . Intangible assets 
are stated at historical cost less accum ulated ammtization and impairment loss. if any . 

Amortisation 

Computer Software is amortised over a period of three years on pro-rata basis . 

b) Freight Sharing Right (Rai lway Line under SCA) 

The company recognizes an intangible asset arising from a service concession arrangement when it has 
a right to charge for usage of the concession infrastructure. An intangible asset received as consideration 
for providing construct ion or upgrude services in a servi ce concession arrangement is measured at fair 
•1alue on initial recognition by reference to the fa1r value of the services provided . Subsequent to initial 
recognition , the intangible asset is measured at cost , less accumulated amortization and accumulated 
impairment losses if any. 

The estimated useful life of an intangible asset in a serv ise concession arrangement is the period from 
where the company is able to charge the public for the use of the infrastructure to the end of the concession 
period (i.e. 30 year of operation or Net present Value (NPV) payback equal to equity investment @14% 
whichever is earlier.). 

Freight sharing right is amortised using the straight- line method on prorata bRsis from the date of addition 
or from the date when the right brought in to service to the expiry of 30 year of operation or 1\Jet present 
Value (NPV) payback equal to equity investment @ 14% whichever is earlier. 

Amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date , with th e effect of change in 
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 

The ca rrying value of intangible asset is reviewed for impairment annually or rnore often if events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying va lue may not be recoverable . 

2.8 Intangible Assets under development 

~7 reight sharing right under development 

Intangibles under deveinpment (Freight sharing right under development) are recognised at cost incurred by 
company which is reckoned as fair value including cost direct ly attributable (Indirect expendi tu re in the nature 
of employee benefits and othe1 expenses to the extent of 70% till COD) and fair value adjustment of land related 
to !.he ~;e r,11ce concession arrangement. 

lhe foi lowing amounts are reduced trom the intangible under development: 

a) Interest earned on the Mobilization Advances given in respect of the project execution . 

b} Amount received on sa le of tender. 

c) Net Capital rece ipts , 

d) Net Capital receipts , Interest on FD & Sweep Ale, Misc. receipts etc 

e) Net rece ipts from running of trains prior to COD 

2.9 Impairment of non-financ ial assets 

!n accordance with lndiar. Accou11ting Standard-36 '· Impairment of Assets" (lnd .1\S-36), the carrying amounts of 
Company's assets are fevi ewed at each Balo.nce Sheet date to determ1ne whether there 1s any indicat ion of 
impairment. It any such indication exists , the asset's recoverable amount is estimated as the higher of the net 
se ll;ng price and the value in use . An impairment loss is recogn 1zed whenever the carrying amount of an asset 
or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverabie amount. On the basis of review, th e marw gement is of the 
op inion that the economic performance of Fixed Assets of the Company is not worse than expected and 
therefore there is no impai rment of any assets as on the Balance Sheet date. 

2.10 Revenue Recogn ition 

a) Opr;rating revenue 

fhe income from Railway operations of the company is recog nized on point in time upon the information as 
and when received from East Coast Railways for the share of revenue due to the company for the opP. rati ons. 
The period for which revenue is not intimated by ECoR , same is recognized and accounted tor on pm-rata 
estimated basis. 
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b) Construction Contract Revenu~ under SCA 

Re1Je11ue related to construction or upgrade services under a ser'Jice concession grmngement is recognized 
ove r time based on the stage of completion of the work performed, when the outcome of construction contract 
can be measured relicbly and where the outcome of construction contract can not be measured rel iably 
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract cost incurred that is probable will be 
recoverable.Performance obliga ti on is measured by the compnny on the basis of inputs to the satisfaction 
ol a performance obligation (i.e Input Method). 

c) Other Revenue Recognition 

(i) Interest income on FOR is recognized on a time proportion basistaking into account the amount 
outstanding and the interest rate applicable using Effective Interest rate Method . 

(ii) Other items of Income are accounted for as and when right to receive is established . 

2.11 Employee Benefits 

al Sho1'! Term Employee Benefi ts 

(i) The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be pa 1d for the services re nde~ed 
are recognized as an expense during tile period when the employeesrender the services . 

b) Post-ernp lcyment benefits & other Long Term Employee Benefi ts 

(i) Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund are defined contribution schemes. The cont1ibUiions 
to the pr(:videntfund are charged to the statement to the Profit and loss for the year when the contributions are 
due. 

(ii) Under :he defined retirement plan , the company provides reti ;ernent obligation in the form of Gratuity . For 
defined r ~tirern e nt plans , the diffe~ence between the fa ir value of p:an assets and the present value of plan 
liabiliti r:; s is recognised as an assets and liabilities in the statement of financial posit ion. The cost of providing 
benefi ~ is determined on the bas is of actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at each year-end 
ancl is cha1·ged to the Statement of Profit & Loss . 

(iii)rrov ision fc.r Long TenT' Leave Encashrnent along with availrner.t (both EL & LHAF') and Leave Trave l 
Concessio:' is made based on actuarial valuation at the year end. 

(iv) A·:tuClri Cll ga ins or losses are recognised 111 other comprehensivE' income. 

ty) F<.e-rnegsurements recog nised in other cornp1·ehensive income comprise of acrua1·ial gains m 'asses that are 
not ;eciassified t'J profit or loss from other compre:1ensiv8 income in subsequent period~ . Retirement Benefits 
L iabili!y i'l respect of Gratuity and leave e11Cashment is provided on the bas1s of actuarial valuation . 

2.12 f;o rrc win!1 Cost 

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition , construction or production of 
quali fyi'19 assets, are capi tal ised as part of the cost of such assets till such time ihe assets are substantially ready 
fo r tr1 eir ;ntended use. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get 
ready for its intended use. Ali other borrowings costs are recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss in the 
perioc! in whict1 they a;e incur•ed. 

2.'13 Current and deferred tax 

a) Cu rrent income tax 

Tc.:< on lnco 1n e is determined on the bas is of taxable Income and tax credits computed in accordance with 
the provisions of the Income Tax Act 1 96~ .Current income tax asset~ and liabilities for current and prior 
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or JJaid to the taxati on authorities, 
liatJi lity fo r additional taxes if any , is provided I pa id as and when assessments are completed . Current la J<. 
re lated ro OCI llem are recognized in Ocher Comprehensive Income (OC I) The :::ompany 0 1~ ted for new 
mx regHT1e u/s 1158AA ot the income Tax Act 1961 since F. Y. 2020-2 1 

b) Deferred tax 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized fo r temporary diffe~ences whi cl~ is computed 
using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting ciate . 
Cefe rrerl incc,rne lax e1sset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxab le profit will he avai lable 
a:;ainst whi-:h the deductible temporary differences , and the carry forward of unused tax cred its ana .;nused 
tax tosses can be utilized . The c<mying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at eacn reporting 
date and reducecl to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficien t taxable profit wi ll be avai lable to 
al!ow all or part of lhe deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Deferred tax relateo to OC I Item are 
recogn ized in Other Com prehensive Income (OCI) . 
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2.14 Taxes on Income and interest, penalty, claims and debit notes 

Tax/Interest/F ines/penalties on account of late deposit and non-deduction of income tax deducted at source 
and other statutory dues are accounted for in the year in which they <:~re levied by the statutory authorities . 

Clc: ims are accounted for in the year in which they me received/finally settled . 

Debit notes/adjustments in respect of deductions are <:~ccounted for in the year in which they are 
n.;ceived/settled.Provisions , Contingent Liabi lit ies and contingent Assets 

2.15 Taxes on Income and interest, penalty, claims and debit notes . 

a) Provisions· Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligat ion as a result of a past event , it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits wi ll be required to settle the obligation 
and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligat ion. Pmvisions are measured at the best estimate 
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date. Provisions are reviewed 
at each Balance Sheet date . 

Provision which expected to be sett led beyond 12 months are measured at the present value by using pretax 
discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the pmvision due to the passage 
of time is recognized as 1nteres! expenses . 

b) Contingent Liabil ities : Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possib le ob ligation arisingfrom 
past events , the existence of which wil l be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or 
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or a present ob ligation that arises 
from past events where it is ei ther not probable that an outflow of re sources will be requiredto settie or 
a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made . 

(c:) Contingent Liabi lity and Provisions needed against Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets are reviewed 
at each Report111g date. 

(d ) Contingent Liability is net of estimated provisions cons idering possible outflow on settlement. 

(c) Contingent Assets is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

2.16 Lensing 

a) 

(i ) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

Company as a lessee 

The Company Recognizes a right-of- use asset and a lease liab ility at the lease commencement date. The 
right of-usc asset is initially measured al cost , which comprises the initial amount of lease liability adjusted 
For any lease payments made at or before the commencement date , plus any initial direct cost incurred 
z 11d an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asse t or to restore the underlying asset 
or the si te on wh 1ch 11 is located , less any le2se incentives !·eceived . 

The right-of-use asset 1s subsequently depreciated using til e stra:g ht-line 'llethod fmrn the commencement 
date to til e earlie1· of the end of the useful life of the right--to-use-asset or the end of the lease tenn. The 
est imated useful life of the right-to-use asset is determined on the same basis as those of property , plant 
and equipment. In addit ion, the right-to-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses , if any, and 
adjusted for certa in remeasurements of the lease liabi lity. 
Tr1e lease liabi lity is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid atthe 
ccrnmencement date , discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily 
determined , the Company's incremental borrowing rate. 

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method , it is remeasured when 
there is a change in future lease payments from a change in an index or rate. 1/Vhen the lease liability is 
remeasured in this way , a corresponding ad justment is made to the carrying amount of the right -of-use 
assei , or is recorded in ihe prof1t and loss if the carrying amount of the right -of-use asset has been reduced 
to zero . 

(v ) The Company presents right-of-use asset that do not meet the defi nition of lnvestmen1 property in the 
'T' roperty plant and equipment" and lease liabilities in "other financial liabilities" in the Balance Sheet. 

(vi ) Short te1m Lease and Leases of low value assets :-The Company has elected not to recogni ?.:e righ t-of- use 
asse t and lease liabilities for short te rm leases that have lease term of 12 months or less anc.! leases of 
low va !ue assets. The Company recognizes the lease payments associated with these 1eases as an 
expense on a stra ight-line basis over the lease term. 

(b) As a !essor 

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease 
or an operating lease. To classify each lease , the Company makes an overall assessment ot whether the 
lease transfers substantia ll y all the risk and reward s incidental to the ownership of the underlying asset. If 
th is is the case, then the lease is a finance iease, if not then it is an operating lease. As part of the 
assessment , i he Ccrnpany considers certain indicators such as whethe :· the lease is fm the major part of 
th e economic life of tile asse t. 
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T~re Corr.pany recognizes lease payments received under operating lea se as income on a ~tra igh t- line 

basi:> over the lease ter·m ':IS part of "Otl;er Income". 

2.1'7 Earning Per Share 

In determining basic ean~ i ngs per share . the company considers the net profit atiribulable to equity shareholders. 
The number of shares used in computing basic ea mings per share is the weighted aver·age number of shares 
outsiandir1g during lhe per·iod . In determini r~g diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity 
shareho lders and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted fo r the effect 
of al l dilutive potential equ ity shares. 

2.18 Non-derivative financia l assets 

The company recognizes a financia l asset arising from a service concess ion arrangement when it has an 
unconditional contractual right to rece i•Je cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for 
the const ru ction or upgrade services provided. Such financial assets are measured at fair va lue on initial 
recognition and classified as loans and receivables. Subseqt.:ent to initia l recognition , the financial assets are 
measured at amortized cost. 

If the companv is paid tor the const ru ct ion services partly by a financial asset and partly by an intangible ass-et, 
then eaci1 component of the consideration is accounted for separate ly and is recognized initial ly at the fair 'Ja lue 
oi tile ;;onsideration received or receivable. 

2 19 Fair Value Measurement 
Company measures financial instruments at fair va lue at each reporting date . Fair va lue is the price that wou ld 
be ~eceived to se ll an asset or paid to transfer a liabi lity in an orde;·ly transaction between market participants at 
li re measurerwmt cia te. The fa ir value measurement is based on the presumption thai the transaction to seli the 
asset or transfer the liabi lrty takes place either 
• ;n the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
,. In the absence of a principal market , in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 
~ -h e pr·incipal or ~he most advantageous market must be accessible to the company. The fair value of an asset 
or a liability :s measured using the assumptions that market partrcipants wou ld use when pricing the asset or 
liaiJrlity, e1 ssurr:ing th at market participants <::~ci in their economic best illle!"est. The company uses vaiuation 
t echrrique ~; that are appropriate rn the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to mensme fair 
•ta!ue, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs ar.d minimizing the use of uno!:lservable inputs . 

.'\ss :-: ls ar:d lic>.birities for wh ich fair va! ue is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categor·ized 
w:t.hir, the fai r va lue hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowesllevei rnput tlrat is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a wlrc le: 

·• ' . LC:'Jel 1 - Ouoted (unadjusted) marl-;et prices in active markets fo:· identical assets or liabilrt,es 

, eve I 2 -- Valuation techn iques for which the iowest level input that is srgnificant to the fair va lue 
measurE:ment rs directly c.r indirectly observab le 

L.e 1Je l 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fa ir va lue 
measurement is unobservableFor assets and liabi lities that are recogn ized in the financial statements on a 
recurring bas is , the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy 
by (8··assessing categorization (based 011 the lowest level inpu t that is significant lo the fair value 
rneasr rrement c; s a vv!"lo le) at the end of each report ing period . At the reporting date, the Company analyses 
the movements in the values of assets and liabilit ies which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed 
a-;- per the accounti ng po ii cres . For this analysis , the Company verifies the major inputs applied in the latest 
va luation by agreeing the intormation inthe valuation computation to contracts and oiher relevani documents. 
Tne Company also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with re levant external 
sources to deierm rne whether the change is reasonable. For the purpose of f8i r value drsclosures , the 
(;ornpany ha~ determined classes of assets and liabilrties on the basis of the 11ature characterist:cs and 
ri"-ks of the asset or liabi lity ancl the level of the fair value rli erarchy as explarned above 

i-re fai r vaiue of an intangible asset rece ived as cons iderat ion for· provid ing construction services in i:l service 
concession arrangement is estimated. by referenr:e to the fair value of the construction services provided . When 
the company receives an intang ible asset and a financial asset as consideration for providing construction 
services in <1 service concession arrangement, the company estimates the fair va lue of intangib le assets as 
tne difference between t11 e ta:r vaiue of the construction servicE:s provided and the fai r value of the finan cial asset 
r2ceivc.:d. 

2.20 Dividend to equity holders 

Drv idend paid/payable shari be r·ecognisecl in the year in wr.icil the related divrdends are c.t pproved by 
si··rareholders or board of directors as appropriates. 
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2.21 Financial instruments:-

(ij ln it ia! recognition and measurement 

Financial Instru ments recognized at its fa ir value plus or minus transaction costs thO!\ are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instruments . 

{ii) Subsequent measurement 

Financial Assets 

fin ancial assets are class ified in fol lowing categories : 

a. At Amortised Cost 

A financial asset sha ll be measu red at amortised cost if both of the fo llowing cond itions are met 

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order 
to collect contractua l cash flows and 

(b) The contractuc.J ! terms of the fin ancia l asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
p<~yme nts of principa l and interest on !he principal amount outstanding. 

Fi11 ancial assets measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method less impni rment 
if any. The EIR amorti sation is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. 

b. At Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income 

A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following critena are met: 

• The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contrar;iuat cash fl ows afl(i se lli ng 
til e financia l assets, and 

• The asset's contrar;tua l cash flows represent SPP I. 
Debt instruments included within the FVTOC I category are measured initia lly as wel l as at each reporting 
date at fair value. Fai r value movements are recog nized in the other comprehensive income (OC I). 
However, the company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversa ls and foreign exchange 
gain or loss in the P&L. On de-recagn ition of the asset, cumulative ga i11 or loss previou sly 1·ecogn ised in 
OCI is reclass ified from the equity to P&L. lnte1·est earn ed is recognised using the EtR method . 

. c. At Fair Value Through Profit and Loss 

fCVTPL. is a residual category fo r fi nancial Assets. Any financial assets . which does not meet the criteria 
for categoriz.ati011 as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI , is classified as at FVTP L. . 

:n addition, the compa ny may elect to designate fin ancia l asset, which otherwise meets amortized 
cost or 1-VTOCI critena. as at FVTPL. . If doing so reduces or el iminates a measurement or recog nition 
tncons; stency. : ·lle company has not design?.ted any financial asset as at FVTPL. 

Financial assets included w1thin the FVTPL. category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognized in the P&L. 

Financ ial liabili t ies 

a. Financial liabilities at Amortised Cost 

Financial liabi lities at amortised cost represented by trade and other payables. security deposits and 
retention money are initia lly recog nized at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost using 
the effective interest rate method . 

b. Financial liab ili t ies at FVTPL 

Tl w ::ompar.y has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL . 

(iii) De1 ecognitior; 

Financ:ial Asset 

A financia l asset (or , where applicab le, a part of a financia l asset c 1· part of a group of ;;imilar financial a:3sets) 
is derecog nized only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it tran sfers the 
financial assets and substantially all ri sks and rewmds of the ownership of the asset. 

Financial Liab i l ity 

A financial liabili ty IS derecognised when the ob ligation under the liability IS discharged or canceiied or expires. 
When an ex1sting financial liab ility is rep laced by another from the sa me lender on substantially different 
terms, or the te rm s of an existing liab ility are substantially mod ified , such a·n exchange or modification is 
treated as a derecognition of the original liabi lity and the recogn ition of a new liability, and the difference 111 
the respective carry ing amounts is recognised in \he 1ncome statement. 
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(i•J) Impai rment of financial assets: 

Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss. 
The Company fol lo'Ns ' simplified approach ' for rec'J~nition of impai~rneni loss allowance on trade receivabl e. 
Tile application of simpl ified approach does not requi ,·e the Company to t:·ack changes in credit risk . Rather, 
it recognises impairment loss al lowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting r:late , right from its init ial 
recogn ition 

Company assesses on a forward looking bas is the expected credii losses associated with its assets carried 
at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt in struments. The impairment methodology applies on whether there has 
been significant increase in cred it risk . 

ECL impairment loss al lowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense 
in !he siatement of profit and loss . 

2.22 Non-current Assets held for Sale 

Non-current assets are classiiied as assets held for sale when their carryi ng amount is to be recovered principally 
through a !>ale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. The sale is considered highly probabie only 
when the asse\ or disposal group is ava ilable for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unl;kely that the sale 
will be witndrawn and sa le is expected within one year from the date of the classificat ion. Disposal groups 
classified a~ held fo r sale a1·e slated at the lower of ca1Tying amount and fair value less coststo sel l. Property, 
pian! and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised Gnce classifiedas l1 eld for sa le. 
Assets and liabilities classified c:s held for sale are presented separaie!y in ihe statement of financial position . 

If the crite1·:a stat eel by IN D AS 1 05 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations" are no longer 
met, the disrosal group ceases to be class ified as held as held for s::~le , adjusted for depreciation that would flave 
been rrxonni sed had that asset not been classified as held for sa le, and (: i) its recoverable amount at the dnte 
when !he disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sa le. Non-current asset that ceases to be c.lassified 
as held for sale are measured at the lowe1· of (i) its carrying amount before the asset was classified 

2.23 IVIaterial E:vents 

1'./laterial evenis occurr!r;g after tht:i Balance She'::'t dale am taken into cogn iza nce. 

The /-\cc0un ting policies th c:; t are curiently nol relevant to the company have not been disdosed . When such 
acr.:ocml ing policies become relevant, the s3me sha ll be disclosed. 

?..:'4 St;;~ndard!Amendments issued but not yet effective 

.viC fl. had iss ·J~~ d the Indian .~~<XO•Jn t ir,g Standards Amendments Rules , 2023 vide notificati on dated J·1 st fV!ard1 
2 ;;~3 11·, tt1 c !~>.ji21n Accounting Standards Arnendments Ru:e~ .. 2023, amendments h;o,s oeen nwde :n fo llowing 
.:.; tandarcs: -

1. First-t1me Adoption of Indian Accour ting Standards (lnd AS-1 01) 

2 . .Share Based Payment (!nd AS- -102) 

3. Elus;r;ess Combinations (lnd AS-1 03) 

4 . h 11c-m cial instrurnenis : Disclosures (lnd AS-107) 

5 Financic.;i instruments (l nd AS-1 08) 

6. Revenue frum Contracts with Custorners (lnd AS-1 i 5) 

7. Presentation oi Financial Statements (I nd AS-1) 

8. Accounting Policies, Char.ges in Accounting Est imates and Errors (ind AS-8) 

c, lnt::vne laxes (lnd AS-12) 

10. Interim c inancia l 1-<eport ing (!nd AS-34) 

Tile effective date of these arnendrnents is annual periorjs beginning un or after 'I sl fl. Jxi! 2023. The Company is 
currently evaluating the impact or the amendments and has not yet determined the impact on the financia l 
state:11ents. 
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Jforidaspur Parodip Ruifvvay Company Limited 
CIN U452030F~2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Finanr..ia1 Statement for the year ended March 31 , 2023 

3 Property, Plant and Equipment (INR in Lakhs) 

I------------------------------------- ----------

1 

Particu la rs Air Computer & Furniture& Office 
Equipment 

Vehicle Mobile Total 
Cond itioner Servers Fixtures & 

I Telephone 
I 

Cost or Deemed Cost 

At 1st April 2021 10.24 14.51 2.15 29 .87 0 .65 57 .42 
i- Addi-tions 3. 79 --2 .08 0.7-3---- ----~5 

I Disposals/Adjustments 0.11 10.80 0.70 
1----- ------

9 65 

11 .61 

1 At 31st March 2022 13 .92 5.79 2.18 29.87 3.70 55.46 
I P ddi~O~ S-- ----------- --- --~- - ---z 40 3 "17 3 53 - 0 86 9 96 

~ ~;'~-~;;';~;;:'l~i;" _:_ ~- ~ : _:_~-__~ _ _:_-=:_-:- -: -_- _ ,. ,~- -----=-" ,~ ::_:::- 5 , ; - _::::_ ,~~=- ~~ sL -__ 65 " 

I 
I I PJW..I~~iat!o':_~~~!~~a~~~ _ 

I_ !H_1_s_t Ap~i~~~21 __________ _ 

I iJepreciation charge 
i tor the penod 
I I lrnp;;li rmelll 

1 o_,spo~ a i ~/A<:!_j_u ~~~e l~ts 

I 
At 3·Jst March 2022 

uepreciation ch arge 
i for ihe peri od 
i I lrnpairrnu 1t 

i Disposa ls/.LI.djustrnents 

0 .01 2.15 

3.45 

0.01 0.09 

5.51 

4.46 

12.41 1.42 10.57 
----~-·-------

0.65 0.31 3.54 

10.26 0.61 

2.80 1.12 14. i 1 

·j 36 0.53 3. 54 

I ·--··· -- -· -·- ------· ---·-·-·---···· --·-·------------------ -------- ------- -- --
, At 31s l1Vian;h 2023 9.97 4.16 1.65 17.65 

0.56 

0.67 

1.23 

1.64 

2.87 

27.12 

8.62 

10.97 

24.77 

11.53 

3fi.JO 

t~Ll.1~t_March 2023 6.35 4-. 80 4.06 12 .22 1.69 29.12 
------- ---···---------- --------------···----------- ----·--

At 3 ·tst March 2022 8.41 2.99 1.06 15.76 2.47 30.69 

:::i Property , Plant and equipment are sL!bject to first charge to secure the Company's Bank loans . I'" or detail refe r 
1\lote 14. 

043 



flar ida,r.,pur Paradip Railway Compan}' Limited 
CIN. U452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Fi:naneia] Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

4. Right of use Assets 

--·----

~~~'-'_ila_r_s _ __________________________ _ 

Cost or deemed cost 

At 1st April 2021 

Additions 

Cisposa ls/Adjustmerts 

At 3·tst March 2022 

Addit ions 

Disposa ls/Adjustments 

At J1st March ~ 023 

_Q!!j?.rec iati9.!l.<!!ld lrnp<!i rm~m 

.L\t 1st April :1021 

De pre :i;;ilvn charged for the year 

Di ~~pm:a :s/Adju s t rnents 

At 3i ~d March 2022 

Deprecia! iC•Il cll arged rm the year 

D i:, pos<.l is/ AdjusTments 

At 31 ;; t •\~ arc h 2023 

(INR in Lakhs) 

Rights of 
use assets 

[==-_---
67.80 

,----6 7.80 ---

----- -- ---

---- , 
Tota l I 

67 .80 

I 
67 :sa ___ I 
----, 

I 
I 

~----- --·· - ----

! _____ -- ~~~~--- 67 .80 

---- - i 
.. I 

- - --- I 
~----------·--=--------

[ _______ --------

7.53 

,-- ----
7.53 

22.60 

L-~-~--- 3G. 'I3 

,--- -~ 

I -·-- ---- I 7 53 

7.53 

22.60 I 

I 
30.13 

At 31 :>1 lv1arch ~023 , I :.. 7 .67 37 .67 

A! 31s t IVia~ch--~~~~- ----·----·-- ___ ___________________ ]_-~---~ -60~~--------- _ 60.2l 

4.1 !~efe;· i'Jotc l'!o .:33 for details of lea~es. 
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1-Jaridaspur Paradip l?a zhva_v Company Lim ited 

CIN : U452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming par1· of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 
5. Other Intangible Assets 

____________________ --------·-· _______ ------------------- ~Ri.!:_l Lakh_~_ 
Particulars Fre ight Software Total 

___ ___ __ _____ ____ _ ___________________ _?haring Rights ___________ _ 

Cost or deemed cost 

At 1st April 2021 

Addition during the period 

Adjustments 

At 31st March 2022 

,!:\ddit ion during the period 

Adjus1ments 

At 31st March 2023 

Amortis~tion and Impairment 

At 1st Apri l 2021 

Amori iza tion for the period 

Disposals/Adjustments 

At 31st March 2022 

Amortization for !he period 

Oisposals/Adjustmenis 

At 31st March 2023 

At 3·i st Ma.-ch 2023 

At 3i s t March 2022' 

2,39 ,239.38 0.50 

12,792.34 

2,52,031.72 0.50 

8,326 .21 

2,60,357.93 

3,896.65 

8,03 1.21 

11 ,927.86 

8,544.42 

20,4"!2.28 

2,39 ,Bo5.65 

2,40,1 03.86 

0.50 

0.49 

0.49 

0.49 

0.01 

0.01 

5.1 Amortisation on Intangible Assets included in note-24 Depreciation and Amortization . 

5.2 Intang ible assets are subject to first charge to secure the Company's bank loans. For details , refer Note ~ 4. 
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2,39,239.88 

12,792.34 

2,52, 03 2.22 

- -I 
8,326.2 1 

2,60,358.43 

3,897 .14 

8,031 21 

11 ,928.35 

8,544 42 

20,47 2. ! 7 

2,39 ,885.66 

2,40,103.87 
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1-fu.ridaspur Paradip Railway ComparzJ' Limited 
Clt·J LJ 452C30F\2 006PL.C00895S 

Notes fo rming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

6. Financial Assets 
6.1 Other Financ ial Assets 

Particulars 

At Amortised Cost 
Receivable from East Coast Rai lways under SCA 
(Va lue of land) Refer Note ··29 
Co nsidered Good : unsecured 

At A mortised Cost. 

Security Deposits 

Total 

7 Defe rrr~ cl Tax 

Part iculars 

(INR in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
31st March 2023 31st March 2022 

1.257. 17 l.l tl2.88 

12.5 1 11.37 

[ 
- ··--- -- ---------

1,269.68 
---- -- ---------- -- --

---- -·--, 
1,154.25 I 

_, 

(INR in La khs ) 
- - - ----- -----

As at As at 
______ ____ _ _ ______ _ _ ________ ___________ 31st March 2023 ____ 31st_!Y.l_ar_c~_2_0_22 ___ __ 

Defer red -,- ax Assets 

Ur.ohso rbed Depreciation & Loss 
En·ir_.i oyee Benefi t~ 

Total d-efe rred tax Assets 

Defer red Ta x Li ab i ~ i ty 

lnc!.t-\S transition Adjustment 
Pr~)pe rt y f-'lant & Equ ip111 elll 

Tcta: rJE•ferred tax Liability 

(f\J e~ Dc fc:rred T3J< Li ability)/ Assets 

M·,)'/emr1 nr in Defe rred Ta)( L iab ili ty 

Un3bsorbed 

Opetl in[ j ba iance as 
a1 1 st A ;:> r i~ 2021 
C harg eLil( creri i ted) 
dur,ng ~l 02 1 -22 

To f.J roft & L.oss 

l o other comprehensive income 
Closi q balar.ce as at 31 
Marcr' '2022 

Ci;a rgec.i/(crGo ited) 
cJ L.: ring 2022-23 
To Prof!i f, Loss 

-~·u ,, thu compm i1 ensive incDme 

Clos ing balance 
<~s at :31 M;J rc h 2023 

!Jepr2ciation 
& Loss 

(7,951.11) 

(2 ,270.49) 

(1 0,22'1 .62) 

(2597 39) 

(12·,819.01) 

17 ,:!35 75 

10 ,221 .62 
12.22 

10,233 .84 

12 ,6 15.22 

'17,235.75 12,615.22 
- ------------·- ---------- ----

(4,401.'15) (2 ,38'1.28) 

Employee 
Benefits 

(1.55) 

(11.05) 
0.38 

(12.22) 

(3 75) 

0.38 

(15 .59) 

04 6 

PPE ROU & 
Intangible Assets 

7,210.11 

5,4-05. 11 

12,615.22 

4,620.!.i3 

'!7 ,235. 75 

(!NR 1n Lakhs l 

Total 

(742 .57) 

3,'123.57 

0.38 

2,381 .38 

2, 01 9. 3 ~~ 

0.38 

4, 40 ~ .15 
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Jlaridaspur ParadtjJ Railway Company l"' imited 
C IN U452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

8 Other non-current assets (INR in Lakhs) 

--Particulars --- ---- ------------·------- --- A~--------·-As .rt"---- --l 

a) Capital Advances 

31st March 2023 31st March 2022 I 

Advance to land acquisition officer 3.86 3.86 I 
Advance for Construction of Bu ilding 50.00 
Total Advance to RVNL under various hends 4,326.51 22 15.44 

b) Fa ir valuation adjustment-Financial Assets 
Prepayments 

c) Income Tax Refund Receivable 
d) Prepaid Expenses 

Total 

9 Financial Assets-Current 

9.1 Trade Receivables 

i "" 
_____ j_ 

2 07 

357 .00 
13.23 ---. 

4,752.67 

3.32 

357.00 

2579.62 

(INR in Lakhs) 

- -----·----- --·---3-1-s_t -r:.:rf~ _2_0_2_3 ___ ----- 3_1_s_t_l::r:~~~2-2- --J I 
-- ---- ----

P<Htirulars 
[ ________ _ 
I 
I 
I 

Con ::; ide red good-Secured 
Co1·1sidered good-Unsecured 6,978 .36 5,477.23 

I 
I Trade R8ceivab les which have significant increase in 

cred ii risk 

Trad e Rece; vables -crcdil impaired 

Total 
-1 

6, 978.36 5,477.23 

!l. ~ .1 Trouc Receiva bles rcrAesenls amount recel'! ab le frorn the M/s iOCL. ii1 respect or the Work s Contract a:1d 
i ~ece1vab!cs trorn the Railv·!ays (amount receivab!e f1-crn the f~aiiways and i\11/s IOCL) . 
~;.1 . 2 Trade Receivab:.-;s Jl.geing Sc:hedule are as follows: 

~S_ ?..~_31s! _f!!!<l_r~_'2__202~-- ------ - ---------· - --··------- ·--·---·--- _________ 1,1_1\!R in L~~1?) 
Particulars ~Outstanding for following periods from due dale of payment . : 

. Less than l 6il10nth 1 !1-2-. -;2_~---,--Mo-r(0:i1a~~Total--~ 
I 6 month - · ·1 years years years I 3 yea !·s 1 ! 

t m)r~~;r.:pl~~d ~~r:;~eer}~~i::~~~~-:~~~~:~e~-;ood 1 ~{97~36_ -~=~--~---~· ~- -=-- ~-- ---~- ! . _- 1 ~·~~ !' () 36 I 

I significant Increase in cred it risk . _J ~ ! (TiiJL..lndis-pl.lte c!T I-aae Recei vables--=--cred it Impaired ------·- ----- ·- - - --t--- --------J -- - ---- -Nil 

i. -(i'-') Dispuied ~~nd-e_Rc~~i_v~b~~- co~~iC2_~r~~~ood __ ~=-=--=--~~ -=-~·_ :---:-=-J-.- _-:=_ -~-- --~- ~ -=---- --- . "N1~ 
j (v) Disputed Trade Recei vables - which have 1 Ni! 
1 ~; i g ni ficaiH l'lcrease in credit nsk ~ ~ 
1·(v1l D l s pL:-tccl!!"(ie-Re_§elvab l~~ -=- ~c-r~1 t l ~p~ ~~-e-~ -=.. ,--=_:-_· _- - -- -~1.- -- -~_-__ )_- _-- ~;1 
: _ __ ___ 6,978 .36 _ , _ _j__ _ 1 _ .. _ i _5, 978 .20 I 

~.s o:1 :5 i st IViar ch 2022 _ __ ____ _ ·--------- _ -·- _____ _____ __ __ JIN~ J.~-L~kh_s} 
Particulars T Outstanding for following periods from due date of p<~yme:-~t 

· Less than- ! 6-riion-ttl[ f-2 - rl?.-=3- --- T I\~ ore tha-r;-1 Tota i 
_ _ 6_ r12.9n~ 1 

- ·1 ye~ ' s i ¥_ears !....!'e<lr::; 3 ye_Jrs 
() Und1sputod T•·acJ ~~ rec~ab l~s ~::.!?on_sl_<:i_e r8cj good ._ 5 .~1~- ~ 5- 45.75 1 r'-J1I i'lil i-ii l 
(i i) Unrl1 sputed Trade Receivables --· which have Nil Nil Ni ! Nil 1\i il 
s1gn;f1 ca nt 112c,-~~e ~n c~edi~~sk _ _____ _ ____ ___ __ _ j _ _ _ _ __ 
(111)Und:s puted Tr3de Receivables - credit 1mpa1red f'-J 11 I l\l1l 

1 
Nil i'Ji! 

\IV) Disputed !r~!:J.e:_r~ecefva ule_:;_::-~on~~~~_fi?0.=_-_ _N il ____ -- N,l -- ,f'J_il- ~l\ill -
(11) u:sputeo fr2de Rece ivables -- which have ! Nil Nil [ Nil -;t\.ii i 
s i ~ni fica n t :ncreils e in credit nsk 1 1 , _ 
(v1\ Disput d Trad e ~eceiv~b!es -:: credit l:ne~~d J Ni! Nil _, ~'!i' _ 1

1

_0J!_ __ 
__ L 5.~~31_A~ . ___ 45.:?~--- Ni l - I ~i~- . 
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j·~ i! 

I 1\! il 
I 
;_ 

-I 
Nil 
Nii 

5,4 ?/'. 23 
~Iii 

I Nil 
~JiJ 

I Ni! 
I 
I Nil 
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' . 

I ···,1 

Haridaspur Paradip Rail·way C,ompanJ; [Jjmited 
CIN U45203Qf.;:2Q06PL C008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement tor the year ended March 31, 2023 

~1.2 C<ish and Cash equivalent (INR in Lakhs) 

:,--.::~~ 2~2~ ~ I 
I --- ~ -- ---- --- --- --
f-.--Particu lars As at 

31st March 2023 

1 Cash on hand 0.72 0.43 I 
I 

I 

Balances with banks: 
On current accounts 
Fixed Deposits having original Maturity of 
lhree months or l es~ 

205.12 
4 .015.00 

I ---------

275.90 I 
2,807.00 

I 

I 
Cash and Cash equivalent as per balance sheet I 4,220.84 3,083 .3:i I 

I 
-----· ---------- ·---··------- ____________________ l _______________ ----------·---- ·-· - - I 

~-J <Jth e r Ban:( Ba lances 

Particu:ars 

- v ·---·· - -----

!-"ixed Deposiis h811ing o<igina l Maturity of more than 3 
month~ and !ess than ·12 month5 
Fixt:d Deposits under Debt Service Reserve fl.ccou nt* 

1:: ,11 rn<Jrk.ed Balance in Dividend Account 

As at 
31st March 2023 

6,000.00 

1,068.80 

7,068 .80 

(INR in L.a khs: 

As at 
31st March 202/. 

5,530./tl 

1.19378 

6,724.52 

i 
I 

l 
I 
I 

I 
., Ceposi ts under the Deb t Service Reserve Account is mai ntained of an amount eq uivalent to sum requ ired for 
:T•ee 1inn P.nst..1ng tw~ quariers debt sc~v i ce obligations i.f). the rr::payment of the principal 2mounts c:f the l .o2ns 
and P<1V ITI'·~I ,t of inte:-P.st on the Loam. of the Sen:or Lenders o; as ITJC1ndate by the Bank . 

I 
19.4 CY he rs (INR ir. Lakhs )• 
: I 
~-----------------·--·---·------------------ ----------·-·----------------, 
: J:i ;:n t.ic.ui ~~ rs As at ' As at 1 

: 3'1st IVIarch 2023 31st March 2022 ! 
r-·--------------------·-----------------------------·-----·--------~ 
I :nterest A.ccrUf]cJ on Fixed Deposits 135.86 gg_:;o 'i 

Cons idered Good : Unsecured 
Security Deposits 0.87 __ J 
Tc.tal 136.73 99 .30 I 

~')Curren:. Tax Assets (lhH<. in Lakhs) 

Pa r ticuia'S l cs at As at 
i 31st l'v'larch 2023 31st March 2022 i 
~------ ----·--- -·--·- - ---·- --·--·- ·--·-------------------------------- ·--·- ·--------------·--; 

i\dv<n~e! ax & IT)S \ Net of provis1un fo r Income T<Jx) 210A6 140 19 
-- ------------------------ - ···------1 

l otal 2Hl.46 140. i 9 1 
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flaridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited 
CI N U452030R2006PLCOCiB59 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March .31 , 202.3 

Particulars 

P1·epaid Expenses 
Interest on Term loan Rece ivable 
Others 

As at 31st March 
2023 

264.78 
0. 13 
5.15 

(INR in Lakhs) 

As at 3·1st M<trch 
2022 

264 .82 

4.97 
Fair valuation adjustment-Financial Assets 
Prepayments 
Total 

------~:~1~. 2~5----------------~1 . 2_5 ______ _ 
271 .3'1 271 .04 

11 .1 Total Advance to RVNL under va1·ious heads (Note no. 11) for FY 2021 -22 has been reclassed from Other cu rrent 
assets to Captal advance under non curre nt asset (1'-Jote no. 8) amounti ng INR 22, 15,44 ,122/- towards "Total 
Advance to RVNL under various heads". 

·12 Equity Share Capita l (INR in Lakhs) 

1-
i 

Part iculars As at 
31st March 2023 

I 

[- . -------· 

As at 
31st March 2022 I 

I 1 Authorised share ca_Qj_@l 
I 150 ,00 ,00 ,000 Equ ity Share of INR 10 each 

1 (3 1st fJlarcll 2022 ·!50,00 ,00,000 Equity Sha1·es of INR10 each) 

I 

'I ,50,000.00 1,50.000.00 j 
--------·--------

1,50,000.00 I 

r·· -- Issued Capital 
1.._?_Q_,.Q_OO.OO --- I 

1 130,00 ,00 ,000 Equ ity Share of INR10 each 
! (:)1st [vJ::Jrch 2022 130,00 ,00 ,000 Equity Shme of I NR1 0 each) 
I 

1 ,30 ,000.00 1,30 ,000 .00 I 

I 
I 

- -
§.!l bs ~ rilx:<;l~llii..!.:.il.kLJ:!J2...Capital 
130,00.00 ,000 Equity Share of INR10 each 
(:3 '1st M;:m;h 2022 130,00,00.000 Equity Share of INR10 each 

1,30,000.00 1,30,000 .00 

'1 ,30,000.00 1.30 000 00 

I 

I. _! 
Reconci :iation of the number cf eq<J ity shares and share capita l (I NR in t_ak hs) 

Particu lars No of shares Am o u nt 

-· ·- -- --·--·-··· ------------- ·--·-----------·-----~(in Laklls) ________ _ ___ _jl l'l'~~:_~ l..; h_:;_)_ 
Bala nce ~sat 1st April 2021 11,873.73 ~.18 , 7 3 7. :'\3 

Changes ir1 Equity Share Capit<:1l due to p;ior period errors 
------ ---~--- -------

R c; stat !~d be1l ance at the beginning of the current reporting 11,873.73 1,18,l37 .33 
period 

Add: ShGres Issued during the yea1· 
A.du f' Er i iy pa id con verted to fully paid 
Less: Shares bought back during the period 

8 ;J iance As at 31st March 2022 

Cra nges in Ec;ui iy Share Capital dlle to prior period errors 

Rm:iakd lla la11Ce at til e beginn1ng of the current reporting 
fJe riod · 

Ac! J: S!·.ares Issued dunng the year 
,~>,J rJ . P<:Jrt li pa id con verted to fu!l y paid 
Less : Sha;·es bought oCl ck during the periorl 

8a !ance As at 31st March 2023 
Terms & Ri ght attached to equity shares 

1,126.27 11 ,262.67 

--------------------------------··- -
•j 3,000 .00 

------~ 
1,30,000.00 

----------------------- ----·- -
·: ~) .000 00 1,30,000.00 

-------- ----- ··--·· ·- ---··-

13,000.00 1,30,000 .00 

The :::om;Jan f has onl y one class of equity shares having par vallle of INRi Oi- per share. Each holder of equ ity s!l c. ,-es 
is en!t [lcd \·) one vote per sha re ar•d also to div1dencis in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by tne r~oa;c of [J~rec:o r :; 

IS :>t lbJeCt to the aporovai of the shareho lders in the 8 11s u : n ~J Annual General Meelmg. 

In the event of li qui dation of the Company, the l1oiders of equity shares will be entitled to receive 1·emai:11ng assets of 
the company after distributin g all preferentia l amounts . The distributi on wi!l be in propo1·tion to the number of equi ty 
shares helc: by the shareholders. 
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J laridospur Paradip Roih1N1y Corn pony l.imited 
CIN U452030F0006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 
Share:s lle ld by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates 

2023 

Tile cornpany does not have any holding/ultimate holding company snd/or thei r subsidiaries/associates . 

Details of shareholders holding in the company holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company 

Name of the shareholder As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022 
-------------------- --- ---- --·---

j£.ill!l1Y. wares .9l.J_~H 1-~~-=-~-11 wl1b.__y_glio.9..li9.bl.§_ 

No. of Shares 
(in Lakhs) 

11. Government of Odisha 2,377.93 
! [23,77,93,134 shares are Fully paid up@ INR:0/-
1 per share) (as at 31st March 2022:23 ,77,93,134 
1 shares@ INR10/- each) 
j2 Gdislla Mining Corporati on Limiied 1.099.98 
i [10,99,97 ,702 shares arc Fully paid up@ INI~ 'lO/ -
! per sharej (As at 31 st Marcn 2022: 10,99,97,702 b shares@ 11\ii~ · I O/- each) 
13 Paradip Port Au thori ty ·1 ,385.2 1 
1 [i3 ,85,2'1,10fl shares are 1-ully paid up@ IN1~10/-
I per st1are) (As at 31 st March 2022 : 13,85,21. 106 
i shnres@ 1Nf310/- t>.ach) 

%holdin g 
in the class 

No. of Shares 
(in Lakhs) 

18.29 2,377 .93 

8.46 1 ,099 .98 

10.66 1,385.21 

4 Ra il \fikas Nigam Limited 3,900.00 30.00 3,90C .OO 
[39 ,00,00,000 shares are Fully paid up@ INR 'I0/-

1 per sllare ] (!Is at 31 st March 2022 : 39,00,00,000 

1 __ ~h8 1:~-~-f@-~~~ R 1 0/- each) ----------------------------------- ------­
!5 S;:,garmala Development Co. Ltd 3,367.88 25.9 1 3,367 .88 
i [33,C-J7 !3ii .G52 shares are Fu lly paid up@ INR10/-

%holding 
in the 
ciass 

18.29 

-------
8 46 

10.66 

30 00 

-------------
25 .91 

j p<0· 1 sn <'~~! (~s :;t 31 st March 2022: 33,67 .88 ,058 

f ---- ;:~:~..<::~_@ :~~~~-~~~o~h)_:~--- ___ ~ --===r---- -------- - ---------------------·------
>-'.£1gre~:;tte i!O. of :;-quity shares issued as fu lly paid by way of bonus during the period of five years immediately 

pr _~-~-<:__~~fL!~~-_:-_E:YJO rti ng u ate ----------------------
Particular!; As at 

March 2023 
No's in Lakhs 

As at As at 
--- 31 Ma-rch 2622 ___ 3-1March' 2Cl21 

No's in Lakhs No's in La!~hs 

J\s at 
31~11arcfl 2oio 

No's in La khs 

As at 31 
31 IV!arcr. 2019 

No's in Lakhs 

Equity shares issued 
ilS bO'lliS 

Ni l 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 
------·--------·------------------ · 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

_ Sh~_r~ho ld in g of_Prol!l~t~~.§S on ~-~1_!\i?~-~ ~0_?-3 C!_r~~ fo llows_::: _ _ ___ __ __ _ __ _ ___ _ 
i Sh<:ues held bv prrJ mote~s at the end ~fthe year - =--'I No. of shares r 0/,} of total 
: Promoter Name (in Lakhs) share 
I - - -- - -- - - ---- 1-- - - - - - - --

' I~C.i!! Vii<.:JS Nigam !_lrrllted - -- --·- -- -- - --- I 3,900 00 -- -- _3_9 o_q_ 
1 

~;;~:1! ~i1P in g and :ndu~tri~s _l_~nitetJ _ ~~~- -=--~- -=--==---=- --=~~.~;:~~ -=·=- --=1- 3{~~; 

050 

Ni l 

Nil 

i %change 
_ l ~l!_r~ng the year 

I 

-!-
- - ' 

0.00 
·- J --- -----

%change 
du_ri":l!;! the yea:-

2 09 
~ (0 22) 

_[__ 1.87 
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l-Jaridaspur Paradip Railway Cornpany Limited 
CIN LJ 452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

- ---------------- -- ---------------------------------------- ------- --,~ 
13 Other Equity (INR in Lakhs)l 

1 

Particulars As at 
31st March 2023 

As at 
31st March 2022 

~ined Earnings 
------------

9,087 .35 5,827.16 
I Share- appl ication mo neypending for allotment 

Total 9,087 .35 5,827.16 

Reta ined earnings 
----

Particulars 

(I NR in Lakhs1 

As at As at ! 

~-- --- _______ 3_1 s __ t_JV_I_ar_c_h_2_0_2_3 ______ 31 st March 2022 j 
1 

I 
I 

I 
I 

Opening Balance 

/\dd· Net Profit/(Loss) for the period 

i)thel· co rnprehensive income arising from 
R8me<:~s urement of defined benefit obligation net of 
i11:::ome tax 

5,8n.-16 4 ,005 .91 
1 

4 .819.06 3 .12()"13 I 
1.13 1.12 

I 

!Less ~ int~rirr~_D~v 1de~~ ________________ -----------~5__6..2.:_~0) _______________ _ j_l , 3'2_~;_Q_O) __ _j 
5,8 27.16 C!osing Balance 9,087 .35 

-------
Retainr:;d Earnings rep1·esents the undistributed profits of the Company. 

13.2 Snare application money pending for Allotment (i NR in L.akhs) 

-------·----------·---------------- :...··---- ----·-------- ·---:.. _______ _ 
Purticu : d. r~i 

Openi1;g Balance 
Rc;cc ived/Adjusted dur·ung the period 
Covi of Oc1isha 
F-~ a ll Vikas Nig:ct m Limited 
Odisha lifi ining Corporation 
A llotment during the oeriod 

Ciosing B<~ l a nce 

14 Financial Li ab ilit~·-Non Current 

1 t\."1 80rrowi ng 
------------ ----

Particulars 

(i) Secured-At amortised cost 

Term Loan 
Fr·x n Bank 

T0tal 

As at As at 
31st rv'la!·ch 2023 31st March 20:n 

/\s at 
3·1st March 2023 

------·--·------------

'l 20 ,002 89 

1,20,002 89 

051 

3 ,6C!1.3e 
5,863 011 

1.707.7? 
(11 ,262 61) 

(INR in Lakhs j 

As at 
3h:t IVIarch 2022 

·1 ,2\i,OCi:2 .89 

'I ,20.00;!.39 
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I /aridaspur ParadtjJ Railway C~om;xrny Limited 
CIN U452030f,2G06PLCOC8959 

Noles forming part of the Financial Statement for Lhc year ended March 31 , 2023 

Summary of borrowing arrangeme nt 

(a) The cred it facil iti es were ref inanced by fVl/s UCO Bank on 25th October 2021, by way of takeover under so le 
banking arrangement, and documents to this effect which stipulates terms & cond iti ons (including the security and 
(;harge) were executed on i 8th October 2021. Moreover, No Due Ce1t ificates were obtained from the erstwhile 
consortium lenders and satisfacti on of charge were also filed w ith the concerned authority renderi ng Restated and 
amended financing documents executed on 01 st March 2018 and 01 st amendment to amended and 1·estated 
common loan ag reement executed on 29th Sept 2020 as satisfied by HPRCL. Further, charge in favour of M/s 
UCO Bank is also crea ted and filed with the concerned authority. Therefore, as on 31st March 2023, financing 
documents executed with M/s UCO Bank is in force . 

(b) Ouring FY 202 1-22, the company prepaid the debt ob ligations ti ll March 2027 which was adjusted in the normal 
order of maturity , part ly from the surplus of operational and partly frorn eq uity. Post adjustments of prepayments 
and interest !·eceivable , an amount of INR1 ,20,002.89 Lakhs is outstan8ing as on 31st March 2023 . 

(c.:) Amortiwtion schedu le of credit facili ties ava iled from M/s UCO bank is mentioned below: 

uar er Q - t -- ~- Term Lo~ n - l · Terrri Loan- 1 1 uar I Quar Term Lo<m -
Repayr:1eni 

I 
L Dec-21 -j--P-re--P- aid 

1 I during F.Y 
M<tr-22 2021 -22. 

i---j~::-221 pnor io 

Rop•ymoot I 

Pre-Paid 
during 
FY 
2021-22 , 

er 

Jun-28 

Sep-28 

Dec -28 

Rep~yment I ter Repayment 

--
2,540 .3 Dec-34 4,717.7 

2,540 .3 Mar-35 4}1Tr 
2,5403' 

f- - --
Jun-35 5,080 . 6~ 

t---
Mar-29 2,540.3 

Jun-29 2,903.2 
------ - -- -----·-----

Sep-29 2,9032' 

Sep-35 4,599 ~ 
Tota l _1 .:._2~.:._00 2 :89 --- ---

1- refinance 
1 Sep-2/ __ 
r rP.iinance 
i-_ 0_.:;.::_:_?_~ of tile 

i-- Ma r-?.~__j credit 

after 

Dec:-29 2,9032" 

~r-3~- 2,903 2< 

n-30 3,266.1' 

Sep-30 3,266.1 
-- --- 3,266. 1 ~ Dec-30 

Ma r-3~ 3,266.1 

Jun-31 3,629 01 

I 
I 

----- -- - _ , 

I 
I j tJi l -23 I Sep-26 facilitie~ 
1- -- --·--! -----~ by M/s 
· :>cr;-23 1 Dec-~6-l UCO 1 

~--n-e--:-::-; T-P-rc-Pal·d--J rv_l.'a r-2-1 I Bank _ _ ,, 
L1 --N~- ~~~;z--1 d.urin-g r Y j · >---~..2:_ _ _ ll :0:02 1 -:~2 , ' J~m-2"~ 2 , 1 T/4~ 
I Jur,--2"- r.~ttur --Sel·>-2-7 't -2,1774: -- R refinance o;' ~---- --· .., 17 7 4 ~--~-'_ep-2 ~_. Dec-27 "'' : 
1 

the credit --- - --- -----! 
1 Dcc-2<~ f::Jcili l ies by Mar-28 I 2, 177 4 

i _ _j M/~al~;o IJ _ , ________ _ 
114.2 Cea-seLiab iti t ies ________ ·- --------------·-- ------------ --- (TNR inTal<hsfj 

r·----Partic ul ars 

1---· Lease Liabilities 

As at As at J 

_____________ 3_1_s_t_M_ arch 2023 _____ 31st March 2022 ___ J 

i loia! 
I - ---- - - --- -
Refer Note No.33 for deta i ls of le-ase. 
15 Provis i on~, 

Particlli'3r'> 

Employee Benefits 

Gr;::tu iiy 

Lea•Je fncasrtment/I_I--1AP 

Leave Trave l Concession 

Total 

_ 17_22__ 12.d7 _____ i 
17.59 42.37 . 

As at 
31st March 2023 

052 

H.<17 

2El .38 

3 02. 

48.87 

----- --- J 

(INR in Lakhs ) 

As at 
3ist March 2022 

1 fi.75 

25 04 

277 

43.56 
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Haridaspur ParadtjJ Railway Company l--imited 
Cli\J U452030R2006PLC008Q59 

1 ~. 

~~-

Notes forming part of the Fimmcial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 
16. Financial !...iability-Current 

1 5.1 Borrowing 
----- ------ ------ -------- - ----------------------------------- ------· --------

Particulars As at As at 
-- --- --- - -· - -----

31st March 2023 31st March 2022 

Current maturities of long-term debt 

Total --------·-- ---

16.2 Lease Liabilities 

Particulars 

Lease Liabilities 

Total 
Ret~ r Note No.33 for detai!s of leases 

16.3 Other Financial liabilities 

Particu lars 

Oth~rs 

Other payables 

(iJ ' Audit Fees Payable 

(it) Others 

Divid ':?. nd Payable 

Tot a! 

1"1 Ol.h~r cu':!:ent_! i~~~ty ________ _ 

Parti culars 

As at 

3~st March 2023 

24.78 

24.78 

As at 

31st March 2023 

1.25 

31 .75 

1,068.80 

'1,101 .80 

As at 
31st Ma(ch 2023 

. ------·-- - -------------·---------------------
Others 

Statutory dues•· 

Total 

• Includes TDS, EPF , Professtonal Tax etc. 

1 b Provisions 

Particulars 

Employee Benefib 

C1rat·J i!y 
Leave E'ncashment!LHAP 

~eave Tmve l Co ncession 

Total 

163 .77 

163.77 

As at 
31st March 2023 

049 

11 .16 

1.45 

"i3.1 () 

05-3 

______ ..!.!.!'lli_L Q_!:,a k h s) 

.A.s at 

31st rVIarch 2022 

22 .54 

22.54 

(INR in Lakhs) 
-----

As at 

31st March 2022 

1.25 

21.67 

1,:9378 

1,216.70 

(INF1 in Lakhs) 
- -

As at 
3·1st March 2022 

~ 79 . 96 

1"19. 96 

As at 
31st IVlarch 20L2 

0 39 

5 98 

! 38 

~1 .75 
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1/aridaspur Pa.radip Naifvvay Cornpany Limited 
C I i~ U452030f\2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 
19 Revenue from Operation 
- --- ---- ---------

Particulam 

Revenue From Contracts with Customers 
Construction Contract Revenue under SCA (refer note 29) 
Income from Ra ilway Operation 

Wmks Contract Service 

Total 

For the year ended 
31st March 2023 

7,144.61 
35 ,055.82 

42,200.43 

(INR in Lakhs) 

For the year ended 
31st March 2022 

11 ,197.67 
35 ,206 .64 

40.88 

46,445.19 

19.1 Revenue fro1ll Railway Operations is recognized based on the calcu lati on sheets received from East Coasl 
Rai lways (ECoR) showing Apportioned Revenue and O&M Expenses on a prov isiona l basis. Hence, tile 
difference, if any, is accounted for when the other requ isite details are received/ issues are settled. 

20 Other Income 
-------------------------------

Particulars 

----·------ - --- -
interest Income 

(a) Bank Deposi ts 
Other Non Operating Income 

(a) Unwinding of discount on receivable from 
East Coast Railways under SCA 

(b) :Jnvvinding of discount on Security Deposit 

Total 

21 Other Operating Cost 

Particulars 

Construct ion Cost under SC.I\ (refer note 29) 
Oper;o,:: c. n ,<1,_ Maintenance Expenses* 
Cost und8r Works C:::>ntract Service 

Tot« I 

fo r the year ended 
31st March 2023 

--------

(INR in Lakhs) 

For the year ended 
31st Mar.::h 2022 

------------------

694.53 

114.29 

1.14 

809.96 

For the year ended 
31st March 2023 

7,144 .61 
11,684.18 

6-14.32 

103.89 

1 04 

7tl-9.25 

(INR in Lakhs) 

For the year ended 
31st March 2022 

-----
11,197 .67 
11,078. 99 

48.88 

"18 ,828.79 22,317.54 
--------------- - - ---------

' fJurin9 the year 1- Y.2D20-2 1, tile Operations & Maintenance (O&.M) Expenses were nccounted for ba,,ed on the 
!11terim Agreement entered with F..ast Coast Rai lways (ECoR) wh icll pmvicles that ECoR snail retain 25% of the 
apportioned revenue towards O&M Cost. Moreover, an amount of INR307.13 lakhs is also incurreci i:;y. ECoR 
to~'!ards l'vla i11t enance of the project till 31st March 2021 (over and above 25% of the revenue re ~ a in c!d by ECoR). 

Du1 ing for the , F Y. 2021 -22 , the Company entered inte O&M Ag reement with ECoR effective fron1 the d<Jte of 
issue of Safety Certificate , and O&M expenses are accounted for based on the ca lculation sneets received from 
ECoR showing O&M Expenses on a provisional basis. Hence , the difference , if any, is accounted for when the 
other requisite details are received/ issues are settled. 

Moreover, the pro-rata allocation of Project Insurance and incidental expenses FY 2022-23 INR32! .82 Lakt1s 
(lr·JR340 .89 Lakhs fer F.Y.2021-22) . Further, the amount incurred by M/s RVNL towards n1aintenance/restoratio11 
of Project Assets arnmmiing to NIL ( I ~JR284 . 84 L.akhs accounted for F.Y. 2021 -22) is also included in ihe above 
figu: e. !Jifferences shRII be accounted for during the pe1·iod in which they are sett led 

22 r:rnp!oyee benefit Expenses {IN R in Lakhs) 

Puticulars 

Sa l s ri e ~;. wages & ailowances 
E'mp!oye!'S Concribution towards EPF 
t' x-Gra tia 
F-~etireme nt Ben efits 
Staff Welfare Expenses 

Less· License l-ee & Other recovery 
- - --- -

Total 
------ -- ----

For the year ended 
31st March 2023 

116 04 
9 05 

'13.53 
11.83 
0.8 :3 

151 .28 

( \.03) 

150.25 

054 

For the year ended 
31st March 2022 

106.89 
8.22 
9.71 

'12 .34 

137.83 

(0.65) 

137.18 
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1/uridaspur Paradip Railvvay Company !Jimitcd 
CIN U452020RL006PLCOCl8959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

23 Financ:e Cost 

Particulars 

--------------------· 
Interest on Term Loan 
Other Finance Charges 
Interest on Lease Liab ility 

Total 

24 OeJ:;reciatior. and Amortisation 
-----------------------

Particulars 

(INR in Lakhs) 
--~~-----=----~-

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March 2023 31st March 2022 

------ --------
8,413.55 10,129.85 

0.96 90 52 
6.49 6.78 

8,421 .00 10,290.15 

For the year ended 
31st March 2023 

(INR in Lakl1s) 
-:-:---

For the year ended 
31st March 2022 

--·----------·--------·-----------------
Depreciatio:l on Property,Piant & Eq uipment (R.efer 
Note- 3) 
Arnuriizat ion c,f intangible assets (Refer Note- 5) 
Depi eciaiior, on Rig i1t of U::;e /\ssets 

Total 

25 Other Expenses 

Particulars 

11 .54 

8,544.42 
22.60 

8,578 .56 

For thE' year ended 
31st March 2023 

8.6] 

8,03: 2~ 
7.53 

8.047.37 

(INR in Lakhs) 

For the year endGd 
3'1st March 2022 

---------------------· ·------·--------------
Payment to statutory aud itor 

(i) As Aud itor - Statutory Aud it 
( lnc! L:din~ statu lor·y 2Ud!t fer Interim Pe:·iod) 

(ii) fax Jl.udit Fees 
(iii) Reimbursement of expanses 

Lega l &: ;)rofessional ch2 rges 
Travetl!ilg & conveya nce 
\.W!Ce ~en\ 
Tc !<3 phone & rntern a: expensc;s 
Vehicle insurance , r"unnin g & maintenance expenses 
i ·il! !lQ fees 
Seminar & meeting expenses 
intemal chJdit fee;:; 
Cvnlnbu lion !0\.JVai·ds corpus fund & membership fees of 
.!\!R 
[);rector's sitting fees 
Winding up of discou:Jt on Security deposit 
Professional Membershi p Fees 
CSR Expenses 
~)C Cho1d Line Survey Expenses 
Loss on Sale of Assets (r~et) 

rv~:scei laneous expenses 

1 .31 

0. 33 

FJOA5 
4.GG 

12.'1 5 
2.99 
5.38 
0.22 
0.81 
2.72 
1.00 

4.01 
0.05 
048 

61 .59 

14.89 

193.34 

055 

1.29 

0.32 

G8 G6 
L.Hl 

'i6.30 
1 99 
5.02 
0.30 
4 10 
2.93 
2.00 

4.25 
0.07 
0.54 

20.'18 
16.13 
0.35 

'12.57 

151) .50 



!faridaspu.r Paradip Railwa); Company !_jmited 
CIN U452030R2006PLC008959 

No les formin g parl of Lhe Financial Slalemcnl for the year ended March 31, 2023 

26 Income Tax Expense 

26.1 Income tax recognised in profit and loss 

Particulars 

Current income tax: 
Current income tax charge 
- i or earlier years (net) 
Deferred tax: 
In respect of the currer.t year 
MAT Payable 

Total 

-------
For the year ended 
31st March 2023 

2,019. 39 

----·------
2,019.39 

Reco nciliation between tax expense and the accounting profit : 

(INR in Lakhs) 

For the year ended 
31st March 2022 

3,123.57 

3,123 .57 

(INR in Lakhs 
·-----------

Pc: rticu lars 

------- --------·--------
A:::counling profit before tax from continuing operations 

,t>.c:counti11g profit before income tax 

At India's statutory Income Tax rate of 25.17%* 
(31 March 2C23: 25.17% ) 

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductable 
(tc>xab!e ) in ca lcuiating te1xab le income 
Deferred Tnx Acijustrneht 
:·a-x-es c.~f 12ar!ie1 yea is 

t\t the effec tive inc ome tax rate 

lnco111e !.ax eYpense ' eported in ihe statement of profit 
<:> nci loss (reialinq to sontinulf)g operations) 

Effective income tax rate 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March 2023 31st March 2022 

6 ,838.45 

6,838 .45 

2,019 .39 

2,019 .39 

2,019 .39 

2,019.39 

6,243.'10 

6,243.70 

3. 123. 57 

3,123.57 

3,1235"7 

3,1 :n .57 

Tne Co111rany opted fo r nc;w tax regime u/s 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 fo r FY 2020-21 and 
CJlvvaros 

2l Cornpanents cf Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 

The disaggregat ion of chan~es to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown belovv :--
(lNR in Lakhs) 

Puticulars 

- ·---- ----- --- ----·--------
17.err.ea3Ui'8ment of Def:n ed t; enE:iit plans 

Tax 1101pac: on Rern easuremenl of Defin ed benefit plans 

For the year ended 
31st March 2023 

1 .51 

(0 .38) 

113 

056 

For the year ended 
3ist Marc!~ 2022 

1.50 

(0 38) 

l .'12 
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flaridaspur Paradip Rr.-t i!woy Company f~ imited 
Cll\l U4520 30R~006PLC008959 

28 Earn ings per s hare (EPS) 

Part iculars 

Basic EPS 
From continu ing operati on 
From discontinuing operation 

Di luted E?S 
From continu ing opera tion 

From discontinuir,g operation 

28.1 Basi c Earning Per Share 

For the year ended 
31st March 2023 

0 37 

0 .37 

(INR in Lal<hs) 

For the year ended 
31st March 2022 

0 .25 

0.25 

The ea rnin ~js and we1ghteci averag e number ot E:qu ity shares used !n ca iculation of bas ic ea rnir,g per share:-

·------ ----·---
Parti cLdars 

--- ·---·--------- ----

For t he year ended 
____ _;3_1 st March 20:23 

J"Omfi\ a ttributable to equi:y hoiders of the company: 
Continu ing operation s 
Discontinued operation 

4 ,819 .06 

(11\!R in L<::lchs) 

For the year ended 
31st March 2022 

3,-120. 13 

------------------
Earn ings used in caiculation of Basic Earn ing Per Share 

W eighted average number of shares for the purpose o f 
basic earnings oer share 

4 ,8 ·19 .06 

13000.00 

3,120.13 

1240 '1 65 

*1 1l c~ weigl!t.ed ave:·age number of shares take into account the weigll\ed averag e effec t of changes in treasury 
:; j·,ar,; 11 8n<Oactions duri11 9 the yea1·. 

2d?. Oi l ut~a Earning !Jer Shc: rP. 

Tne eam ir' ;d S ar;d 'Nelghted average 11u1nber oi eq;.Jity sh;:ues usee in calculal !Orl of diluted ea··ning per shRrc:. 

--- --------·---·----------···------------------------'- ·-- ---·---·- -0-Nf{ in -~ak l~~ 
Part iculars For the year ended 

31st March 2023 
For the year ende d 
.'31st fv1arch 20n 

·--·-··--·------·- ---·- - -·------ ·· - ·---- ------- ---------------- ·-
?mfit attri bu table io equity h0 lders of ll1e co rnpany · 
Conii ' IL'ing ope ra t1 o r~ s 

DisGon !i. 1Umg operations 

t::arn ings used in ca lculation of d iluted Ea ming Per 
Sh<:Jre fmm cont inuing operations 

4.8 "19 .06 :~ .1 2 0. 1 3 

4,819.06 3,120.13 

13,000.00 
·- ·---·-----, 

12.401 .65 : 
i 

. ' 

057 



1 far idaspur Paradip Roilvvay Company Limited 
CIN: U452030R2006PLC008959 

Not es form ing parl of th e Financia l Sla lcmenl for the yea r ended Ma rch 3 1, 2023 

29 Disclosure of lnd AS 115 "Revenue frorn Contracts with Customers" 

29.1 Service Concession arrangements 

Public- -to-private service concession arrangements are recorded according to Appendix "0 " Serv ice Concession 
Arrangements" IND-AS- 115. Appendix "D" Servi ce Concession Arrangements applies if: 

a) The Grantor controls or reg ulates which services the operator should provrde w ith the infrastructu re , to whom 
it must prov ide \hem , and at what price; and 

b) The granlo!· control s through ownership , benefi ciR! entitlement, or othe:vvise any sign ifi cant res idual interest 
in the infmstr·uc\ure at the end of the term of the arrangement. 

If both of the above cond itions are met simultaneously , an intangible asset is recognized to the extent that the 
operator receives the right to charge users of the public sel'vice , provided thai these charges are conditional 
on !he degi·ee to which the service is used. 

These intang ible assets are initiall y recognized at cost , which is understood as the fair value of the service 
provided plus other direct costs directly attributable to the opera tion. They am then amortized over the term of the 
concessim:. 

The:: HPRC:.. (Company) has entered into a Concession .L\gn::!ern ent with Ministry of Rai lways (MaR) , Government 
oi India dn\ed ;:>Oth December, 2007 in terms of which !he Ministry of Rai lways (Grantor) has 3uthorized the 
Company !Operator) to deverop, finance , design , engineer, procure, constru ct, operate and maintain the Project 
R.a rl way and to exercise and/or enJOY the rights , powers , benefits, privileges authorizations and entit lements 
upon its completion . In terms of the said agreement HPRCL has an obligation to complete construction of the 
project ra ilway and to keep ihe project assets in proper working condition including all projects assets whose lives 
have exp ired. 

The conces,:; ion period is determin<Jrl with !'eference to attainment of NPV payback benchmark at the r:>te of retur11 
of 14 ~1o. The concess ion period shali be 30 yems of operation or till th e NPV payback equa l to equ it ~' investment 
is rGc:ched , whici'<o'Jer is c:arlrer . In case the NPV paybc=!C~ is rec.ched earlier than 30 years, the conc~~ssion 
aqreer:-1en: 'NOlde o-tand ter:; 1ina1ed and the r:;roject line would be re-possessed by rc.: i!way. 

/\ 1 'r;(: :!nd ot concession period the project assets sha ll rJe hand over by HPRCL to MOR and HP!:::;Ci . shal ll:.e 
entitled tu receive anci MOR sl1ail pay to HPI~C L. an amoum equal to the value o1 new assets and c;d ditiOIIal 
f~ ci!it i es created by tr1e HPRCI_ net of depreciation and amortisation. The original ex istin[J assets lc::Jsed to HPRCL 
by IV10F~ sh<J II revert t<>c!l to MOR. The fresh lanrl acquired by 1\JIOR and leased to HF'RCL shall a!so re·Jert back 
to MOR on pRyrnent of an ur.1ount equ3: to the cost of acqu isition . 

In terms of tne above ag reement upon expiry of 30 years of operation the concess ion period shall be extended 
l.iy an eq ual period of \rme wh!ch corresponds to the period for wh ich materia! disruption of operatro n and 
mc;intenanr.:e occu rred d•Jring the concess ion period However such exte n ~io P wi ll be lirnitecJ to JJ I (Wision that if 
NF'V payback equal to equity investment is reached earlier then the period so extended, the concession period 
wou ld slana 'errn inated. 

In case of materia l breach in terms of the agreement the MOf-~ and HPRCL both have the rig hi to terminate the 
agreement if they are not ab le to cu•e tne event of default in accordance with such agreement. /\s per terms of 
concession, in case fresh concession is issued first prefer·ence shali be given to company fo• :;ame 

For the year ended 31st March 2023, the compan1 has recog nized revenue or INR 7,-144.61 lnkhs (31st March 
2022 INR 11.197.67 Lakhs) on const ruction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement. 
Company ~a ~ recogn ized nil profit on construction of int;;mgib!e assets under se rvr ce concesston a•rangemell! 
. l"he revenue recog ni;;ed in reiRtion to conslr·uction of intangible ass2ts under ser·vice concession arrangement 
du'ing the year e:1cled on 31s t March 2023 represents ihe fai r value of serv ices provideci towards constructio.1 
of inrangib ie asset s ur1dor serv:ce concess ior1 arr<Jng ement The company have: reco~Jnised revenue of 
INR35.055.82 lakl1s frorn operation of rarlway line during llle F- Y 2022-23(1- . Y 2021 -22 !NF~ 35,206 .64 Lakhs) 
The cornpany t1as recog nized rece ivable under ser·vice concession arrangement measu !·ed at the amort ised cost 
at 31 s\ March 2023 of iNR 125'1.1 7 lakhs (at 31st Ma rch %022 of 1142.88 Lakhs) .,representing tne weserrt val·.te 
of fresh la11d acquired by MOR and leased to HPRCL whicl r is reccl'Je rable at the end of concess ron perrod from 
MOR 
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29.2 Disaggregation Of Revenuet_ 

Pariicu lars 

Construction Contract Reveilue under SCA 
Income from Railway Operation 
Works Contract Service 

Contract balances 

Pa rti cu:a rs 

--·------------
r rade receiv21b!es 
Contract assets 

Con! r::tct ilabil:ties 

--.. ----- ------·- ------·-- ·------
P<i rticu lars 

Ceq tract /1.ssei c; t th e beginr11ng of th e year 
Traqsfer from Contract Asset to Trade Rece ivab le 

For the year ended 
31st March 2013 

7,144.61 
35,055.82 

42,200.43 

For the year ended 
31st March 2023 

6,978.36 

For the year ended 
31st March 2023 

and increase as a result of changes in measure of prog,·ess 
Co;~ i:act .U.sset at the end of th e year 

Forth<) yc3r ended 
31st March 2023 

Coflttact Liabilities G! n1e oeg inning of the year 

Tr<:~r:sfer from Contract Liabilities to Rev~nue and i 
t~crease as a result of changes in measure of progress 
Ccntrac! Liab ili ties at tr1e end of the :tear 

(INR in Lakhs) 

For the year ended 
31st March 2022 

11 ' 197 .67 
35,206 .64 

40.88 

46,445.19 

(INR in Lakhs) 
------'--

For the year ended 
:11st March 2022 

5 ,47? 23 

__ ( 1~~- i n L~khs) 

For the year ended 
31st March 2022 
----------

(IN~ in La khs ) 

For the year cncl (~d 

31 st Mr:~rc:h 2022 

l he1·e W3s no ,-evenue r.=:cogn ized in the current report ing p.sriod tha t related tc perfor'l1ance obl iga tion,; that 
wer-e sa tisfied in a prior year. 

29.3 Const ruction Contracts 

In terms of the disclosure req•Jired in INO AS--1 15 "Construction Contracts" 2 s no~ifi ~d in the cornra;'ies 
(/\,:counting Standard) rules 20 18 , the arnount consider2d 111 the ;1n;mc1al :; tatements ._;p tn !he bai anc(~ sl1ect 

-·-- a a~=-are as~~~~~-~-~~---- - --------------·--------·------ ·----·--·------~\m __ i!~_La~r.s { 
Particulars 

-·- ---·------
C:ontr;:.;ct ··c:ven ue recognised 

/\ggregaic a:nount of costs incu~red and 
rccogrilzed in 1::-ofit/l.oss 

Fo r the yt::ar ended 
31st March 2023 

7,144.61 

7,144.61 
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Nol es formin g p<ll'l of Lhe Financial StaLemcnl fcnl he year ended Ma rch 31 , 2023 

30 Capita l management 
The company objective to manage its capital in a manner to ensure and safeguard their ab ility to continue as 
a go ing concem so that company can continue to pmvide maximum return s to share holders and benefit to ot l1 er 
stake holders. 
Fu:ther, company manages its cap ital structure to make adjt.:stments in li ght of changes in economic conditions 
and the requirements of the financial covenants. The company maintain an optimal capital structure of Debt 
equity to reduce the cost of ::apita l. The company debts includes long term debt , interest bearing loans and 
borrowings from banks . 

Part:cu lars 

Boroowing (Note No. 14) 

Net debt 

Equ ity (Nore No. 12) 
Other equity (Note I'Jo. 13) 

Tot::.l equ ity 

Net Debt to equ ity ratia 

31-M<:~r-23 

1 ,20,002.89 
---

1,20,002.89 

1 ,30 .000.00 
9,087.35 

1,39,087.35 

45:54 

(I NR in Lakhs) 
----'-

31-l\llar-22 

1 ,20 ,002.89 

1 ,20 ,002 .89 

1 ,30,000.00 
5, 827 .16 

--- -----
1,35,827.16 

47 :53 

1\J o chi:lnges were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing cap ital during the period ended 31st 
March 2023 . 

:\1 Fimmcia! Instruments 

(i) Financial Instruments by Category 

Pa rt iculars 

F'inano:::ial Assets 
(i) f;·a:.ie F'c·C31Vables 
(ii) Cas!; an'1 Cash Equiva le11 ts 
•' iii) Ga,·;k b81ances othe r t11 an (i) above 
r.iv) Rece1vab iP. from Railways under SCA 
(v) Security Deposits · 
(vi ) Ot11 21·s 

Total F; nanc ia! Assets 

Financial ~iabil iti es 

(i) Borrowing s 
(i i) Lease Liabilities 

(ii1) Oihe ~ financ;al !1abilities 

Tota: Fi1~ancial Liabilities 

FVTPLI 
FVTOCI 

(I NR in Lakhs) 
--------- -------------

P>.s at 

31st iVIarch 202 3 

Amortised 
Cost 

6 ,978.3fJ 
4 ,220.34 
7 .068 80 
1,257.'!7 

13.38 
135.86 

19,674.41 

As at 

31st Ma~ch 2022 

FVH'LI 
FVTOC I 

Amortised 
Cost 

54-;?.23 
3,083. l3 
E-: .72452 
1,'142 88 

11 37 

99 .30 

16,53R.63 
-------------------------

1 ,20 ,002.89 
42.37 

1 .1 01 80 

1,21 ,'147.06 

1,20,002.89 
64 91 

1.216 .70 

1,21,284.50 

(ii) F ai1 v:;; lue of financial assets and liabi lities that are rr.easured at fai r va lue (but fa;r vnlue d!sclosure are 

____ ~=~~~-0~dJ----------------·--·- --------· ·--·------- - ---·- ---------- .J~.R 0. Lc.kh~l 
Partic t, lars 

Financial Assets 
Receivable frorn ri':liiways under SCA 
Security Deposi ts 

Tc·tai Fi nar.ciai Ass:::! ts 

As at 
31st March 2023 

Carrying 
Va lue 

1,257 .17 
13 3!} 

'j ,270.55 

fair 
value 

\ 257.17 
13.38 

1,270.55 

As at 
31st Ma!'ch 2022 

Carrying 
Value 

1,142.88 
1 '1 .37 

1,154.25 

Fair 
V3 1Ue 

., 142 .88 

11.37 

'1.154.25 
--- - -------· --------
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ii) 

iii) 

The carrying amounts of .:ash and cash equivalents and other short term receivables and payab les are 
cons idered to the same as th ei r fair values , due to short term nature . 

Long term vari ab:e rate borrowings are evaluated by company on parameters such as interest rates, specific 
country risk factors and other risk factors. Based on th is evaluation ihe fa ir value of such payables are not 
materially different from their ca rrying a1r.ount. 

The fair va lue of receivables from ra ilways under service concession arrangement were calculated based on 
cash fl ows discounted using weighted average lend ing rate. They are c;iassified as level 3 fa ir values in fa ir 
value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk . 

Fair Value hierarchy as on 31-03-2023 (INR in Lakhs) 

Total Particulars 

Financial Assets 
F1nancis l assets at Amortised Cosi 
Receivable from ra ilways <mder SCA 
Security Deposits 

Fa ir Value hierarchy as o'l 31-03-2022 

Particl ll a~s 

r inant;ial /~ssets 
Financi<:d assets at Amortised Cost 
Rece ivable from railwavs under SCA 
Security Depos its 

(iii) Financia l risk management 

Level 1 Leve l 2 

----------------

Level 1 Level 2 

---------·- -----

Level 3 

1,257.17 
13.38 

1,257.17 
13.38 

----- ------------
1,270 .55 

Leve l 3 

1,"142 .88 
11 .37 

1,154.25 

., ,270. 55 

(INR 111 l.akhs: 

Total 

1 ' 142 88 
11 .37 

1,154.25 

The Cornpany·s principal financial liabi lities comprises Rupee Term l .. oan from bank . The main pu rpose cf 
th•.;se fin ZJ nci:JIIi abilit if:t> i:, to f ina11c2 the cornpany's project . The Company 's principal 7inancial as sets include 
GJSil ~md cas;·, e:~ u i va l er• t s <m el o:h e:· <ece i•tables that de>ive directlv from its ope1·at ions. 

-:·nt2 Co(Ylfi <:Hiy is exp:::Jse to rnarket risk , credit ri sk and 11quid ity ns:\. Til e r:ompany fi nancial ,·isk acli•::l rGs are 
\JOVcmeJ by approprial eci poli s1es ::md pmcedures and that fin ancialnsk me 1de:1t1fied meast' red a,ld 
mana~)'>ti in ac:cordance wi th the companies policies and risk objectilies. The boar~J oi dir·ectors reviews anc 
agree~• pol icies for managing each of these risk , which are summarised t:e iow: -

a} Market RL;;k 

fvla r i<et risk is the risk that the fai1 vaiue of future cash fl ovvs of a financial instruments wil! fluctl.,<-lte bei;CJLi5e 
<'f cJ1anges in ma ,·ket pricf)S . Marke t nsk con ·.prises interest ,·ate risk . rcin ancia l 1nstrurr,ents affeded by market 
: i~;~ includE:s deposits and otller non denvative finan cial instrurnents . 

b) Inte rest Rate Risl\ ' 

Interest ra te ri sk is the risk tl1at the fair value of fu!LII e cash flows of a fiPC:mcial inst ruments will fluctuate 
because of change in market interest ,·ate. The company exposure to the ri sk ot changes in market interest 
rate re lates prirnariiy to the investments of surplus fund 1nto biln k deposits and borrowings from bani< .. The 
ccrnpaPy mc:nages :ts interest r:s~ in accordance wim the companie~ policies a:.c risr. o1Jject1ve 

c) Crerl it risk 

Credit risk is the ris l( ct financial loss to the Compa 'ly if a customer or cou ntei·party to a tinanc:a i ,, 1strumer1l 
,a, !s to meet its co ,ltracluai ubl!gations , and am;es principally 1rom tile Co:-npany's receivables fm1 n othe.-s. 
rh e company 1<. exposed to cred it. ~is l ; from its tinancial activ it ies includiilg deposit ~: with banks, !111ancial 
!nst,tul l ·~ n s nnd oiher fi nancial mstruments . 

061 



l-Jaridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited 
CIN i.J452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Financia l instruments and cash deposits 

Credit risk from balances wi th banks and financial institutions is managed in accord ance w ith the compa nies policy. 
Investment cf su rplus are made only with approved counte rpa rty on the basis of the fin ancia l quotes rece ived from 
the counterparty 

d) Liq ui d it y risk 

Ultimate responsibili ty for liqu idity risk management rest with the boa rd of di rectors the company manages 
ma intain ing adeq uate banking facil ities by continuously monito rin g fo recast and actual cash flows and by 
matching the ma tu rities of fi nancial li abi lities 

32 Key sources of estimati on uncertainty 

The followings are the key assumptions concern ing the futu,e , and the key sources of estim3tion uncertainty 
at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of ca using a material adjustment to the carTying 
arnount of assets and liabi lit ies with next financial ye<.Jr. 

a) f=air va luation measurement and valuation process 

The ia ir va lues of financial assets and financia l li abi lities is measured the val uation tech niques including the 
DCF :-nodel. The inputs to these method are taken from observab le markets whe;·e possible, b• rt where ihis 
rs 11 01 fCJasib le , CJ degree of jUdgement is requir-ed in establishing fair valu es. Judgrnenis include 
consider·3t ions of inputs s•_rc!l as liqurdity risk , cred it r·isk and vo latil ity. Changes in Clssumptions about these 
fac to r~; could affect the reported fa ir value of financia l instruments. See Note 31 fo r further disclosures. 

b) Usefu l li ves of Prope rty,Piant & Equi pment 

As described in note 2.6, Useful life of properiy plant and equ ipmeol t are based on a number of fa ctor s 
including the effects of obsolesces, demand , com petiti on, intern al assessment of user experience and other 
economic factors and level of maintenance expenditu re req uired to obtain the expected fu tur-e cas ~1 flows 
from the asset. The Company rev ic-;ws the useful li fe of propert y, plan t and equ ipment at each ~ep orting date. 

c) Useful l ife of in tangibie Assets 

As described in note 2 ·;·, compa0y has eslimated the usefu l live of int<;ngible assets (! n ta:--~gib l e under servir:e 
conc<)SSion ar-rangement) is 30 years for amortis8tion of intangible assets, As per service co oJ Cess:on 
c: rrarrgemeni if ~JPV pay hack equal to equity :nvestment @ 14% is reached earlier than 30 \'f)8 rs, :he 
co;~cess ion agreement wou ld stc;nd te rminated 2nd the project line wou :d be repossessed by ra :lway. 

d) Tc< xes 

Deferred ·tax as:sets ar·e recognised for unused tax losses to tile extent it is probable tha t ta xa ble pr,Jfil wi ll be 
avai labie agai nst which tax assets can be utilized. Sign if icant management judgement is reqL: ired to 
de termine the amm~nt of deferred iax asse t that ca n be recogn ised, based upon the iikely timing and :evel 
oi future taxab le pmfit together w ith future tax planning strateg ies. 

e ) «evenue Recogn it ion 

T!·;e Compa ny recognizes revenue for a performance ob ligation satisfied over t:me after reasonably 
estimati ng its progress towards complete sati sfaci ion of the performance ob ligation. 

33 Leases Disclosures 

~_ompany-As a Les5ee 

fvlin:st;·y ot Railway (le::>sor-) has leased al l the exist ing assets as per concession agreement and nny iand to be 
11cwly acquired tor the project to compa:ly (Lessee) fo r the dur·atio r; of Concession Agn; e:: rnent i e , 30 years or on 
to atlainrr,en: of ttw f\l(O\ Present Va !ue (NPV) payback equal to equity in•testmcnt @14% whichevsr is ez.r!ier . 

Leased Assets from East Coast Railways 

East Cc,ast Railwav (l essor) has leased til e existing asse ts as per concess ion ;?.S)reernen; and tile !and to be newly 
<.1cqu:;cd with all nghts , easements tor the projecl to the company (lessee) tor the duraiior, of concess1on 
agreeme•1i 

Compnr,y sil311 pay to the lessor·, an annual lease rentai of II\IR .1/ - p.a. in case of new !and acqu ired by East 
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Coast Rai lway Rnd as per exta nt poli cy of the Min istry of Railways (as revisEd fm rn time to time) for the original 
land ct Railway wt1ich shal l be payable in advance in the first week of January every year . Upon expi ry , the 
Company is required tc hand over the leased assets to Ministry of Rai lways (fvloR) free form all encumbrances 
whatsoever. If the concession penod is extended/renewed beyond concession period, the lease agreement 
shall also to be exte:1ded/renewed at terms to be mutually decided by the pari ies. 

The Company has taken lease assets from Ministry of Railways under non--cancellable lease. As rent payable is 
dependent on the extant policy of Ministry of Ra ilways which changes from time to t ime , therefore it is not poss ible 
for the company to determine and present the futu re minimum lease rentals payable . Therefore Company does 
not have a:1y impact of leases asse ts from East Coast Ra ilways due to adoption of the I nd AS- 116 leases . 

Otlter Leased Assets 

(i) Company has taken its office on the lease for period of the 3 yea:s during the F.Y :<02 1-22. License fees agreed 
to be pa id during the lease period is Rs. 40/- + 18% GST per· sqft on to tal area of 6,046 sq ft . per month sha ll be 
esca lated @ 15% after every 3 year. Moreover, the discounting is done on annual basis. 

(ii) iVIovement in Right of use assets-Bui lding (IN R in Lakhs) 
,---- ----- -- ---------------------- --1--------- - ----,- --- - -- - - ---
1 Particulars j ~sat 31'1 March 2023 As at 31 "1 March 2022 

~- ~~;,;;~,~-:;~~~c;~~:::~th~b~;;;,~ of-the;;., ---~~ -_ 6021 ~ -~ -I ·_ 
67 80 

-- I 
l !)ep.·eci-;;ti~-~ c~-, ~g!_d~~ng th~- year-=-~~-~~=-= [~~~~-~~~----- ~------- 7 53 _ I 

~-~~~~~~~:e~~~~-~~~ ~~!h~~~~d_ ~!th-e 1;;;_-=~~=~ ~:-=-=i?~~-=---=-=i--=--·-- so :;~-- - -~~~ 
(111 \ Movem ent in Lease Liability (I NR in Lakhs) 

,----- - --- -·- -------------- -·----- ----~ --------------------l------·--·------------ ---1 
J Pa 1ti cll_~ars ______________ --------~: As at 31 "

1 Marc_~ 2023 _As at 3!' 1~~rch202~ -~ 
', Open ing Ba lance as to the beginn ing of the year 54.9 1 -
r-,\dc ition-~d~ri n~th_e_y~~r -------- ------------·- - ·------ ---:- ·--- - ------ ~ - -·- -6l~O- ------- - ~ 
r- - -- . - ---- - ----- - ~ -- ------- -- ·----f-- - -1 

I !nt2n-:st recognisea during the ye3 r 1 6.49 ! 6.78 I 
F'•.; ·>·rnr:,1t rr1a:ie dur·i!"g lh e !',o:ari!otRI cash outflow fo :· (?9.G2) (9 .G7) - . - "l II --' 

:n:..' leases I, ___ 

1 

,

1 !1-'iodikatrGn (3ain Orl IE: :3Ses 

Adjustments -- ~ - _ = -j" - ~ 
L S I~s ir1J]_-~_a!~~~e aio-n th~;~:i~f_!~e~~~!--~=-- ~ . J.~-~ --~2_}8 _ _ ___ 1 - - 6~~g1 ___ --~ 

(iv) Lease Liab ilities are ·presented in the Balance s t~ e0t 3re as fo ilows: - (I NR in l__akhs) 
··--- -- ~ - - ---- ~------ --· ---------- ------- .. -- ·- i 
j PaiticuiJIS _ _ _ _ _ _ _____ As ai 3'1 51 rvlarch 2023 ; As at 3·1" March 2022 

! Current _ ___ __ _ __ _ ________ _ __ _ _ -~4:_!9_ _ --1 ___ 22 .54 ___ i 

! -~:;~~C~~rre~~---_--__ ~-~ ~~~=---~-=--==----==--=--~~=~-~~-::-~-~- =-----t~=~=-=-:~1±~ = ~-=--- i 
(v) As at ::11 st M<m.:n 2023 , the Company has noi committed tc any leases which has not been yet commenced. 

(vi ;. The Cornpany ~ ·a s elected not to recogn1ze a lease liabil ity for short term leases of leases of low value assets 
E;:pen::;es r·<J iated to !~1i s leases are not included in the measurement of the lease li2bility . Gera ils of the same are 
as to:lm.vs :--

(H~R in i_akhs) 

1

--- ·- -· ----- ---- -- -~-

As at 3'151 March 2022 
- --- - - -- ---- ---

Particulars 
r·- ----- ------- -----
I As at 31'1 March 2023 

Silon term leases I 

iJ-<-:~~~ cf l ow_,~a~u e o~ ~~s_ets 
1 ·1 otal 

i--
·-1-· 

I 
I 

-·- --1- 1 
i 

I __ j_ - J 

I vi i) l;lterest e:<pe nses irr re lation to leasirrn activ ities refer Note-23. 
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(vi ii) ExpePses rel ated to the variable lease payments are 1-.Jil. 

(ix) Income from subleasmg of the right of use assets is Nil. 

(x) Gain/loss from sale and leaseback transactions is not applicable to the Company. 

(xi) Maturity prof il e of the ieases or: undiscounted basis as on 31st March 2023 and 31st March 2022 are as 
fo llows · 

As on 31 51 March 2023 (INR in Lakhs) 

~P~r;~ular_:; =-. === ~- ~ 'c•s_sth•n_1_le~"_ ~J' ~5 yw --· ---~ ~ _ IM~o,e th•n sYem I 
i J::ea~J:i_a~it't_ ______ ,_ 29 .02 19.35 __ -----~--- __ 

! Totr:_i _ _ j_ ___ _?9.~ ___ ]_ _. _.:!.9:3~ ___ __ _ ____ __::_ ___ __J 

.A.s on 31 51 March 2022 (INR i! l Lakhs) 

I P~rticufnr::; Le2_~ ~-an_·l ye~r~- i 1-5 year _ I More than 5 years 

I J-eas; Li~bil ity _ ~--- __ ___ __ _ 29.02 -~ _, 48.37 j 

!_!_ot_al _____________ ]__ ____ ~~~--- __ j _ ---- ~~ . 3~---· ____ j __ 

34 The credit faci lities were refinanced by M/s UCO Bank 011 25th October 2021, by way of takeover under so le 
bank inq ,'mangement , and documents to this effect which stipulates terms & cond itions (including th e security a11d 
.:;har~te ) were 0xecuted on '18th October 2021 . Moreover, No Due Certificates were obtained fr·om th 2 erstwhi:e 
consortiun · lenders and satisfaction oi charge were also fiied with the concerned <Authority render;ng Restated and 
<Jrnenrted iina'1Cirlg documents ex~::cuted on 01 st lVI arch 2018 and 01 st amendment io amended and restated 
common loan agreement executed on 29th Sept 2020 as satisfied by HPRCL. Furth er, charge in favour of M/s 
UCO Dank is alsc created and fil ed with the concerned authority. Therefore, as on 31st March 2023, financing 
documents executed w ith M/s UCO Bank is in force . 

Du,.ing F-.'(. 2021-22 , th e co;-r1pany prepa:d the~ debt 'Jbligations till rvlarch 202"1 which was ad justed in the normal 
orde; of moturity , partly from the surplus of operational and partly from equity . Post adjustments of !Jrepaymenis 
and inter~:s t receivable an amount of INI~1 . 20 , 002.89 L<:t!<.r1s is outstanding as on 31 sl March 2023 

35 Commitments 

1'.·· Cap iteti Cornr.-.itrn.;.nts 

E ,:tir;!ated cHn:;uni of wor-ks remain ing to bo exer:ut:;d on r:apilai account (bns!.:!dc,n FPC co s,) and not 
provided ·loi" . 

Hari das>1ur Paraclip ElG Rai l Link INR25.34 Crores (lf'-JR 123.48 ' Crcres as on 3 1st March 2022) 

Drwnrnanda! Chandikhol Rail Link- INR149.62 Crores (Nil as on 31st March 2022 since cost estimate 
npprov;~d in r: .Y.2022 -23) 

8 - Other Commitments 

r~i ; (Previous Year 1-J il) 
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

3G RHiated Party D:sclosures 

36:1 As Required by IND AS - 24 "Related Party Disclosure", detai ls of related parties are: 

S.No Name of Parties 

Parties having Significant influence 
1 Government of Od isha (GoO) 
2 Odisha Industrial Infrastructure Development Corporat ion (ICCO) 
3 Odisha Mining CGrporation Limited (OMC) 
4 Pa radip Port Authority (PPA) 
5 Rai l Vikas N1gam Limited (RVNL) 
6 Sgarrnala Development Company Limited (SDC I_) 

•·~ey Mr.mageri al Person 
1 Shri Oebaraj Panda (Managing Director) 
2 Sl1ri Navin Agarwal (Chief Financial O ffir.:er) 
3 Shri S K Satpathy (Company Secretmy) 

3£.2 f1·ansaclion with parties having significant influence 
-----------------·-

(INR ir: Lal'\hs) 

Particulars Transactions # Ad vanr.;e on the party 
---- ------

For Period ended For Period ended For Period ended For Period ended 
31st March 2023 31st March 2022 31st March 2023 31st March 7022 

RVNL 
ProjeCJ Expenditure including 7144.6 1 11 ,012.25 4,326.51 2,2'15.44 

; D&G. services for maintenance 
expenditu re, etc 

(INR in Lakhs) 

!kur~ e of th;! part)' Share to he ~~moun !. received/ Sl1are Allotted Sh are· to be Share 
<.! liotted as at Adj uEted <iuring the year allotted as at .A.IIotted till 

O·l-04-2022 during the pe riod ' 3~~~ !\/larch 2023 31st March 2023 
----GoO________ f\JIL i'i1~ --------Nil"" _ _________ NTL----- ---23 779~31 

(~~IL) (3,691 .86) (3,691.86) • Nil_ (23.7-:-9.3:) 
lOCO NIL NIL f\JIL i'JIL lSO.OO 

(r\JIL) (1\J !L) (N IL) (N IL) (190 .00) 
OfVI C NIL t~IL NIL NIL 10,999.77 

(NIL) (1 ,707.77) (1 ,707 77) (NIL) (1 0,999.77) 
PPA N!L Nil NIL NIL. 13,852.11 

(N!L) (NIL) (Nil_) (NIL) (13,852.11) 
RV!\J L NIL NIL Nil_ NIL 39,000.00 

(NIL) (5,863.04) (5,8f33.04) (NIL) ;39,000.00) 
SDCL 1\JIL ~~ IL NIL NIL 33 678 .81 

___________________ \~IL) _______ ~~------~~------ -~-~L_-" __ _i~~~Gl8~--
~ Figures in or·;,ckets clenote cnrnoarat ive figu res of previous year.) 
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36.3 Compensation of Key Man agement Personne l (KMP) - Refer note 36.1 

Tl-,e remuneration of directors and other members of key management personn el during ihe year was as 

fo:lows : (INR in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March 2023 

---------------------------------
Short-te rm br:mefits 
Post-P.mployment benefit s 
Other io:lg-term benefits 

110.49 
8.99 
8.38 

128.36 

37 Contin ~1e nt Liabilities (C la ims r:ot acknowledged as debts by the company) 

For the year ended 
31st March 2022 

107 .57 
7. i 7 

13 03 

127.77 

ill -~n.Q : l_ar.downers (from w hom land was purchased) have fil ed various cases from time to time for 
enhanced compensation . The Gmount of c:a ims pending as at year-end is not quantifiable 

lllJ !ncome T~~: 

------· .---------- -
"<:~riod Am o unt Forum Status 

(in Lal<hs ) Pend ing 

. y 2013-14 41.00 Pri ncipal CIT Matte r is p 
(41 .00) 

\Y2014-15 158.35 CIT (Appea ls) Appeal ha 

( 158.35) ~ order pass 
AO. 

----------- ----- -·------- ---
)' 20"17-18 78.09 CIT (Appea ls) Matter is p 

(78~ _______ ._L______ ' - ---------- - ------
rA 
L __ 

u.: i gu r·r~s in brocke:ts denote previous yea!' figures.) 

(!UJ Cia irn of ivl/s RVNL 
i\ surn of iNR <1,424 12 Lakh3 upiu 3 ·1st rJlc; rch 2023 (I NR 2,'199 81 Lakh f: up to 31st fvl arch 2022 ) towards 
:nter2st <md oti·1er clla,·ges demanded by fV1/s RV r.,JL is no: acknowledged as debt by ihe Comrc;ny. 

:$8 lri1pairmer:t of Assets 

On tht.' basis of review·; the management is of the opinion that there rs no impairment of any assets as on the 
8aiance Sheet date . 

'39 Audii Fees & Expenses for t110 F.Y. 2022-23 i nc :utl~s as follows : 
(INR in Lak!ls) 

·-------- -·----------------------- - ·------
Particulars 

(.J Statutory Audit 

(ii) Tax .I\,;Jit Fees 

(iti) ReimbJr seme;nl of expenses 

Tota l 

For the year ended 
31st IVIarch 2023 

T _--~ ---~- --------

1.31 

0.33 

1.64 I -- _____ l 
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Notes form ing part of the Financial Statement for the year ended flllarch 3"1, 2023 

40 Retirement Benefits/ Long Term em ployee benefits 
The summarized pos ition of Post-employment benefits and long te rm employee be nefits recog nized in the 
statement of Profit & Less and Ba lance Sheet are under:-

40.1 Econom ic Assumptions 
The principal assumptions are the discount rate & sa iary growth rate. The discoun t ratE: is generally based upon 
ihe ma rket yields avai lable on Government bonds at the accounting date re levant to currency of benefit payments 
for a term that matches the liabilities. Salary growl11 rate is company's long term besi es timate as to salarl' 
incr-eases & takes account of inflation , seniority, promotion , business pian, HR po licy and other relevam factors 
on long term basis as provided in rFJ ievant accounting standa rd. These va luation assumpti ons are as fo llows:-

(INR in Lakhs) 

[P-a-rt-i c:-u !;" r-s- - --As at 3_1_"_' i_Vla rc ~-· _2_0-2=3~~---_-_- _-_· -_-_-_-A_-_s~a~t-3-~~-IVl_a_,·c-~~-o:_? 2-~----_-l 
I S-fSisw.Jr~ti-ng Rate - ----· 7 3P. 7 . 19 -i 
I_:~) F-"uture sala1·y _ln_c_~e_c.o_·s_e_' ___ __________ _!~~- il 00 ____ __j 

40.2 Summary cf resu lts 

Th e: rsble beiow shows a summary of the key results of the repo rt including pas t resul ts as appl icable . 

r S. NfJ. As sets! Liabi li ty 

I r----- --·-------
, a rresent valL:e rJi obligation 

(INR in L.akhs) 
- ------- - ·---------------·--
As at 31st Marc h 2023 

Gratu ity 
Liabi li ty 

17.96 

Leave 
Liab i lity 

39.53 

As at 31 st Ma;ch 2022 

Gr<1 tu ity 
Liab i lity 

16.14 

Leave 
Liabi li ty 

31 .02 

I 
b Fai1 va lue of plan assets 
c :~m as_sets i (liability) recognized (17.96) (39.53) (1 6.14) (2"i.IJ2) II 

i 1n t> ala>~ ce :sreet as provisior' 
··-·--·- ----·· -- ---- -------- - -- -------------------------------------~---------------- - ----- -

- T -
I 

I 
- --- - - ---- - I 

a) Present va:ue of ob! igation as a! r 
the oeginn i,lg of the period I 
b) Acquisition ad1ustrnent 
c) Int erest Cost [ 
d) S.:; rv,ce Cost ! 
e) Pasi Service Cost includi ng 1

1 

c:..~:·iai l !ilen: Gains/Losses 
!) l3enc'fits Paid 1 

g) 1"01?1 Actuarial (C3ain)/Loss o r ; I 

(INR i,·, Lakhs ) 

ci~~~~t~_s-~~ayC~l -~~::V P. - ~- ~--~~~~~~~~ 1\~~J-rd:~~Q::~Ve - ---·-i 
Liabi li ty ! Liabil ity I Uabi lity Liab ili ty . I 

1 •3.14 

1. 16 
2. 17 

(1.51) 

1·---- --- - -- -·- --"" I 31.03 1444 ~ u;o ! 

2.23 
81/. 

( 1.85) 
I 

0 .98 
2.22 

("I .GO) 

148 
7 82 

i 

Obl igation 

1 h) Preseni vAlue of :Jbiigation as at I 1"7 .96 ! 
I he [net of the pe::!_?<! __ _ ____ L _________ _]_ 

39 .53 I 16.1 <l 

---·- -- -- -__ L ------ ---
'51. 02 

40 4 Balan£?-__§heet and relate:d analysi_~ (!NR in Lnkl1s) 

r.- -- - -·------------- -----------··- --- ----------------, 
,s.No . P?. rti c u!ars ___ _!:sat 31st Mar~~ 20~!.- As at 3~st rJiarch 2022 I 
j Gratuity Leave Gratuity Leav·~-- ---~ 

Liabrilty Liabilrty Liabi lity Liability ! 

1
----- --·---- -------- ----- ------ ----- ------------ - - ----·-- ·-·--- ·i 
, n Presenr vaiue ot oblrqc:tronat end 17 9f) 39.53 16. 14 31.C2 i 

I b Fai r value of plan as~els - - - - I I c Un funded Lic:bi liry 'provisicn in (1"1.96) (39 .53) (~6.14) {31.02) , 

L._ Balance Sh:et ----------·------------------ - ----------·----- -- --- ---_j 
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended IVlarch 31, 2023 

40.5 Bifu rcat[Q.!}_Qf__E~_Uhe e_illL.of year in current an_Q_r.on c urrent. 

F 
-----(-IN_R_i~ Lakhs) 

S. No. Pa rti c u Ia rs ----:::::A--:s_a-:-:t:-3_1_s_t_M_a_rc_h-;-2_0_2_3 ___ :-A;;::::s--:a:-t-;3:-1-s_t_M_a_r_c_h--:-20_2_2 __ ---j 

Gratuity Leave Gratuity Leave 
Liability L_i_a_b_il _it_Y ___ Li abi lity Liability 

l-IITenl !i~b ll il'y' 0.49 11.16 0 .39 5.98 

1 (Amount due withi n 011e year) 

l
. b) Non-C,_u-re ;~t li ab ili ty 

(Amount due over one year) 
- - -----------

40.6 Actuariai _Qain/LQ_? s on Ogli_p~ 
r- -------- -
1 S. No. Particulars 

i 
I 
~------···-------------· 
j a) .A.c:u<Fia! (G3in)/Loss on arising from 

1747 28.38 

As at 31st IVIarch 2023 

Gratu ity 
Liabil ity 

Leave 
Li abi lity 

1 Cl1ange in Demographic /l.,ssumption 

1 b) Actuarial (Gain)/l_oss on ari sing from (0.53) (0.96) 

15.75 25 04 

(INR in Lakhs) 

As at 31st 1'.1arch 2022 

GratL.ity 
Liab ili ty 

·----

(1 .06 ) 

'i Gr1;:::r-:ge in Financial Assumption 
c) Actuar;a! (Gain)/Loss on arising (0.98) (O.H9) (044) 1.67 

· from Experience Adjustment L_ ______ ____ ______________ _________________________________ _ 

10.7 J:.b_e am ou !.l!.§_!:_\lS:..Q.flD izecl_Lil.tb.e incorr1e statemen~ . (I NR i !1 La khs) 

s~ -r~o -P~Htlc u-la-;s -- ··- ---------- -·r As at31:tM~~~h-2-~~3 ---- --:-6~ -~t3·1;i: Ma~::--2o22 -=-~~---~ 

I 
Gratu ity ! Leave Gratu ity Leave I 

1 Liab i li ty [Liabi li ty Liabil ity Li ai:J iii ty 1 

:-~1y·:r- ota: -sr;:;:;:;-icecost-- --- ------ _ _ _.__ 2. 17 ---------8~12 ____ 2 :n -----------7 82 ---~ 

b) Net lf'lerest Coc;t 
c) Net actuarial (gain) I loss recognized 
in the period 
d\ Exper,se rocognized in the Income 
Statem2nt 

1.16 

3.33 

2.23 
(1.85) 

8.51 

C.98 

3.20 

' •I lmpo~t of the chonge '" d lscoun~ cote~~ ~ -- - . . I ~· ~~~~~ : :: 1· 

- -- ---- ----- -- ------- ----------------------t------ ______ , __ _ S. No Pn~seni Va lue of Obl;gat;on at the end of the pe,·;od 17 95 i 
a) Impact due t<) .nc1 ease u f 0 50% (1 31) i 
b) i!T!pact due to decre<Jse of 0 .50 o/c, 11 ·1.44 ' 

b) Impact ot tile ch<-lnge in sa la ry inc rease 

S. No. F''"'sent Va lue o1 Obligati on at the end of the period II 17 .95 

a) impact due to increase of 0.50% , 0.68 

b) Impact du0 to decreas2 of 0.50 ·'la L~-63) __ _j 

148 
(OT7) 

9.13 

(INR in Lakhs) 

Leave 
liability 

39 .53 

(2.34) 
2.60 

39.53 

2 56 
(2.34) 

Sen s:t1vities due to mortality & withdrawals me !lot rn ateria! & hence impact of change due to t11 ese :1ot 
ca lculated. 
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NotP.s forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March :~1, 2023 

40.9 Maturity Profile of Defined Ben_efit Obliqation (!NR in Lakhs) 

~~ ~o Ye" . 

1----·------------------------
'1 a) 0 to I Year 

b) 1 to 2 Year 

I 
c) 2 to 3 Year 
d) 3 to 4 Year 

~
.) 4 to 5 Year 

f) 5 to 6 Year 

g) ~~ear~-~_:~~s 

Gratuity 
Liab ili ty 

0.49 
0.38 
0.32 
0.32 
0.29 
0.29 
15.86 

---------] 
-·--------

Leave 
Liability 

11'16 
0.53 
0.52 
0.51 
0.49 
048 

25.75 

<~0 . 1 0 LE:ave Travel Concession 

(i) Economic Assumptions 

(ii) 

(ili) 

I_P~_r_!ic~:~~:s_ ~:----=-- =---=-:--~-~-- ~-=------------- --=-~ _ 
1 -- iLDJ~~<}U_nti~_Q ~~!2 __ ----------------· ------------------- ___ _ 
! ii) Cos\ Growth Rate ______ _ 

(INR in.J:-akhs) 

As at 31st Marcil 2023 

I 7.1:) -r- 5 QC 

(iNR in Lakhs) 

LP~::s i:l lt val _~~ ?f_~~i~ati-~~~~~th-e ~~d ~f -~;rlc;'d (31 ,o3 t20~~-~==~[ ___ -~_ ~_.4 7 :· _ 
---·; 

I ____ l 

Bifurcatior• of PBO at the end of year as per schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. 

(INR in Lakhs) 
Particuiars ---- ------------- -- ---------- --- --~ As-at 3;~t r;\a;;.h ;02-3 i 

:- ~--~ 

I 1 45 ! 
-- 1 - J 

i 3D? ! 

- ~~- -- -= 4.4( _j 
(iNR in Lakhs) 

(j·J) Ti:e table o::low shows a summa ry cf u·:e key results of the report tncluding.'pC:Isl results as applicaoie 

II s. N;~- 1 A~':_t~~~;bm_;~- __ -_ ---~~~ ~~~- --~-_ - ~~ ~s a;31~t liJlarcr _20_2:> 

f a) __ Pr~~~!~t_y_clue ~ o~i92:!!'?_'2_____ _____ _____ __ ____ ____ -;---- 447 

.

1 

rb_~_.:J F_?:i: vol_l:!e __ o!_ plan~s_s~ts__ _____ ______ _ ____ _ __ _______ __1
1

.____ _ _ _ 

_ Net asset:> I (~ab i!ityl n~cog~li~E;~ i~~~a l anc~~ s!~f!~~s p~~~s_i 011__ _ ~ . (4.47) 

41 The conmany has only one reportable segment viz operation of freight traffic. Thereioro requi rement ior 
segrm::r.t reporting IS not applicable. 

42 There are no rGported f\li!cro , .Small ar:d Medium enterprises as defined in the "The Micro . Sma!l B, Medium 
E'nterpnses Development Act 2006" to whom the company owes ;;my amount . 

4:~ Appl ication of incti\S on material items 

Tne Pl'ior Period Items and changes in accounting polices are applied retmspectively on account or rnc.teric:litv 
c.n !y in 1:ne witb the prov isions of Indian Accountin[J Standards. 

44 •:.:ontinge_t::l_Ass~ts 

In t ~1 e abs<,,lC8 of ce,iainity ar.d qctantifiction of Interest mr.;eivable against the BGs of M/s HCI L Adhikarya and 
f·ii/~; IVRCL en~ast;ecl t.ly M/s F~VI\IL. th,-, Company 11as reco!~1ni!'ed the same under co 1~lingent assets. 

45 Expenditu re incurred on employees wr1o were in receipl ·Jf remunera tion in excess Gf the limils prescribed 
und er ScctiOP 134 of the Compan1es Act 20'1.3 -- Nil . 

-t6 Other Disclosures as per Schedule II! of Companies Act 2013 

Expenditure in F-'ore ign Currency- ~~i l (Previous Year- Ni!) . 

Earn inas in Foreig n Currency- Ni! (Previous Year -Nil) . 

/ 

The com par.-y rH:lS not ;e(;eic•ed any inli:nation irom the suppliers regardin9 their status under the IVli cm. Smai l ar,d 
M0uiurn E:r.~e rp;-ises Oevelopmer!l Act ;:006 i'IS at the Balance Sheet date and therefore no such disci.:Jsur·es 
under the said Act nave been tmwe . 
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47 (i) Previous year figures has been re-arranged reg rouped and re-cl assi fi ed to make them confirmatory v1ith 
w rr ent year figures. 

a) 
i s I 

I 
i>JO 

1 

Impact of Changes of Retmspective Slatement on Ba!ance sheet (1 !:-J~ in Lakhs ) 

r_ P-~R-TI ~I ~L~-~~ ------ ~-~-~-~~~f~~-- ~~H-~~-GE-~_1_ ~~{~~~ED _r Reason fo:~an~:- __ 

1 

I 2 Other Current Assets 2,486 49 (2 ,215 45) 271 04 Advances 
--------

I 3 

I. 4 

Otner Non Current Assets -1 364 17 2.2 15 45 2,579 62 u (eclaSSiflcatlon of capi ta l 

Cash and Cash equivalent 4 ,277 11 (1 , 193 78) 3 ,083 33 Reclass1f1cat1on of 
Other Bank Balances 5,530 74 1,193 78 6 ,724 52 Unpaid d1v1dend Account 

--- ---- ---------- - ---- - -
b) 

;::. 

NO 

Impact of Change~ of Retrospective Stai P:_IIlent on_Sash Flow Statement {IN R in Lakhs) 

PA RTICULARS . AS PER CH ANG ES AS PER - , Reason for 
_ _ __ A UDITED ~ESTA_~ED C ~c:n_ge 

I 

I 
2 

Cash Flow from Opera ting Activities 

Cash Flow from Investi ng Activites 

Cash Flow fr.Jm Financing J\ ctiviti es 

1 1E'T INCR EASE (D ECF~ EASE) IN 

31 ,504 .14 

(9 .89941) I 
(25 ,397 .96) 

(850 .69) 

(343. 09) 

30 ,753.L',5 

(1 0 ,242 .50) 

(25 ,397 96) 

(4 ,887 .0'i ) 

Consequent to I 
changes in 

:3 

4 {1,193.78) i 
_+I-

3,083.33 

Baiance shee l, I 
corTesp0 i''d inq I 
imp':lct " on 1

1 

Statement 0f j 
C21sh Flow 

' CAS rl & CAS H EQUIVAI_E NT 

! C:osmg C2sh and Cash Equivalen ts 

(3,693.23) I 

4, 277.1 ·1 I 
-·--·-~--_]-

(1 '193.l8) 

(ii ) The Company hC:J s made the disclosures CJ i appm piates place rega rdig the relevant items :Jr tra nsactions ul 
ba l;ouce sheet <:md statement of profit and loss. Any non-disclosure is due to non occt.: rrence of rela ted 
transaction . 

48 Disclost: r ~s p ursuant to amendment in Schedu le Ill of the Companies Act 2013 : 

Tile MCI\ vi da noti fi ca liun aa ted 24th Marcil 2021 has amended Schedule Ill to the Companies Act. 2013 in respect 
0f ce rtain disclosures which are appli ca ble from 1st April 2021 The Company has incorpnrai ed tl1e cl1anges as per 
the s21id amendme 1~ t ir. the financia l sta tements and below disclosures are made in comp liance of the said 
amendment: 

(i) Tile Company has no tr2nsactions wi th companies stru ck oft under sect ion :Z48 of the Companies Act. 20'i 3 or 
Section 56J u' Coma<:lll ies .1\ct, 1951'3 duri ng the period 

(ii) T!.e CCJm~1;1ny h<lS :~ c;t t r :~d ecl or invested i:l Crypto Currensy or Vll-t uol Curr·ency during the perr O(i 

(rir·i i ll!J Cor.·rf.may ci o 1101 1-,av€' any Ben ;:un; property v1ilere any proceeding r.as beer: ini'. i"led c. r penrj in9 e1 gainst 
:he cOmf'<my fer '·1aldi r: g a•1y 8enarn i prcperiy 

(iv) T ile Com pany do not have any prior period ermrs io be disclosed se,parateiy in sta tement 0 1 chonges in 
equ ity . 

(v) Tile (:omj.)any do 110t rrav e:: any chm ge:;s or satisfaction which is yet to be re9i stered wi th F~OC 

(vi ) 1 he Company have not advanced m loaned or inveslecl funds tu any other person(s) or edity(ies) . :nclud rng 
1ore;rJ n en tities (Interm ediaries) w ith the understanding that the Intermediary si1all : 

(a) d;rectl y or ind irectl y lend or invest in other persons or entities identiLed in any manner •:vh C!t soeve~ by or 
on beha!f of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(IJ) prov ide 2ny guarantee , security or the like to or on behalf of the U:timate Benefic i arie~ 

(vi i)The C:o rnpany h;.w e not received any ft.:n d from any person(s) or entity(i es) , inciL;d i n~J fore ign entities 
(F und:ng Party) w ith tile underslandi llg (whether record ed in w i"i ting or otherwise) that the Co1~pany shall: 

(a) ckcc!ly or ind 'recfly lend or invest in other persons or ent ities Identified in any mannt;r w tr atsm-;,.'er by c1· 
on lJehal f of the F u n di 1 1~] P211y (Ultimate Benefici aries) or 

(b) pmv:de any guau-Jr rlee, secu1·ity or the like on behalf of i he Ultimate Benefi ciar ies, 

(vi;i ) The Cu1r.pany does not have any loans and advances in the natll re of loans to promoters, uirectc rs, KM P 
and utll cr related parties. 

(ix) Tne ::..\!,npi'tny hat.! 10t reva lued any item of property, pi ant and eq uipment and Intang ible /\ssPts . 

(x) Tr~e Compa ny does not have any t1·ansact1ons where the company has rrot Lrsed til e burrow1n9s irom b <:m l<.~ 

ano f, r,ancia! institutions ror the specific purpose for vv ili ch it was i :J ken at the balance shee: da!e 

(xi) The Cumpany do not have any title deeds cf imn rovabl t' propert ies not held in name ol tile co rr.pany. 

(xii) Tile Comrany does not have any investment property. 

(xi!i} Comp<m y is n.Jt 1·equ ire d to submit statement of cu rrent ass~ ts wiih til e be< nk and :herefore re,;oncilia!ion 
of l h·~ statement fi ted by tile corqpnny witr1 ba nk a1 1d tne books of accounts is not 8.ppl1 cab le 
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(xiv) The Company has not been declar ed as will ful defaul(er by any bank or fin an cia l in stitu tion or go'Jer·•ment 
or any government authority . 

!xv) 

(x•Ji) 

(xvii ) 

The Company has compli ed w ith the number of layers pr-escriberJ under the Compa nies Aci , 2013 

The Co 111pany have not entered in:o any scheme(s) of arrc. ngements du~ing the fi:l ancicll year. 

The Company dues not have any transaction which is not 1·eco r ded in the books of accounts that has been 
subsequently surrendered or disclosed <Js income during the year as part of the on going tax assessments 
under the Income Tax Act , 1961 (such as , search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income 
Tax Act, 1961) . 

(xviii) The following accounting ratios are disclosed: (INR in Lakhs) 

-Pa~i:::~s l ~~~::ato~l Denominato~- jMa;~~33~ ~ -
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49 Corporate Soc ial Responsibility 

As per SGct1on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, m22ting the app licabi lity threshold , needs to spend 
atleast 2% of its average ne1 profit for ihe immediately prececi ing th ree financia l years on corporate social 
r<:spons1bi liiy (CSR) activities. In comp liance wi th the requi remen ts of section "135 of til e Compa 111 es Act 20"i3, 
the Compa n:; had constituted the CSR Committee and allocated budget for CSR Activities. 
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For F Y. 2022-23 C:SR amount was equa!ly contributed to t he three districts namely Jagatsinghpur, Jajpur, and 
1-<t:nderapaua under "r.ilO SCHOOL ABH iYAN PARiCHALANA SANGATHAN" in the Proj&ct Are?-s in terms of 
prcvi3mn co ntainet.! ir. Schedule Vii of Companies Act, 2013. 

60 GST Disclosure 

:Juring the Fina 1~ Ci<1 l ye<J r 2017-18 C3oods and Service Tax (GST) has subs umed the vc:rious indirect taxes 
1ilCiuding Service Tax with effect from 1st July 2017 1 he Company has a i i~ned its stance with that ot the 
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'1 !: lllay be notc;d that . 

(ai 

072 



I forida.3pur Parctdip Railway C~ompany Li1n ited 
CIN : U452030R2006PLC0089 59 

and then defying the cost of investments under various revenue sharing agreement~ 

(b) .1\ctivilies done by IR and SPVs are part of their obligations as la1d down in these sharing c;greemems. 

(cJ SP'Js do not run trains as a part of business mode~ I. indian r~ailways (IR) carries out 11 a in operation on 
:ts own unde1· the !aw of Land and co llects total freig h~ (along with applicable taxes therr~on) from origin 
10 destination poini. Tax ob ligations on the common freight reven ue are also discharged by IR 1tself. 
Thereafter. common revenue (after discharge of tax obl igation thereo11) is shared/ distributee! by ~~~ 
with the Company, afte1 defraying the r·ela ted costs . 

(d) Agreements between IR with SPVs are merely instruments/ mechanism for recovery of investments 
(along with the rate of maximum return as defined in the Concession Ag reement) made by the 
Company in form of receipt of share of freight earning net after all re lated costs. 

(e) In the above sharing arrangement, IR shares the revenue and costs as per actuai without any profit 
margin . 

5. As such the GST liabi lities on the Company (if any) under its sharing arrangement is contin£tent upon t11e 
directive from MoR a:1d re levant pmvisions in the Concession J\greement. 

6 fvloreover , it is a well-sett led f.lOSition of lav1 thai indirect Taxes (presen!ly C3ST; are ul lirnate ly to be borr-le 
by the recip1ent of the Scpply of Serv1ces i.e. GST 'viii be recovered l:Jy Suppl ie; (i.0. HPr~CL) imm the 
Recipierrt (i e Zonal Ra ilways/ IVloR) 

In view oi this , the Company has ma:nta:ned the positicn as ·'Status Quo .. in 1·esped to GST. 
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.SBN & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTER_EO _A(:CO_UNIANT_S 0'1 Room No-14 & 15, 2"d Floor, Deendayal Bhawan 

Janapath, Ashok Nagar, Bhubaneswar-751009 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (REVISED) 

To the Members of HARIDASPUR PARADIP RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of Haridaspur Paradip 
Railway Company Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 
2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended on that date, and notes 
to the standalone financial statements and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the "standalone financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013, ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, 
and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended 
on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143{10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAl'') together with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone financial statements under 
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Standalone financial statements. 

Reasons for Revised Audit Report 

Our Audit Report has been revised on the basis of observations made during the supplementary 
audit conducted by the C&AG wherein it was highlighted that there are few violation of SA 700 
while reporting the statement "Opinion" and Point No. 1{d) of the Report on other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirement. Further it was also highlighted that there is incomplete reporting in Point 
No (xvi) of Annexure 2 of the Audit Report and also revised directions of the C&AG of India issued 
U / s 143(5) were not complied. Therefore, our report is revised and this supersedes earlier report 
dated 21ST August 2023. 
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Emphasis of Matter (EOM) 

Without qualifying our report, your attention is drawn to Note- 37(iii) of the standalone financial 
statements, which describes that an amount of INR 4424.12 lakhs as on 31st March 2023 (INR 
2,199.81 Lakhs as on 31st March 2022) towards interest and other charges claimed by M/s RVNL is 

not acknowledged as the debt by the company. 

b. Without qualifying our report, your attention is drawn to Note - 50 of the standalone financial 
statements regarding the Compliance of CGST Act, 2017, OGST Act, 2017, and IGST Act, 2017. The 
decision on GST will be contingent on the directive from the Ministry of Railways and the relevant 

terms of the Concession Agreement. Therefore, provision towards such statutory liability (if any) has 
neither been created nor recognized by the company. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 

our audit of the Standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. We 
have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The 

other information comprises the information included in the Company's Annual report, but does 
not include the Standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially 

inconsistent with the Standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 

other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 

with respect to the preparation of these Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash 

flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This 

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting recordsltlr y:afib ., e preparation and presentation 
_.-- - ' -4 

of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that . ¥a true ~<I, fair view and are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or erroi { ~, -. ! * 
'. I iHU W~l<i 'if..' 
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In preparing the Standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concem and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 

process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone financial 

statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern . 

• 
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in 
the standalone financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone financial statements for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in 
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the statements of Cash 
Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS 
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 
31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these 
Standalone financial statements of the company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure 1". Our report express an unmodified 
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial 
controls with reference to standalone financial statements. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance 
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in 
its Ind AS financial statements- Refer Note 37 to the Ind AS financial statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses; 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other 
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kinds of 
funds)by the company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities 
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other 
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the 
company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities CFunding parties"), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries and 

c) Based on the audit 



v . As stated in Note 13.1 to the Standalone financial statements, the dividend declared and 

payable by the Company during the year and until the date of this report is in compliance 
with Section 123 of the Act. 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the 
"Annexure 2" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

3. As required by Section 143(5) of the Act, we give in" Annexure-3", a statement on the matters 
specified in the Directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India in respect of 
the Company. 

UDTN: 23312008BGWHV02143 

For SBN & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm' s Registration. No: 323579E 

CA A WEZ HALARI 
Partner 
Membership No. :312008 
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
STANDALONE IND AS FINANOAL STATEMENTS 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Gause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Haridaspur Paradip 
Railway Company Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit 
of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding 
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 
Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 

an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone 

Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS 
financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting with reference to these Standalone lnd AS financial statements, assessing the 
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
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auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud orerror. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference 
to these Ind AS financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these 
Financial Statements 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone 
lnd AS financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control 
over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone lnd AS financial statements includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with Reference to 
these Standalone lnd AS Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with 
reference to these Standalone lnd AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS financial statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with 
reference to these Standalone Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS financial statements and such 
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS 
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

UDIN: 23312008BGWHV02143 
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"ANNEXURE 2" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
STANDALONE FINANOAL STATEMENTS 

Referred to in Paragraph 2 under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements" of our report of even date on the accounts of Haridaspur Paradip Railway 
Company Limited for the year ended 31st march, 2023 we report that: 

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in 
progress, investment properties and relevant details of right-of-use assets. 

(B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible 
assets. 

(b) As explained to us and according to the information and explanation provided to us the 
Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management at reasonable 
intervals and there are no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification and 
same have been properly dealt with in the books of account. 

(c) The Title Deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the 

company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) 
disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company. 

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use 
assets) or intangible assets or both during the financial year. 

(e) As explained to us and according to the information and explanation provided to us, no 
proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company as at 31st March 2023 for 
holding any benami property under Benami Transaction (Provision) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988 
and rules made thereunder). 

(ii) (a) The company does not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph (ii)(a) is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(b) The company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits, at points of time 
during the year, from bank or financial institution. Thus, paragraph (ii)(b) is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made 

investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans, secured or 

unsecured to Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in 

the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the 

provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and 

hence not commented upon. 
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(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no 
Loans, investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of 
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented 

upon. 

(v) According to the information and explanation given to us the Company has not accepted 
any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 
3(v) of the Order are not applicable. 

(vi) As per the requirement under section 148(1) of Companies Act, 2013 the Central 
government has not prescribed for maintenance of the cost record for the Company. 

(vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed 

(viii) 

statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, duty of 
custom, duty of excise, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. 

According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amounts payable 
in respect of provident fund, Income tax, duty of customs, Goods and services tax, cess and 
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31st March 2023 for a period of more than 
six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the disputed statutory 
dues that have not been deposited on account of disputes pending before authorities 
are as under: 

Name of Nature of the Amount (Rs. Period to Forum where 
Statute Dues In Lacs) which the dispute is 

amount relates pending 
Income Tax Income Tax 41.00 AY2013-14 PCIT 
Act, 1961 

Income Tax Income Tax 158.35 AY 2014-15 CIT(Appeals) 
Act 1961 

Income Tax Income Tax 78.09 AY 2017-18 CIT( Appeals) 
Act 1961 

According to the information and explanations given previously 
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(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the 
management, in respect of borrowings: 

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a bank or 
government or dues to debenture holders. 

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or other lender. 

(c) In our opinion, the term loans have been applied for the purpose for which they were 
raised. 

(d) The Company has not raised any short term funds. Thus, paragraph (ix)(d) is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(e) The company has no subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Therefore, Thus, 
paragraph (ix)(e) is not applicable to the Company .. 

(f) The company has no subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Therefore, Thus, 
paragraph (ix)(f) is not applicable to the Company. 

(x) (a) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the 
company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer I further public offer I 
debt instruments. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 
examination of the balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year 
under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(x)(b) are not applicable to 
the company and, not commented upon. 

(xi) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair 
view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by 
the management, we report that; 

(a) No fraud by the company or no fraud I material fraud on the Company by the officers 
and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by 
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) No whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the company. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the 
order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 
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(xiii) In our opinion, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 
188 of Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties 
undertaken during the year and the details of such related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the applicable 
accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) The company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and 
nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered the Internal Audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the 
Company during the year. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company 
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected to its 
Directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable. 

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA 
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the company. Hence, reporting 
under clause (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvii) The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year covered by our audit and 
in the immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the 
year. 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements, that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

(xx) The Company has spent an amount of INR 61.59 lacs towards Corporate Social 
responsibility and there is no unspent CSR amount for the year 2022-23 requiring a transfer 
to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special account in compliance of 
the provision of section 135(6) of the Companies Act 2013. 

UDIN: 23312008BGWHV02143 
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Annexure-3 to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 

On the directions issued by the Comptroller and Audit General of India under sub section 5 of 

the Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 based on the verification of records of the 

company and information and explanations given to us, we report that: 

Directions under section 143(5} of Companies Act, 2013 

Sl. 

No. 

Questions Auditor's Comments 

1 Whether the company has system in Yes, the company is recording the accounting 

place to process all the accounting transaction in IT system. The company is using 

transactions through IT system? If yes, Tally Prime Accounting Software. All the 

the implications of processing of transactions are done through IT system only. 

accounting transactions outside IT No transaction is done outside IT system and 

system on the integrity of the hence no such impact on the integrity of the 

accounts along with the financial accounts. 

implications, if any, may be stated 

2. Whether there is any restructuring of No such case of restructuring of an existing 

an existing loan or cases of loan or waiver/written of 

waiver/written of debts/loans/interest, etc made by the lender 

debts/loans/interest, etc made by a to the company due to company's inability to 

lender to the company due to repay the loans and hence the clause is not 

company's inability to repay the applicable. 

loans? If yes, the financial impact may 

be stated. Whether such cases are 

properly accounted for? (In case , 

lender is a Government company, 

then this direction is also applicable 

for statutory auditor of lender 

company). 
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3 Whether funds received/receivable As per the information and explanations 

for specific schemes from provided to us, the company has not 

central/state Government or its received/receivable any funds from specific 

agencies were properly accounted schemes from central/state agencies. Hence, 

for/utilized as per its terms and the clause is not applicable. 

conditions? List the cases of 

deviations. 

UDIN: 23312008BGWHV02143 
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER 
SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF HARIDASPUR PARADIP RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

The preparation of financial statements of Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company 

Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the financial reporting 

framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the . 

management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and 

Auditor General of India under Section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing 

opiniGn on the financial statements under Section 143 .of the J.l.ct based en independent 

audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of 

the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Revised Audit Report dated 

25 September 2023 which supersedes their earlier Audit Report dated 21 August 2023. 

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a 

supplementary audit of the financial statements of Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company 

Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 under Section 143(6) (a) of the Act. This 

supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working 

papers of the Statutory Aud itor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditor 

and Company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records. 

In view of the revisions made in the Statutory Auditor's report, to give effect to some 

of my audit observations raised during supplementary audit, I have no further comments to 

offer upon or supplement to the Statutory Auditors' report under Section 143(6)(b) of the 

Act. 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated:~ 6.09.2023 

For and on the behalf of the 
Comptroiier & Auditor General of !ndia 

Dr. Nita a Goswami 
Directo eneral of Audit 

Railway Commercial, New Delhi 
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